' City of Port Colborne
X Special Meeting of Council 01-18
Monday, January 22, 2018
Council in Closed Session — 5:00 p.m.

PORT OLBORNE Committee Room 3, 3" Floor, 66 Charlotte Street
Agenda

J\lig

Call to Order: Mayor John Maloney
2. Introduction of Addendum ltems:

3. Confirmation of Agenda:

4. Disclosures of Interest:

5. Council in Closed Session:

(i) Motion to go into Closed Session

That Council do now proceed into closed session in order to address the
following matter(s):

(a) Minutes of the closed session portions of the following Council meetings:
December 11, 2017 and December 18, 2017.

(b) Correspondence from Woody McKaig, Solicitor, Sullivan Mahoney LLP,
dated January 3, 2018, providing legal advice with respect to a citizen
complaint against members of staff, pursuant to the Municipal Act, 2001,
Subsection 239(2)(b) personal matters about an identifiable individual,
including municipal or local board employees and Subsection 239(f) advice
that is subject to solicitor-client privilege, including communications
necessary for that purpose.

Note: Mr. McKaig will be in attendance to provide legal advice respecting
the above item.

(c) Planning and Development Report No. 2018-09, regarding the potential sale
of City owned land, pursuant to the Municipal Act, 2001, Subsection
239(2)(c) a proposed or pending acquisition or disposition of land by the
municipality or local board.
(i) Disclosures of Interest (closed session agenda)

(iii) Consideration of Closed Session ltems




(iv) Motion to Rise With Report

6. Disclosures of Interest Arising From Closed Session:

7. Report and Motions Arising From Closed Session:

8. Adjournment:
Note: Due to potential time constraints, item (c) of the closed session items listed for
consideration during the special council meeting also appears on the closed session
portion of agenda for the regular meeting. A closed session meeting will not be required

after the regular meeting if consideration of closed session items is concluded during the
special meeting.



City of Port Colborne
Regular Meeting of Committee of the Whole 01-18
Monday, January 22, 2018 — 6:30 p.m.

PORT COIBRORNE Council Chambers, 3™ Floor, 66 Charlotte Street
Agenda

1. Call to Order: Mayor John Maloney

2. National Anthem: Joel Longfellow

3. Introduction of Addendum and Delegation ltems:
4. Confirmation of Agenda:

5. Disclosures of Interest:

6. Adoption of Minutes:
(a) Regular meeting of Committee of the Whole 26-17, held on December 11, 2017.

7. Determination of Iltems Requiring Separate Discussion:
8. Approval of Iltems Not Requiring Separate Discussion:

9. Presentations:
(a) Recognition of Joanne Ferraccioli for her accomplishments as Health Services
Coordinator

10. Delegations (10 Minutes Maximum):
(a) Dave and Anne-Marie Lallouet requesting reimbursement of a Minor Variance
Application Fee regarding 59R-15865 Lot Lakeshore Road, West (Page No. 17)

(b)  Ray Khanna, Kingsway Investments and Aldo Martino of Jaamss Investment
Corporation appealing the Fire and Emergency Services Department Inspection
Fees charged regarding 224 Mitchell Street, Port Colborne (Page No. 35)
11. Mayor’s Report:
12. Regional Councillor’s Report:
13. Councillors’ ltems:
(a)  Councillors’ Issues/Enquiries
(b)  Staff Responses to Previous Councillors’ Enquiries

14. Consideration of ltems Requiring Separate Discussion:



Committee of the Whole Agenda January 22, 2018

15. Notice of Motion:

16. Adjournment:

Upcoming Committee of the Whole and Council Meetings
Monday, February 12,2018  Committee of the Whole/Council — 6:30 P.M.
Monday, February 26, 2018  Committee of the Whole/Council - 6:30 P.M.

Monday, March 12, 2018 Committee of the Whole/Council — 6:30 P.M.
Monday, March 26, 2018 Committee of the Whole/Council — 6:30 P.M.

Monday, April 9, 2018 Committee of the Whole/Council — 6:30 P.'M.
Monday, April 23, 2018 Committee of the Whole/Council — 6:30 P.M.

Note: If not otherwise attached to the staff report, by-laws are published and available for review under
the “Consideration of By-laws” section of the Council agenda.



Committee Items:

Committee of the Whole Agenda

January 22, 2018

JDM BB RB Chief Administrative Officer, Report No. 2018-12, Subject: 37
Unattached Patient List

AD FD YD

BK UM That staff be directed to transition the patients on the unattached

DE K patient list to Health Care Connect and cease maintaining a list of
unattached patients.

JDM BB RB Fire and Emergency Services Department, Report No. 2018-11, 41
Subject: Port Colborne Operatic Society Pyrotechnics

AD FD YD

5K That By-law No. 4989/45/07 Being a By-law for Prohibiting and

DE K M Regulating the Sale of Fireworks and Setting Off Fireworks in the City
of Port Colborne be waived for the Port Colborne Operatic Society for
their 2018 production, and further;
That the Port Colborne Operatic Society ensure it meets all of the
requirements as set out in Fire and Emergency Services Report 2018-
11 as well as any other requirements that may be required to ensure
public safety.

JOM BB RB Planning and Development Department, Planning Division, 43
Report No. 2018-04, Subject: Stopping Up and Closing of Part of

AD FD YD Victoria Street

DE BK M That Planning and Development Department, Planning Division,
Report 2018-04 with respect to Stopping Up and Closing of Part of
Victoria Street be received for information.

JDM BB RB Planning and Development Department, Planning Division, 45
Report No. 2018-05, Subject: Affordability/Financial Hardship and

AD FD YD Planning Application Fees

DE BK JM

That Planning and Development Department, Planning Division,
Report 2018-05 with respect to Affordability/Financial Hardship and
Planning Application Fees be received for information.

Note: If not otherwise attached to the staff report, by-laws are published and available for review under
the “Consideration of By-laws” section of the Council agenda.




Committee of the Whole Agenda January 22, 2018

JDM

AD

DE

BB RB | 5. Engineering and Operations Department, Engineering Division,
Report No. 2018-01, Subject: Project No.: 2017-02, Municipal
FD YD Drain Maintenance 2018

BK JM

That Project 2017-02, Municipal Drain Maintenance and Cleaning, be
awarded to Anthony’'s Excavating Central Inc., of Wellandport,
Ontario, for the total tendered price of $396,258.90, plus applicable
taxes. Staff is directed to utilise the bid items as listed within the
awarded Tender Document, in such a manner as to complete all
works as may be required.

That a contract by-law, whereby the City enters into a Contract
Agreement with the contractor be prepared.

That funding for Project 2017-02 be financed on an interim basis,
under GL Accounts 3-560-33226-1510, 3-560-33210-1510, 3-560-
33236-1510, 3-560-33217-1510, 3-560-33206-1510, 3-560-33220-
1510, 3-560-33221-1510, 3-560-33218-1510 and that staff be
authorized to initiate billings back to each Municipal Drain’s
Watershed at the completion of each Watershed'’s works and upon
receipt of the 1/3 Grant from OMAFRA.

49

JDM
AD

DE

BB RB | 6. Engineering and Operations, Operations Division, Report No.
2018-03, Subject: Request for Proposal 2017-14: Playground

FD YD Replacement — Rose Shymansky Memorial Park & Sunset Park

BK M That Contract 2017-14, Playground Replacement at Rose Shymansky

Memorial Park and Sunset Park be awarded to PlayPower LT Canada
Inc. of Paris, Ontario, for the total tendered price of $138,563.42;
applicable taxes not included; and

That the Director of Engineering and Operations be authorized to
issue a purchase order to PlayPower LT Canada Inc.; and

That the appropriate by-law be prepared and submitted for execution
by the Mayor and City Clerk.

53

Note: If not otherwise attached to the staff report, by-laws are published and available for review under
the “Consideration of By-laws" section of the Council agenda.




Committee of the Whole Agenda January 22, 2018

JDM

AD

DE

BB RB
FD YD

BK JM

Engineering and Operations, Engineering Division, Report No.
2018-07, Subject: Request for Installation of a Flashing “Children
Crossing” Light on Fielden Avenue Near Franklin

That staff be directed to proceed with the installation of a new
Playground Ahead warning sign including a signpost and amber
flashing beacon on Fielden Avenue approximately 40 metres north of
Franklin Avenue and a new Playground Ahead warning sign including

a signpost on Fielden Avenue approximately 90 metres south of the
Reservoir Park entrance; and

That the approximate cost of $3,000 for this work be drawn from the
2018 Operating Budget GL 0-500-74220-3215.

57

JDM

AD

DE

BB RB | 8.

FD YD

BK JM

Engineering and Operations, Engineering Division, Report No.
2018-08, Subject: Request for Stop Sign instaliatlon Knoli Street
at Highland Avenue

That staff be directed to proceed with the issuance of a Request for
Quotation for vehicle and pedestrian counts including
recommendations at the intersection of Knoll and Highland for an
approximate cost of $5,000; and

That the approximate cost of $5,000 for this work be drawn from the
2018 Budget GL 0-540-74610-3205. '

61

JDM
AD

DE

BB RB | 9.

FD YD

BK JM

Engineering and Operations, Engineering Division, Report No.
2018-10, Subject: Port Colborne Operations Centre Equipment
Purchase: Mobile Column Lifts

That Quotation 2017-07, the supply of Six Mobile Column Lifts be
awarded to ISN Canada Group Inc., for the total quoted price of
$72,000 (plus any applicable taxes); and

That funding for the equipment be financed under Account 3-500-
33593-3401, Port Colborne Operations Centre Capital Expenditures;
and

That staff be authorized to issue a Purchase Order to ISN Canada
Group Inc. for $72,000.00 (plus any applicable taxes).

65

Note: If not otherwise attached to the staff report, by-laws are published and available for review under
the “Consideration of By-laws” section of the Council agenda.




Committee of the Whole Agenda January 22, 2018

JDM

AD

DE

BB RB

FD YD

BK JM

10.

Community and Economic Development Department, Report No.
2018-02, Subject: Franchise Agreement Renewal — Enbridge Gas
Distribution Inc.

That the Council of The Corporation of the City of Port Colborne
(“Council”) approves the form of the draft by-law (including the
Franchise Agreement forming part thereof), attached hereto, and
authorizes the submission thereof to the Ontario Energy Board for
approval, pursuant to the provisions of Section 9 of the Municipal
Franchises Act,

That Council requests the Ontario Energy Board to make an order
dispensing with the assent of the municipal electors of the attached
draft by-law (including the franchise agreement forming part thereof),
pursuant to the provisions of Section 9(4) of the Municipal Franchises
Act; and

That By-law 733/50/78 and By-law 3665/91/98 be repealed.

JDM
AD

DE

BB RB

FD YD

BK JM

11.

Corporate Services Department, Clerk’s Division, Report No.
2018-13, Subject: Appointments to Boards and Committees

Canal Days Advisory Committee:
That Betty Konc be appointed to the Canal Days Advisory Committee
for a term ending December 31, 2020.

East Village Neighbourhood Improvement Task Force: :
That Neal Schoen be appointed to the East Village Neighbourhood
Improvement Task Force for a term ending December 31, 2020.

Economic Development Advisory Committee:

That Kate Ostryhon-Lumsden be appointed to the Economic
Development Advisory Committee for a term ending December 31,
2020.

Environmental Advisory Committee:
That Beth Palma, Ryan Waines and Tim Hoyle be appointed to the

Environmental Advisory Committee for a term ending December 31,
2020.

Port Colborne Historical & Marine Museum:
That the following persons be appointed to the Port Colborne
Historical & Marine Museum Board:

1. Amanda Emeky for a term ending December 31, 2019;
2. Claudia Brema for a term ending December 31, 2019;

103

Note: If not otherwise attached to the staff report, by-laws are published and available for review under
the “Consideration of By-laws” section of the Council agenda.



Committee of the Whole Agenda

January 22, 2018

3. Bert Murphy for a term ending December 31, 2019;

4. Brian Heaslip for a term ending December 31, 2021;

5. Cheryl MacMillan for a term ending December 31, 2021;
6. Pamela Koudijs for a term ending December 31, 2021,

Port Colborne Medical Education, Recruitment and Health Services
Committee:

That Connie Butler be appointed to the Port Colborne, Medical
Education, Recruitment and Health Services Committee for a term
ending December 31, 2020.

Senior Citizen Advisory Council:

That Judy Wade, Valerie King and Susan Brown be appointed to the
Senior Citizen Advisory Council for a term ending December 31,
2020.

That the Clerk be directed to bring forward the necessary by-law for
approval.

JDM
AD

DE

BB

FD

- BK

RB

YD

JM

12.

Corporate Services Department, Corporate Services Division,
Report No. 2018-06, Subject: 2016 Audited Financial Statements

That the 2016 draft audited Financial Report for the year ended
December 31, 2016 be approved.

109

JDM BB RB | 13.| Region of Niagara Re: Commercial and Industrial Sub Class Tax 181
Rate Reductions and Rebates (CSD Report 77-2017)

AD FD YD
That the correspondence received from the Region of Niagara Re:

DE BK JM Commercial and Industrial Sub Class Tax Rate Reductions and
Rebates (CSD Report 77-2017), be received for information.
Note: The appendices can be found at the following link:
ttps://www.hiagararegion.ca/council/Council%20Documents/2017/cs
c-agenda-nov-29-2017.pdf

JDM BB RB | 14.| Region of Niagara Re: High Level Official Plan Process 189
Framework (PDS Report 41-2017) '

AD FD YD
That the correspondence received from the Region of Niagara Re:

DE BK JM High Level Official Plan Process Framework (PDS Report 41-2017),

be received for information.

Note: If not otherwise attached to the staff report, by-laws are published and available for review under
the “Consideration of By-laws” section of the Council agenda.
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Committee of the Whole Agenda

January 22, 2018

JDM BB RB | 15.| Region of Niagara Re: Niagara Peninsula Conservation Authority | 197
“The Living Landscape” Draft Policy Document Review (PDS

AD FD YD Report 47-2017)

DE BK JM That the correspondence received from the Region of Niagara Re:
Niagara Peninsula Conservation Authority “The Living Landscape”
Draft Policy Document Review (PDS Report 47- 2017) be received for
information.

JDM BB RB | 16.| Region of Niagara Re: Niagara Region Mid-Year 2017 Growth 209
Monitoring Report (PDS Report 48-2017)

AD FD YD '
That the correspondence received from the Region of Niagara Re:

DE BK JM Niagara Region Mid-Year 2017 Growth Monitoring Report (PDS
Report 48-2017), be received for information.

JDM BB RB | 17.| Region of Niagara Re: Public Meeting Report — Regional Official 223
Plan Amendment No. 13 (ROPA 13) — Transportation Policies

AD FD YD (PDS Report 50-2017)

DE BK M That the correspondence received for the Region of Niagara Re:
Public Meeting Report — Regional Official Plan Amendment No. 13
(ROPA 13) — Transportation Policies (PDS Report 50-2017), be
received for information.

JDM BB " RB | 18. | Region of Niagara Re: Opioid Update: Local Opioid Work (PHD 251
Report 26-2017)

AD FD YD ,
That the correspondence received from the Region of Niagara Re:

DE BK JM Opioid Update: Local Opioid Work (PHD Report 26-2017), be
received for information.

JDM BB RB | 19.| Region of Niagara Re: Proposed Operating Budget Niagara 267
Regional Police Service and Police Services Board (BRC-C

AD FD YD Report 04-2017)

DE BK JM That the correspondence received from the Region of Niagara Re:
Proposed Operating Budget Niagara Regional Police Service and
Police Services Board (BRC-C Report 04-2017), be received for
information.

Note: If not otherwise attached to the staff report, by-laws are published and available for review under
the “Consideration of By-laws” section of the Council agenda.

10




Committee of the Whole Agenda

January 22, 2018

JDM BB RB | 20.| Ministry of Municipal Affairs Re: Update of Bill 59, Consumers 275
First Act (Consumer Protection Statute Law Amendment)

AD FD YD
That the correspondence received from the Ministry of Municipal

DE BK JM Affairs Re: Update of Bill 59, Consumers First Act (Consumer
Protection Statute Law Amendment, to allow municipalities to regulate
the location and number of payday loan establishments, be received
for information. :

JDM BB RB|21.| Charles Sousa, Minister, Ministry of Finance Re: Federal 277
Legalization -A Framework to Govern the Lawful Use and Retail

AD FD YD Distribution of Cannabis within the Province

DE BK JM That the correspondence received from Charles Sousa, Minister,
Ministry of Finance Re: Federal Legalization — A Framework to
Govern the Lawful Use and Retail Distribution of Cannabis within the
Province, be received for information.

JDM BB RB | 22.| Memorandum from Vance Badawey, Member of Parliament, 279
Niagara Centre Re: Smart Cities Challenge

AD FD YD
That the memorandum received from Vance Badawey, Member of

DE BK JM Parliament, Niagara Centre Re: Smart Cities Challenge be referred to
the 2018 Strategic Planning Session.

JDM BB RB|23.| Memorandum from Carrie Mclntosh, Executive Assistant to the 283
CAO on behalf of the Social Determinants of Health Advisory

AD FD YD Committee — Everyone Matters Re: City of St. Catharines’
Housing Action Plan 2017

DE BK JM

That the Memorandum from Carrie Mclntosh, Executive Assistant to
the CAO on behalf of the Social Determinants of Health Advisory
Committee — Everyone Matters Re: City of St. Catharines’ Housing
Action Plan 2017, be received for information;

That staff be directed to invite a representative from the City of St.
Catharines to present its Housing Action Plan 2017 at a future
meeting of Port Colborne City Council; and

That staff be directed to review the City of St. Catharines’ Housing
Action Plan and develop a plan to suit the needs of Port Colborne.

Note: If not otherwise attached to the staff report, by-laws are published and available for review under
the “Consideration of By-laws” section of the Council agenda.
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Committee of the Whole Agenda January 22, 2018

JDM
AD

DE

BB RB
FD YD

BK JM

24.

Sherkston Shores — 490 Empire Road, Port Colborne Re: Request
to Hold Weekly Fireworks Display Events for 2018

That pursuant to section 6.1.1 of By-law 4989/45/07, the Council of
The Corporation of the City of Port Colborne authorize Sherkston
Shores to hold display fireworks events on the following dates:

e Saturday, June 16", 2018

e Saturday, June 234, 2018

o Saturday, June 30, 2018

e Saturday, July 7%, 2018

e Saturday, July 14t 2018

e Saturday, July, 21%t, 2018

e Saturday, July 281, 2018

e Saturday, August 4t 2018
e Saturday, August 11, 2018
e Saturday, August 18t 2018
e Saturday, August 25", 2018
e Saturday, September 1%t, 2018

That such approval be conditional on the issuance of a permit by the
Fire Chief, in compliance with By-law 4989/45/07 and payment of the
applicable fees;

That the following information be submitted to the Port Colborne Fire
and Emergency Services Department for review a minimum of two
weeks prior to the holding of the first event:

¢ A fireworks site plan but not limited to, separation distances to the
public and vulnerable areas, location from where the fireworks are
being fired, fallout zone, and direction of firing.

¢ Information concerning the floating platform from which the
fireworks are to be fired, including the platform size.

o Event description information is required including description of
fireworks, type, size and quantity.
- firing procedures, manual or electric
- emergency procedures
- traffic control plans

» A copy of the Fireworks Operator Certificate with Endorsements.

That Sherkston Shores be advised that as the Authority Having
Jurisdiction, the Port Colborne Fire and Emergency Services
Department will conduct spot site inspections and may revoke
approval for any violation of the Ontario Fire Code or the Explosives
Act prior to or during any one of the scheduled events.

285

Note; If not otherwise attached to the staff report, by-laws are published and available for review under
the “Consideration of By-laws” section of the Council agenda.

12




Committee of the Whole Agenda

January 22, 2018

JDM BB RB | 25.| Nancy Salvage and Fatima Shama, Executive Director, The Fresh | 287
Air Fund Re: Request for Proclamation of Fresh Air Fund Day,
AD- FD YD March 20, 2018
DE BK JM That March 201, 2018 be proclaimed as “Fresh Air Fund Day” in the
City of Port Colborne in accordance with the request received from
Nancy Salvage and Fatima Sham, Executive Director, The Fresh Air
Fund.
JDM BB RB | 26.| Janet Hope, Assistant Deputy Minister, Ministry of Housing Re: 289
Development Charges Rebate Program
AD FD YD
That the correspondence received from Janet Hope, Assistant Deputy
DE BK UM Minister, Ministry of Housing Re: Development Charges Rebate
- Program, be referred to the Director of Planning and Development.
JDM BB RB|27.| St.James and St. Brendan Church, Port Colborne Re: 331
~ International Women’s Day, March 7, 2018 - Guild Hall, 72
AD FD YD Charlotte Street, Port Colborne
DE BK JM That the International Women’s Day Event to be held at the Guild

Hall, 72 Charlotte Street, Port Colborne on March 7, 2018, is hereby
declared a municipally significant event in accordance with the
Municipal Alcohol Management Policy.

JDM

AD

DE

BB

FD

BK

RB

YD

JM

28.

Township of Wainfleet, Town of Grimsby, Town of Lincoln, Town
of Pelham and City of Welland Re: Notice of Passing of By-law to
Increase Composition of Regional Council — Addition of Member
for Township of West Lincoln

That the resolutions received from the Township of Wainfleet, Town of
Grimsby, Town of Lincoln, Town of Pelham and City of Welland
regarding the passing of By-law No. 2017-108 of the Regional
Municipality of Niagara, being a By-law to Increase the Composition of
Regional Council by Adding an Additional Councillor for the Township
of West Lincoln, be received for information.

Note: Atits meeting of December 11, 2017 Council supported the
passing of By-law No. 2017-108.

333

Note: If not otherwise attached to the staff report, by-laws are published and available for review under
the “Consideration of By-laws” section of the Council agenda.
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Committee of the Whole Agenda

January 22, 2018

JDM BB RB | 29. | Town of Fort Erie Re: Niagara Parks Commission’s Proposed 339
Expansion and Enhancement — Marina and Resort

AD FD YD Development at Miller’s Creek

DE BK M That the resolution received from the Town of Fort Erie Re: Niagara
Parks Commission’s Proposed Expansion and Enhancement —
Marina and Resort Development at Miller's Creek, be received for
information.

JDM BB RB | 30. | City of St. Catharines Re: Niagara Peninsula Conservation 343
Authority — Disclosure of Legal Costs

AD FD YD
That the resolution received from the City of St. Catharines Re:

DE BK M Niagara Peninsula Conservation Authority — Disclosure of Legal
Costs, be supported.

JDM BB RB | 31. | City of St. Catharines Re: Niagara Peninsula Conservation 345
Authority Requesting the Appointment of a Supervisor

AD FD YD

£ K UM That the resolution received from the City of St. Catharines Re:

D B Niagara Peninsula Conservation Authority requesting the Appointment
of a Supervisor, be received for information.
Note: Atits meeting of November 27, 2017 Council passed its own
resolution requesting the Premier of Ontario to immediately appoint a
Supervisor to take over the operations of the NPCA.

JDM BB RB | 32. | City of St. Catharines Re: Women in Local Government 347

AD  FD YD That the resolution received from the City of St. Catharines Re:

DE 8K JM Women in Local Government, be received for information.

JDM BB RB | 33. | City of St. Catharines Re: Gillian’s Place and National Day of 349
Action on Violence Against Women

AD FD YD
That the correspondence received from the City of St. Catharines Re:

DE BK M Gillian’s Place and National Day of Action on Violence Against
Women, be received for information.

Note: If not otherwise attached to the staff report, by-laws are published and available for review under
the “Consideration of By-laws" section of the Council agenda.
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Committee of the Whole Agenda January 22, 2018

JDM BB RB | 34. | Township of Wainfleet Re: Federal Changes to the Municipal 351
Councillor Taxation on Income — Request for Support

AD FD YD
That the resolution received from the Township of Wainfleet Re:

DE BK JM Federal Changes to the Municipal Councillor Taxation on Income, be
supported.
JDM BB RB | 35. | Town of Pelham Re: Town of Pelham’s Response to Regional 353

Audit Committee Resolution

AD FD YD

That the resolution received from the Town of Pelham Re: Town of
Pelham'’s response to Regional Audit Committee resolution, be
received for information.

I

DE BK JM

JDM BB RB | 36. | Town of Pelham in support of City of Port Colborne’s Resolution | 357
regarding The Region of Niagara Audit Committee
AD FD YD recommendation respecting the Town of Pelham

DE BK JM

That the correspondence received from the Town of Pelham
regarding the position of the City of Port Colborne regarding the
Region of Niagara Audit Committee recommendation respecting the
Town of Pelham, be received for information.

JDM BB RB | 37. | Township of Wainfleet in support of the City of Port Colborne’s 359
Resolution regarding the Region to Continue to Financially
AD FD YD Support Community Improvement Program

DE BK JM

That the resolution received from the Township of Wainfleet in support
of the City of Port Colborne’s resolution regarding the Region to
Continue to Financially Support Community Improvement Plan, be
received for information.

Note: If not otherwise attached to the staff report, by-laws are published and available for review under 1 5
the “Consideration of By-laws” section of the Council agenda.
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Fw: Lakeshore Road West property
Carrie Mcintosh  to 12/14/2017 09:03 AM
Cc; Evan Acs, Brenda Heidebrecht

Hi Dave,

| will consider this your formal request. Your correspondence has been added to the agenda package
being compiled for January 22, 2018 and your name is on the list of delegations.

Carrie MclIntosh
Deputy Clerk

Working smoke and carbon monoxide alarms save lives.
Flan your escape!

City of Port Colborne

66 Charlotte Street

Port Colborne, ON L3K 3C8
Telephone: 905-835-2900 x. 308

Fax: 905-835-2969

Email: carriemcintosh@portcolborne.ca

"Serving You to Create an Even Better Community"

This message, including any attachments, is privileged and intended only for the person (s) named above.
This material may contain confidential or personal information which may be subject to the provisions of
the Municipal Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act. Any other distribution, copying or
disclosure is strictly prohibited. If you are not the intended recipient or have received this message in
error, please notify us immediately by telephone, fax or email and permanently delete the original
transmission from us, including any attachments, without making a copy.

—- Forwarded by Carrie McIntosh/Port_Notes on 2017-12-14 09:02 AM -----

From: Evan Acs/Port_Notes

To: i

Date: -12- 3

Subject: Fw: Lakeshore Road West property
Carrie,

See email below from Dave (copied on this message).
Regards,
Evan

- Forwarded by Evan Acs/Port_Notes on 12/14/2017 08:51 AM ——-

From:

To: "planner@portcolborne.ca” <planner@portcolborne.ca>
Date: 12/13/2017 04:41 PM

Subject: Re: Lakeshore Road West property

Evan,

17



Thanks for contacting Carrie for me. | did indeed speak to her and dropped off my letter. |
explained the situation to her and went over the letter with her so she understood what it was
all about. She did advise me that this would be on the agenda for January 22nd. She also said |
could speak on the matter and I said | would be glad to clarify anything if council had any
questions. | know in the past | had to make a formal request to speak during a council meeting
will this be necessary this time as well?

If you rather | email Carrie with this question | gladly will if you can forward her email.

Thanks again for all of your help

Dave

From: planner@portcolborne.ca <planner@portcolborne.ca>
Sent: December 13, 2017 4:35 PM

To: Outlook Administrator

Subject: Re: Lakeshore Road West property

Dave,

| understand that Carrie Mclntosh called you today to discuss this. | trust
this is all taken care of.

Attached is the Notice of Decision fram last night's meeting. After the
20-day appeal period your minor varaince will be deemed final and binding
and a building permit can be issued. In the meantime, you can apply for a
building permit. Because no-one spoke at the meeting last night the chance
of any appeal being filed is very very slim.

Regards,

Evan Acs, MA, MSc
Planner
Planning & Development Department

City of Port Colborne

66 Charlotte Street

Port Colborne ON L3K 3C8
Office: 905-835-2900 ext. 502
Fax: 905-835-2939

Working smoke and carbon monoxide alarms save lives.
(See attached file: A32-17-PC NOD.pdf)
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To: "planner@portcolborne.ca" <planner@portcolborne.ca>
Date: 12/13/2017 07:53 AM
Subject: Lakeshore Road West property

Evan,

Just wondering if you had a chance to brief Ashley about the situation
with my property? | have the letter and copies for each councillor ready to
be submitted but just wanted to make sure that you had briefed her on what
was going on so that she wasn't blind sided.

Dave

19



To: City of Port Colborne Council
From: Dave & Anne-Marie Lallouet
Date: Nov 27, 2017

Re: 59R-15865 Lot Lakeshore Rd W

We, Dave and Anne-Marie Lallouet, are requesting a reimbursement of a Minor Variance
fee in the amount of $1,150 that we submitted with our application on Nov 15, 2017.

We were not fully informed of the restrictions surrounding the RD zoning of lot 59R-15865
on Lakeshore Rd West that we purchased in August 2017 after an 8 month process.

When we were thinking about purchasing the lot in January 2017, Dave went to the City of
Port Colborne Planning Department in order to alleviate any possible concerns about
building a home on the property since it was not yet severed. Mr. Dan Aquilina was kind
enough to explain the process of the severance application that would be initiated by the
seller. The NPCA involvement was also explained to Dave and Mr. Aquilina followed up
with an e-mail (see Att 1). Unfortunately, the RD zoning restrictions attachment was not
received by us and we were not aware the attachment was missing since there was no
mention of it in the email itself.

We were making every attempt to do our due diligence on this purchase. We were much
more concerned with the issues surrounding the NPCA. We then made sure our offer (see
Att 2) stated that any additional costs for the lot frontage minor variance that was pointed
out by Mr. Aquilina and any possible environmental studies required by the NPCA would be
incurred by the Seller. If we fully understood the zoning restrictions along with the other
frontage minor variance required for severance, we would have written that into our offer as
well. The RD zoning restrictions were not brought to our attention by the City, the Seller,
the Realtor or the Lawyer up to the time of the final sale.

Even in March 2017, when Dave emailed Mr Aquilina to inquire about the delay in the
Seller's severance application, it shows we were clearly unaware of the RD zoning
restrictions. We even mentioned the size of the house we were planning to build and our
possible concerns (see Att 3).

The final documents we received by The City when the severance was approved also do
not outline restrictions associated to the RD zoning (see Att 4). Any restrictions on the RD
zoning (ie: maximum10% lot coverage) should have been outlined at this point. It would be
an extremely small single detached dwelling under the current zoning.

The City's conditions that had to be met by the Seller took additional time and the sale was
not final until August 2017. Due to these delays we were only able to start our build process
in the Fall 2017. We continued to finalize our plans and it wasn't until Nov 6, 2017 (see Att
5) that we were advised of the restrictions on the zoning that conflicted with our plan.

We met with Evan Acs on Nov 10, 2017 in order to start the process of the required minor
variance application. He indicated that the zoning restrictions would have been taken care of

Page 1 of 2
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within the City wide new zoning bylaw changes and had been expected to be completed in
summer 2017. This would have negated our need for a Minor Variance application at this time.
The issue is that we are unable to wait for the zoning change to become final due to the
NPCA's ability of changing their mind and making the lot unbuildable. They told us there was no
guarantee if we waited too long and we would run the risk of losing our permission for

development. Once the minor variance is taken care of, we still have to submit our plans to the
City and NPCA.

We are requesting the refund as we believe this expense is not ethically ours to incur.

Sincerely,

0@(J/) 'j%“‘ dated_{_Jov 20, 2a;7

Dave Lallouet

MXM(,&LU/ dated A/W 24, 20 &z

Anne-Marie Lallouet

Page 2 of 2
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Re: Lakeshore road property - Outlook Administrator 2017-11-21, 7:56 PM

Re: Lakeshore road property

Outlook Administrator|i G

Fri 2017-01-27 4:40 PM

iodanaquilina@portcolborne.ca <danaquilina@portcolborne.ca>;

Dan,

Thanks so much for the quick response. So are you saying that the conservation authority won't be an issue? |
have requested that specific language be included in the contract that has been drawn up so that | can build on
the lot once it's severed. Speaking of which Mr. Badaway is responsible for all costs for the severance, survey
and if a variance is needed he would be responsible for that also as we have agreed on a price that states |
must be able to build on the lot when | take possession of the property.

Thanks again

Dave

From: danaquilina@portcolborne.ca <danaquilina@portcolborne.ca>
Sent: January 27, 2017 2:21 PM

To: Outlook Administrator

Subject: Re: Lakeshore road property

Hi Dave,

| should have checked the zoning earlier. The property is presently zoned Residential Development. Looking at the lot
frontage requirements, you would also need a minor variance to the lot frontage based on our conversation. A minor
variance application can be heard at the same time as the severance. Its normally a $750 application fee (plus review fees)
but when you combine a severance with it, its $1,550 application (plus review fees). At a preconsultation meeting the
agencies will confirm their fees. Just let me know if you would like me to schedule you(or Vance) to a meeting.

Dan Aquilina, MCIP, RPP, CPT

Director of Planning and Development
905-835-2901 Ext. 203

Fax: 905-835-2939
[www.portcolborne.ca]Jwww.portcolborne.ca
Plan Your Escape - Your Life Depends On It

"Serving You to Create an Even Better Community"

This message, including any attachiments, is privileged and intended only for the person(s) named above. This material may

hitps:/foutiook.live.com/owa/?viewmodel=ReadMessageltem&ltem...50LdgEAAV 1GgKYAAAA % 3D&IsPrintView=18&wid=45&ispopout=1&path= P? 2}? 2



Re: Lakeshore road property - Outlook Administrator f 2017-11-21, 7:56 PM

contain confidential or personal information which may be subject to the provisions of the Municipal Freedom of Information
and Protection of Privacy Act. As other distribution, copying or disclosure is strictly prohibited. If you are not the intended
recipient or have received this message in error, please notify us immediately by telephone, fax or email and permanently
delete the original transmission from us, including any attachments, without making a copy.

From:

To: "danaquilina@portcolborne.ca" <danaquilina@portcolborne.cax
Date: 01/27/2017 01:56 PM

Subject: Lakeshore road property

Dan 5

| forgot to ask you what the minimum setback would be from the property line to the closest part of the
house? Also thanks again for the insight into the conservation restrictions that may have an affect on the
process.
Enjoy the weekend
Thanks
Dave Lallouet

https://outiook.live.com/owa/?viewmodel=ReadMeassageltem&ltem...50LdgEAAV1GgKYAAAA% 3D &IsPrintView=1&wid=45&ispopout=1&path= Paﬁ 2of 2



7 o s Fw: Lakeshore road property
Dan Aquilina  to. Evan Acs, Heather Mahon

11/01/2017 04:21 PM

This message has been forwarded.

Dan Aquilina, MCIP, RPP, CPT
Director of Planning and Development
905-835-2901 Ext. 203

Fax: 905-835-2939
www.portcolborne.ca

Plan Your Escape - Your Life Depends On It
"Serving You to Create an Even Better Community"

This message, including any attachments, is privileged and intended only for the person(s) named above.
This material may contain confidential or personal information which may be subject to the provisions of
the Municipal Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act. As other distribution, copying or
disclosure is strictly prohibited. If you are not the intended recipient or have received this message in
error, please notify us immediately by telephone, fax or email and permanently delete the original
transmission from us, including any attachments, without making a copy.

----- Forwarded by Dan Aquilina/Port_Notes on 2017-11-01 04:20 PM -—--

From: Dan Aquilina/Port_Notes

To e e

Date: -U1- :

Subject: __Re:Lakeshore road property .
Hi Dave,

| should have checked the zoning earlier. The property is presently zoned Residential Development.
Looking at the lot frontage requirements, you would also need a minor variance to the lot frontage based
on our conversation. A minor variance application can be heard at the same time as the severance. Its
normally a $750 application fee (plus review fees) but when you combine a severance with it, its $1,550
application (plus review fees). At a preconsultation meeting the agencies will confirm their fees. Just let
me know if you would like me to schedule you(or Vance) to a meeting.

RD ZONE pdf

Dan Aquilina, MCIP, RPP, CPT
Director of Planning and Development
905-835-2901 Ext. 203

Fax: 905-835-2939
www.portcolborne.ca

Plan Your Escape - Your Life Depends On It
"Serving You to Create an Even Better Community"

This message, including any attachments, is privileged and intended only for the person(s) named above.
This material may contain confidential or personal information which may be subject to the provisions of
the Municipal Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act. As other distribution, copying or
disclosure is strictly prohibited. If you are not the intended recipient or have received this message in
error, please notify us immediately by telephone, fax or email and permanently delete the original
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Form 124 '_

lor usa in the Pravinca of Ontaric

B I R R e S s i e Y A A A R
In accordance with the terms and condifions of the Agrzement of Purchase and Sale dated the AT osirisssarisonn day of January ... :
20d7....... , regarding the obove property, I/Wea hereby confirm that |/We have fulfilled the condition(s) which read(s| as follows:

‘Thistoffer.is further conditional upon the Buyer satisfying themselves that the conservation authority will allow the
‘construction of a single family dwelling that is satisfactory to them and if a environment assessment is required the
cost will be the responsibility of the Vendor, and a minor variance to the lot frontage that will be required will be the
responsibility of the Vendor.

All other terms and conditions in the aforamentioned Agreement of Purchase and Sale to remain unchanged.

For the purposes of this Notice of Fulfillment of Condilion, “Buyer” includes purchaser, tenanl, and lessee, and “Seller” includes vendor, landlord, and
lessor, and "Agreement of Purchase and Scle” includes an Agreement to Lease

DATED a...... /:}{“LATCQé’ "&F/OE Ontario, at 7'2ébﬂ-mfpmhls ........ /{%....duy o /\‘7/?7 ............... 20/7
SIGNED, S hand and seal:

.......................... ® oarc. r:ﬂ.%u..m/. :7"// ‘2.
........... e DAreii?m_;_zfgf«__;_»2%_..7.

[Witness) {Seal)

b ) 2 G rd -
> & ‘ 24 /\/’ )
Receipt acknowledged at..... /('? ...... AATC/p.m, this......... ,,A/ e oy Ofe. /Qy TR ) W (. . by:
D = : . A4 g
Print Ncmlef,ﬁ./rz'-:f’2 : éJ/{,S/-‘?(/r , ceeeeees Signatyre: . . .. e
m The rodemarks REALTOR®, REATORS® and the REALTOR® logo are controlled by The Conadian Raal Estore
A Association [CREA] and identify real sslate professionals who are members of CREA. Used under licanse
8 2017 Ontano Real Estote Asscciation l("‘ORE.-\‘) All rights rasarved  This form was developed by OREA for the usa and raproduction
by its membars and licansees only Any other use or reproduction is prohibited except with priar writtan consant of OREA. Do not alter .
him prinfing 3¢ reproducing the slondord preset pormon OREA bears no fiability for your use of this farm Form 124 Ravisad 2016 Page 1 of 1
WEBForms® Dec/2016
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province. Your surveyor would set the grades of your house and
land-you would need to consult with them. Npca comments on
severance application and also reviews building permit to ensure
your far enough away from the wetland.

Sent from my iPhone

:53 PM, Outlook Administrator <d-
rote:

Dan,

Thanks for letting me know the severance hasn't been applied
for. I was told by the realtor that he was going to have a meeting
with Mr. Badaway about the application tomorrow. | have a
question about the severance and building permit. Does Mr.
Badaway have to have a grading survey done on the property to
sever it? Also will | have to have a grading survey done to obtain a
building permit? Seeing as the homes adjacent to mine will be at
least 50 feet from mine | don't believe there will be an issue with
water run off. I'm just wondering as | want to know how far out of
the ground my foundation can he? As this affects what my
end plan will be for the home. Will the NPCA need to sign off as to
offsets allowed from their property in order to have the property
severed or a building permit issued? If so who is responsible for
getting this? I'm.planning on a home around 1800 sgft. and don't
want to end up with a piece of property with offsets that won't
suit what | want to build.

Any info would be greatly appreciated.

Thanks
Dave
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Re: Lakeshore Road Property

danaquilina@portcolborne.ca

oo

Reply

Wed 03-08, 7:36 AM

Dave,

No, a grading plan is a building permit requirement. Grading plan
needs to be done by a surveyor or engineer. Npca doesn't own
any property, they just regulate the wetland on behalf of the

27



wil T ur rurRil CULBURNE
Municipal Offices

66 Charlotte Street

Port Colborne, Ontario

L3K 3C8

www.portcolborne.ca

PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT
Planning Division

April 8, 2017

Secretary-Treasurer

Port Colborne Committee of Adjustment
66 Charlotte Street

Port Colborne, ON L3K 3C8

Re: Application for Consent B06-17-PC
Lakeshore Road West
George Badawey

Planning Staff has reviewed the referenced application and offer the following comments for your
hearing on Tuesday April 11, 2017.

PURPOSE

IN THE MATTER OF AN APPLICATION by the agent George Badawey for the owners Claudette
and George Badawey, for consent under Section 53(1) of the Planning Act, R.S.0. 1990, Chapter
P. 13, so as to permit the conveyance of a parcel of land (Part 1) having a lot frontage of 20.11m
(65.97ft) on Lakeshore Road West for a total lot area of 858.1m?* (9236.81ft?) for a proposed
residential use and to retain a parcel of land (Part 2) having a total lot frontage of 122.03m
(400.36ft) on Lakeshore Road West for a total lot area of 4.952ha (12.23ac) for an existing
residential use.

PUBLIC COMMENTS

Notice of this application was circulated on March 28, 2017 to all properties within 60 metres and
a sign was provided to the applicant to post along the frontage of the subject property. No
correspondence from the public has been received as of the date of writing of this report.

AGENCY COMMENTS

Notice of this application was circulated on March 28, 2017 to required City Departments and
agencies. No correspondence has been received as the date of writing of this report.

PLANNING DIVISION COMMENTS x

Telephone: 905-835-2900 Fax: 905-835-2939 Email: plannaer@poricolborne.ca Page 1
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The application proposes to create a building lot for a future residential use. The property is

surrounded by single detached dwellings to the east, south and west. The property is shown on
the aerial image below.

s

City of Port Colborne Official Plan

Schedule “A”™: City Wide Land Use to the City of Port Colborne Official Plan designates the
property as Urban Residential and Environmental Protection Area. Land uses in the Urban

Residential designation include residential, neighbourhood commercial and community facilities
and institutional uses.

Consents to sever in areas designated Urban Residential must meet the following conditions:

a) A survey sketch prepared by a registered Ontario Land Surveyor is required.
b) Lots created through land severance shall have frontage on a public road.
c) Land severances on private roads are discouraged, except as provided for in the zoning
by-law or except on private roads in a registered Plan of Subdivision.
d) Notwithstanding Policies 3.2.4 (b) and 3.2.4 (c), land severances for technical reasons will
be permitted as a boundary adjustment:
i.  Where a part of a property is being deeded to an adjacent landowner,;
i. Foreasements;
ii. For rights-of-way; or The City of Port Colborne Official Plan
iv.  For any other purpose that does not create a separate lot.

Telephone; 905-835-2900 Fax: 905-835-2939 Email: planner@portcotborne.ca Page 2
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e) Development of more than three (3) new lots will require a Plan of Subdivision.

f)y Conditions may be imposed on the approval of land severances including but not limited
to; execution of a development agreement, payment of development charges, parkland
dedication, road widening, provision of water/wastewater servicing, Minimum Distance
Separation requirements and/or the requirements of a commenting agency addressing a
legitimate concern.

Residential uses are supported in the Urban Residential designation and both lots will have
frontage on a public road.

Lands designated Environmental Protection Area are those classified as Provincially Significant
Wetlands, Provincially Significant Areas of Natural and Scientific Interest, the Significant Habitat
of Threatened and Endangered Species and Natural Hazard Areas. The Environmental Protection
Area designation recognizes the location of a Provincially Significant Wetland on the northern
portion of Part 2. Part 1 is not designated Environmental Protection Area.

City of Port Colborne Zoning By-law 1150/97/81, as amended

The subject property is zoned Residential Development (RD) and Environmental Protection
(EP). The RD zone permits one single detached dwelling on one lot, uses, buildings and structures
accessory to the foregoing permitted use. Uses permitted in the “EP" zone are:

(a)  Agricultural uses, and buildings and structures accessory thereto saving and excepting
human habitation.

(b)  Dwellings existing at the date of the passing of this By-law and enlargement thereof and
uses, buildings and structures accessory thereto.

(¢)  Parks, playgrounds, tennis courts, lawn bowling greens, outdoor natural rinks, athletic
fields, golf courses, picnic areas and boat launching ramps, boat houses and docking facilities,
together with necessary accessory structures, saving and excepting human habitation.

(d)  Control structures to prevent flooding and/or erosion by water or wind.

The EP zone is limited to a portion of Part 2 and Part 2 is completely within the RD zone.

Part 2 contains an existing single detached dwelling. Part 1 is intended for one single detached
and accessory structures, which are permitted uses in the RD zone. Upon review of the
application, Planning staff note that the proposed lot does not meet the frontage requirements (30
metres) in the RD zone. Therefore, Planning staff have included the approval of a minor variance
for the reduced lot frontage as a condition of the severance.

Discussion

The proposed lot fabric is consistent with the lot fabric in the immediate neighbourhood and the
lot can be considered an infill lot.

Planning staff note that a portion of the driveway for 279 Lakeshore Road West is located on Part
1. Planning staff recommend that the driveway be removed from the property as a condition of the
severance to remove the existing encroachment or that the applicant obtain approval for an
easement.

Telaphone: 8905-835-2900 Fax: 905-835-2939 Email: planner@portcolborns.ca
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A

No negative impacts are anticipated as a result of the severance provided the suggested
conditions are required.

RECOMMENDATION

Given the information above, Planning Staff recommend application B08-17-PC be GRANTED
subject to the following conditions:

j

That the applicant obtain approval of a minor variance for a lot frontage of 20.11 metres on
Part 1.

That the existing driveway encroachment be removed from Part 1 or an easement be
obtained.

That a.Lot Grading Plan be prepared and submitted to the satisfaction of the City’s Drainage
Superintendent.

That the owner submit a letter to the City indicating that (s)he is aware of the requirements
of By-law 4748/130/05 which requires the collection of the parkland dedication at the time of
the building permit application based on the value of the property the day before issuance of
the permit and that (s)he will advise any future purchasers of this requirement.

That the applicant provides the Secretary-Treasurer with the deeds in ftriplicate for
conveyance of the subject parcel or a registrable legal description of the subject parcel,
together with a copy of the deposited reference plan, if applicable, for use in the issuance of
the Certificate of Consent.

That a final certification fee of $200 payable to the City of Port Colborne be submitted to the
Secretary-Treasurer.

For the Following Reasons:

) |

The application conforms to the policies of the City of Port Colborne Official Plan and will also
comply with the provisions of Zoning By-law 1150/97/81, as amended provided the variance
for lot frontage is approved

2. This decision is rendered having regard to the provisions of subsection 51(24) of the Planning
Act, R.S.0. 1990, c.P.13.
Prepared by: Approved and Submitted by:

: 7
é g@iOC%ﬁ&QJ ; ,ill}-- ;

Shannon Larocque, MCIP, RPP
Planner, Planning & Development

AAquilina, MCIP, RPP, CPT
Director of Planning and Development

Telephone: 905-835-2900 Fax: 905-835-2939 Email: planner@portcolborne.ca Page 4
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B AMENDED NOTICE OF DECISION .
COMMITTEE OF ADJUSTMENT (%)

i
| S

:

PORT COIBORNE

Application B06-17-PC April 13, 2017
IN THE MATTER OF The Planning Act, R.S.0., 1990, Chapter P13, Section 53(1);

AND IN THE MATTER OF the property legally known as Part of Lots 1 & 2 Concession 1 in the City of Port
Colborne Regional Municipality of Niagara; municipally known as 283 Lakeshore Road West.

AND IN THE MATTER OF AN APPLICATION by the agent George Badawey for the owners Claudette
and George Badawey, for consent under Section 53(1) of the Planning Act, R.S.0. 1990, Chapter P. 13,
so as to permit the conveyance of a parcel of land (Part 1) having a lot frontage of 20.11m (65.97ft) on
Lakeshore Road West for a total lot area of 858.1m? (9236.81ft?) for a proposed residential use and to
retain a parce! of land (Part 2) having a total lot frontage of 122.03m (400.36ft) on Lakeshore Road West
for a total lot area of 4.952ha (12.23ac) for an existing residential use.

That application B06-17-PC be granted subject to the following conditions:

1. That the applicant obtain approval of a minor variance for a lot frontage of 20.11 metres on Part 1.

2. That the existing driveway encroachment bel removed from Part 1 or an easement be obtained.

3, That a Lot Grading Plan be prepared and submitted to the satisfaction of the City's Drainage
Superintendent.

4. That the owner submit a letter to the City indicating that (s)he is aware of the requirements of

By-law 4748/130/05 which requires the collection of the parkland dedication at the time of the
building permit application based on the value of the property the day before issuance of the
permit and that (s)he will advise any future purchasers of this requirement.

5. That the applicant provides the Secretary-Treasurer with the deeds in triplicate for conveyance of
the subject parcel or a registrable legal description of the subject parcel, together with a copy of
the deposited reference plan, if applicable, for use in the issuance of the Certificate of Consent.

6. That a final certification fee of $200 payable to the City of Port Colborne be submitted to the
Secretary-Treasurer. FINAL AND BINDING
For the Following Reasons: e X ﬁ Jy@aﬂ%L___
SECRETARY-TREASURER
1. The application conforms to the policies of the City of Port Colborne Official Plan and will also

comply with the provisions of Zoning By-law 1150/97/81, as amended provided the variance for lot
frontage is approved

2. This decision is rendered having regard to the provisions of subsection 51(24) of the Planning Act,
R.S5.0. 1990, c.P.13.

ERTIFIED A TRUE COPY

DATED AT PORT COLBORNE this 11th day of April, 2017, wa

Hadon

Ay
Lot AR e

DECISIONS SIGNED:

" ‘Dan O'Hara" ‘Bea Kenny" “‘John Mayne” “Yvon Doucet”
Signature of Signature of Signature of Signature of Signature of
Member of Member of Member Member Member of
Committee Committee of Committee of Committee Committee
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CITY OF PORT COLBORNE

Municipal Offices
66 Charlotte Street
Port Colborne, ON L3K 3C8

PORT COIBORNE pereebome s

MAYOR'S OFFICE

November 6, 2017

/i
Dear Mr. Lalleugt:  {le. v

| am tryihg to wrap my head around the current restrictions impacting the residential
development of your property.

| am advised that at the February 9, 2017 pre-consultation meeting and upon the submission
of Mr. Badawey's Consent and Minor Variance applications to address the proposed deficient
lot frontage, you were informed that the Zoning By-law presently zones the property as
Residential Development (RD), which permits the use of a single detached dwelling. However,
as with every zone, the RD zone has provisions that regulate lot size, frontage, lot coverage
and specific yard setbacks from the dwelling to the property lines, | understand you were
provided a copy of the RD zone provisions.

The reduction of the lot frontage to a minimum of 20.11 metres was addressed in the Minor
Variance Application of the Badawey's.! However, side yard setbacks and lot coverage were
not. In the RD zone the minimum side yard setbacks are 5 metres and the maximum lot
coverage allowed is 10%. Under this zone, it would only allow a building width of 10.11 metres ,_~
and lot coverage of 85.79 metres (your property is 20.11 metres X 42.66 metres X 10%). This
would result in a small home, which | am not sure is your intent.

As an alternative, Planning staff has proposed to change the subject property from an RD zone
to a First Density Residential zone in the City's new Zoning By-law that would reduce side yard
setback distance to 1.5 metres and increase lot coverage allowance to a maximum of 40%
(see attached excerpts).

The new Zoning By-law was proposed at a Public Meeting before Council this summer and
staff are addressing all public and agency comments that were made before this returns to
Council for consideration. Staff's intent is to do this before year's end but we may have to be

aware of appeals to sections of the By-law that would hold up final enactment of the entire
Zoning By-law.

In your recent email you state “as for when I'm going to build, as soon as | can get the plans
approved by the City and the Conservation.” To date the city has not received any building
plans to approve.

Telephone: 905-835-2900 Ext. 301  Email: mayor@portcolborne.ca Fax: 905-835-2969
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N4 (5)
November 6, 2017
Dave Lallouet
Lakeshore Road Property

If you wish to proceed with building a dwelling that does not currently meet the requirements
of the RD Zone, you have the option of applying for a Minor Variance to address any non-
compliant provisions or wait until the new Zoning By-law is approved and no appeals have
been made and meet the provisions of the new First Density Residential zone. This latter
direction. could take some time but would-avoid further.applications for variance.

You also stated that “you can't proceed with my plans without the drainage plan as my architect
is waiting for this so he can proceed and the City is holding this up." A drainage plan was
submitted to us by Lanthier & Gilmore Surveying Ltd. dated May 10, 2017 showing an
approximate building envelope and this drainage plan (not the building envelope) was

approved on June 18, 2017 (copy attached). I'm not sure what further document your architect
requires.

On another note, | am advised that Mrs. Mahon.did not state that the property was not zoned
as a residential building lot. Under the current by-law, the property is in an RD zone which
permits residential development provided it meets the zoning requirements. RD zoning is
generally used on larger parcels of land.

Finally, | would recommend that you meet with one of the City's Planners to address any further
concerns you have.

Sincerely,

/1&, M. L,W,

John Maloney ,
Mayor
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City ¢fF Port Colborm.

CEIVED

- K okinconmisestmont IAN 11 2018
rom: "Ray Khanna" <ray @kingswayinvestments.com> . _—
To: <cityclerk@portcolborne.ca> SORPORATE SERY_lL.f:'.
Date: 2018-01-11 03:09 PM PEPARTMER
Bubject: 224 Mitchell Street, Port Colborne

Attention: Carrie Mclntosh

This will confirm that on January 22", 2018, our client Aldo Martino/Jaamss Investment Corporation,
the mortgagee in possession of the referenced property (224 MITCHELLE STREET, PORT COLBORNE),

is appealing the Fire Department Inspection Fees of FOUR HUNDRED AND FIFTY-NINE DOLLARS AND
FORTY-FIVE CENTS ($459.45) per day for SEVENTY-TWO (72) days totalling

THIRTY-THREE THOUSAND, NINE HUNDRED AND NINETY-NINE DOLLARS AND THIRTY CENTS
($33,999.30).

Should you require further information or have any questions, please do not hesitate in contacting me
at either of the numbers listed below.

Ray Khanna, CPMB

Kingsway Investments
Broker/Owner

www.kingswayinvestments.com

direct(905)526-6300| cell(505)541-1212

fax(905)526-7200| email ray@kingswayinvestments.com
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YN Department: Chief Administrative Officer
PORT COLBORNE
Report Number: 2018-12 Date: January 22, 2018

Subject: Unattached Patient List
1) PURPOSE

This CAO generated report is provided to seek direction from Council with respect to the
list of unattached patients that is maintained by City staff.

2) HISTORY, BACKGROUND, COUNCIL POLICY, PRACTICES

In recent years, Port Colborne has experienced a shortage of Family Physicians and, as
Physicians retire from their practices, residents have been left “unattached” from a Family
Physician.

The City has addressed the problem of unattached patients by maintaining a list of
patients and providing the list to Physicians who open new practices or join existing
practices in Port Colborne.

The provincial Ministry of Health (MOH) also offers a resource that refers Ontarians that
do not have a Physician to a family health care provider who may be accepting new
patients. This service is called Health Care Connect (HCC). Physicians who accept
patients from HCC receive a financial incentive. HCC is administered by the Hamilton
Niagara Haldimand Brant Local Health Integration Network (LHIN).

3) STAFF COMMENTS AND DISCUSSIONS

The City has taken an active role in Health Services to provide a benefit to the community
and its residents. One of the activities the City engages in is maintaining a list of
unattached patients who are waiting for a Family Physician to accept them as a patient.

The City’s list of unattached patient currently includes nearly 900 individuals.
There are several reasons that staff recommend reviewing this practice, including:

-~ By maintaining a list, City staff become custodians of residents’ personal information,
there is a privacy concern.

- Safety issues resulting from threats against City staff — there have been credible
threats made against City staff responsible for the unattached patient list as a result
of individuals becoming upset about their medical care. There is a safety concern.

- By maintaining a list, the City assumes liability for errors made in matching patients
with Physicians.
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- Staff only provide the names on the list to Physicians who open a practice within Port
Colborne. Some of the patients on the list may be able to travel to see a Physician in
a neighbouring municipality.

- HCC will connect patients with practitioners in other municipalities if the patientis able
to travel.

- HCC assigns a Care Connector to patients who register to use the service. This is a
nurse who will work with Family Physicians and nurse practitioners who are accepting
new patients.

- According to the MOH, 98.7% of the patients registered with HCC from the local LHIN
since 2009 have been connected with a health care provider.

At its November 20, 2017, meeting, the City’s Medical Education, Recruitment and Health
Services Committee received a verbal report from the Chief Administrative Officer and
Health Services Coordinator and approved the following motion:

Moved by M. Robinson
Seconded by Mayor J. Maloney

That the CAO be directed to prepare a report to be presented to Council in order
that a new system for rostering patients can be implemented in the new year.
CARRIED.

Based on these factors, staff believe that it would be an advantage to the City’s residents
and unattached patients to transition the list the City maintains to the HCC service that is
maintained by the LHIN. This would entail referring future requests to be added to the list
to HCC and communicating with existing people on the list that the City will be
transitioning their information to HCC.

If Council decides to pursue this course of action a robust communication strategy will be
required o assist patients who are currently on the list as well as those who attempt to
get on the list in the future. The process of registering with HCC is fairly easy and can be
done online or over the telephone, but some assistance from staff may be necessary to
ease the ftransition for patients who are not comfortable with the process of being
registered to HCC.

4) OPTIONS AND FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS

a) City Staff contihue to maintain a list of unattached patients.

Council could direct staff to continue to maintain the list of unattached patients. Staff
believe that there could be liability in continuing this role as the City is the custodian of
residents’ personal information which can lead to privacy concerns. There is also the
potential for liability due to errors. In addition, HCC tries to match unattached patients to
practitioners beyond Port Colborne while City staff do not. (NOT RECOMMENDED).

Chief Administrative Officer Report 2018-12 Page 2 of 3

38



b) Transition to Health Care Connect

Council could direct staff to cease maintaining a list of unattached patients. This would
require contacting patients who are currently on the list and referring them to HCC.
Patients who contact staff to be added to the list in the future would also be referred to
'HCC. The City would need to be prepared to assist some patients with the new process
through communication materials and one-on-one assistance to individuals who require
assistance. (RECOMMENDED).

5) COMPLIANCE WITH STRATEGIC PLAN INITIATIVES
Health Care is a top priority within the corporate Strategic Plan.
6) ATTACHMENTS

None.

7) RECOMMENDATION

That staff be directed to transition the patients on the unattached patient list to Health
Care Connect and cease maintaining a list of unattached patients.

8) SIGNATURES

Prepared on January 12, 2018 and
respectfully submitted by:

C. Scott Luey
Chief Administrative Officer

Chief Administrative Officer Report 2018-12 Page 3 of 3
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Fire and Emergency Services Department

PORT COLBORNE

Report Number: 2018-11 Date: January 22, 2017
SUBJECT: PORT COLBORNE OPERATIC SOCIETY PYROTECHNICS

1) PURPOSE

The Fire Chief prepared this report as the Port Colborne Operatic Society wishes to use
pyrotechnics as part of their program during show dates. The City of Port Colborne’s

current regulating by-law with regards to sale and setting off fireworks does not allow
the use of pyrotechnics indoors.

2) HISTORY, BACKGROUND, COUNCIL POLICY, PRACTICES

The use of pyrotechnics is not permitted under By-law No. 4989/45/07. The Operatic
Society has requested the use of them during show dates starting February 17, 2018.

The Fire Prevention Officer and the Fire Chief met with représentatives of the Operatic
Society late 2017, at Lakeshore Catholic High School to review their proposal. The
proposed pyrotechnics is commonly known as flash paper (short duration open flame).

The Fire Department reviewed the use, extent of use and the location of use, as follows:

a) limited use during each performance

b) curtains are flame resistant (certified)

c) safety person will be in place trained on the use of fire extinguishers
d) City will be named as additional insured ($5,000,000)

3) STAFF COMMENTS AND DISCUSSIONS

The Fire Chief is of the opinion that the Operatic Society can take the necessary safety
precautions to ensure that the flash paper can be used during their shows. The actual
flame is short-term in nature and should an unfortunate incident occur, a person trained
could provide immediate assistance.

Additionally, the storage of flash papers requires that it be wet and only flash paper for
immediate use be prepared for use through drying.

The Fire Department has offered to assist in ensuring the safe storage and use and to
train society members as safety people and in the use of fire extinguishers.
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4)  OPTIONS AND FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS

i) To reject the request and not permit the use of flash paper.

Not recommended.
i) Allow the Port Colborne Operatic Society to use flash paper providing they meet
the requirements of the fire department.
a. proper storage of flash paper
b. trained personnel on site to act as a safety person
c. name the City of Port Colborne as additional insured for $5,000,000
d. limit the use of flash paper during performances
e. Catholic School Board to provide the City will a letter authorizing the use of

flash paper

Financial Considerations

The City of Port Colborne will be named as additional insured during all performance
dates.

5) COMPLIANCE WITH STRATEGIC PLAN INITIATIVES
Not applicable. |

6) ATTACHMENTS

None.

7) RECOMMENDATION

That By-law No. 4989/45/07 being a By-law for prohibiting and regulating the sale of
fireworks and setting off fireworks in the City of Port Colborne be waived for the Port
Colborne Operatic Society for their 2018 production, and further;

That the Port Colborne Operatic Society ensure it meets all of the requirements as set
out in Fire Department report 2018-11 as well as any other requirements that may be
required {o ensure public safety.

8)  SIGNATURES

Prepared on January 11, 2018 Reviewed and respectfully submitted by:
Thomas B. Cartwright, C. Scott Luey,

City Fire Chief Chief Administrative Officer

Fire and Emergency Services, Report No. 2018-11 Page 2 of 2
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Y (
_m_ Department: Planning and Development
PORT COLBORNE

Report Number: 2018-04 Date: January 22, 2018

SUBJECT: Stopping Up and Closing of Part of Victoria Street
1) PURPOSE:

The purpose of the report is to inform Council of a proposal to stop up and close a part
of Victoria Street. The public will first have an opportunity to voice any objections to the

proposed closure prior to Council’s future consideration. Notice has been advertised for
four consecutive weeks as per City Policy.

2) HISTORY, BACKGROUND, COUNCIL POLICY, PRACTICES

Victoria Street was established as a 60’ wide road allowance west of the Welland Canal

and east of EIm Street (previously known as Cranberry Street). It was created on a Plan
of Subdivision (Plan 3) in 1913 for the Village of Humberstone:
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The portion proposed to be closed is located between Omer Avenue and Sherwood

Forest Lane. Other portions of Victoria Street were closed by by-laws approved in the
1980s.



3) STAFF COMMENTS AND DISCUSSIONS

Staff were consulted and see no use or purpose for the City to maintain ownership as a
road allowance (outlined in hashed line):

4) OPTIONS AND FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS:

a) Do nothing.

This report is for informational purposes only.

b) Other Options

This report is for informational purposes only.

5) COMPLIANCE WITH STRATEGIC PLAN INITIATIVES
N/A

6) ATTACHMENTS

None.

7) RECOMMENDATION

That Report 2018-04 with respect to the Stopping Up and Closing of Part of Victoria
Street be accepted for information.

8) SIGNATURES

Prepared on January 4, 2018 by: Reviewed and respectfully submitted by:

(quilina, MCIP, RPP, CPT C.ScottLuey '
Director of Planning and Development Chief Administrative Officer
Department of Planning & Development Report No.: 2018-04 Page 2 of 2
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G 2. Planning & Development Department

-

" PORT COLBORNE

Report Number: 2018-05 Date: January 22, 2018

SUBJECT: Affordability/Financial Hardship and Planning Application Fees
1)  PURPOSE:

The purpose of the report is to provide Council with information regarding affordability
options for planning application fees.

2) HISTORY, BACKGROUND, COUNCIL POLICY, PRACTICES

At Council's November 14, 2017 meeting, the following minutes were recorded:

“(9) Planning Application Fees - Ability to Pay (Kenny)

Councillor Kenny informed that the delegate that withdrew their request to speak
was going to request the fee for a minor variance be waived, due to financial
hardship. Councillor Kenny requested staff prepare a report regarding
affordability options related to payment of planning application fees for those
experiencing financial hardship.”

3) STAFF COMMENTS AND DISCUSSIONS

The current fee by-law for planning applications was approved by Council on May 8,
2017 through By-law 6473/40/17. Prior to, Council last implemented and updated
application fees on November 28, 2011 through By-law 5718/149/11.

Planning fees have regard for the “anticipated cost” of providing the processing service.
Setting appropriate fees is a difficult task as some applications are more complex than
others and require more time spent on review and processing. Certain application fees
may not be fully recovered and other applicants may be paying more. At the end, with
any fee by-law, an average and balance needs to be targeted, set and ideally met.

Staff provided a breakdown to process a standard minor variance application to support
its proposed $1,150 fee:

STANDARD APPLICATION FOR MINOR VARIANCE

Description of Task Time Rate
(Hours) | (2017)

Consultation, review & completion of application
including property authorization, fees, sketches, | 3 Clerk $74.64
preparation for Commissioner, advise of hearing date, | | Planner $32.02
location, time and meeting protocol

Create and set up new file, prepare Treasury Chart 2 Clerk $49.76
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Preparation of Notice 2 Clerk $49.76

Consult with Planning Staff - Review of Notice 5 Planner $16.01

Preparation of poster and notification for pick-up, | 3 Clerk $74.64

preparation of affidavits, instruction guidelines

Create mailing buffer, prepare mailing addresses, labels Clerk $87.08

and mail Notice/application to neighbours and agencies 3.5

Site investigation by Planning staff 5 Planner $16.01

Preparation & review of Planning Report 2.5 Planner $80.05
5 Director $31.11

Preparation of CoA packages and delivery 1.5 Clerk $37.32

Preparation for meeting, resolutions for decisions, extra | 2 Clerk $49.76

correspondence

Respond to public inquiry 1 Clerk $24.88

Create “pdf” files and upload Notices & Agenda & | 1.5 Clerk $37.32

minutes

Attendance at meeting, read reports/correspondence, take | 2 Clerk $49.76

minutes

Committee (5) member hearing attendance $375

($80 Chair - $75 Member)

Prepare minutes after meeting 1 Clerk $24.88

Prepare and mail notices of decision 1 Clerk $24.88

Prepare record of payment to members & notify Accounts | 1 Clerk $24.88

Payable, create cheque

Prepare & mail Final and Binding Notices 1 Clerk $24.88

TOTAL | 30.5 $1184.64

Port Colborne’s planning fees have historically not been set at 100% cost recovery and,
in fact, remain at the lower end in comparison to other municipalities in the Niagara
Region.

If a variance from the zoning by-law is requested, the time to process can fluctuate if
more than one variance to the by-law is needed or it results in opposition. However, if
only one variance is requested it can lead to greater staff time spent regardless of
distance or percentage varied. For example, the by-law requires that a deck can only
encroach 1m to a side lot line and a variance request is for the deck to be located closer
it can actually result in more staff time based on neighbour opposition. To base
application fees on the amount of relief requested is difficult and unpredictable.

Department of Planning & Development Report No.: 2018-05 Page 2 of 4
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The distance of a variance request does not necessarily result in a reduction of
processing service. A 1m reduction verses a 2m reduction yields no reduction is costs —
a variance is a variance in this particular example. If a variance application requests
more than one zoning provision (lot coverage, setbacks, height, location, etc.) to be
relieved it would result in more planning review. This becomes the example of an

average and balance (some pay more others less than the true cost incurred by the
City).

Afforbility Options — Financial Hardship

To entertain an affordability option presents challenges — how is affordability measured
and determined? How is one person deternined to have an inability to pay versus
someone that does? Is it reviewing bank accounts, assets, T4 slips, paycheques,
government assistance proof? Living accomodations? Mortgage payments or rent? Is it
set at a barometer? Are other City fees (lot maintenance, building, marina, Vale, etc.)

going to be affected by using the same approach? Should Council set aside budget
monies annually for any reductions?

No other municipality has been found to have a planning application affordability option.
Fees are based primarily on staff time to process and consider the cost of doing

business on every planning application. Any reduction in a fee is then absorbed by the
general taxpayer to cover costs.

The City currently reduces planning applications by 50% if located in a CIP area as a
way to promote redevelopment/development.

Payment Plan

A payment plan may be considered on a case by case basis with the Finance Division.
The Treasurer or Manager of Revenue can arrange a reasonable payment plan if the
fees cannot be paid up front with the application. The arrangements must be in writing
and signed by all parties. Any default on payments would void the arrangement and the

balance to be added to taxes for collection with interest.
4) OPTIONS AND FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS:

a) Do nothing.

This is recommended as Planning Application Fees are in place to cover prooeésing
costs.

b) Other Options

Council can reconsider any planning application fee that it has approved under By-law
6473/40/17 but in doing so should have a line item in the budget annually in place for
revenue reduction in the Planning Division.

5) COMPLIANCE WITH STRATEGIC PLAN INITIATIVES

N/A

Department of Planning & Development Report No.: 2018-05 Page 3 of 4
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6) ATTACHMENTS
None.
7) RECOMMENDATION

That report 2018-05 with respect to Affordability/Financial Hardship and Planning
Application Fees be received for information.

8) SIGNATURES

Prepared on January 4, 2018 by: Reviewed and respectfully submitted by:

‘Direstor of Planning and Development  Chief Administrative Officer

Reviewed by:

] = / ’ )
M:w‘/ﬁd %‘ /jbv—*\_—k

Peter Senese
Director of Corporate Services

Department of Planning & Development Report No.: 2018-05 Page 4 of 4
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Engineering & Operations Department
Engineering Division

0

PORT COLBORNE A
Report Number: 2018 — 01 Date: January 22, 2018

SUBJECT: Project No.: 2017-02, Municipal Drain Maintenance for 2018
1) PURPOSE:

This report was prepared by Alana Vander Veen, Acting Drainage Superintendent under
the authorization of Chris Lee, Director of Engineering & Operations. The purpose of the
report is to inform Council of the outcome of the tender proceedings for the
maintenance of a number of Municipal Drains within the City and to obtain approval
from Council to award the contract to the lowest bidder.

2) HISTORY, BACKGROUND, COUNCIL POLICY, PRACTICES

Prior to preparing tender documents, staff conducted a review of all Municipal Drains.
Based on complaints received, staff field observations and the knowledge of most
recent maintenance, a priority list was established and through further refinement from
field surveys and condition ratings for outlets and structures, tender documents were
prepared. Those documents called for cleaning and maintenance on four Municipal
Drains and their watersheds. Those Municipal Drains on the priority list and scheduled
for Maintenance/Cleaning in 2018 are listed below:

Howie Municipal Drain

Fred Pietz Municipal Drain
Cook’s Municipal Drain

Qil Mill Creek Municipal Drain

It is intended to conduct these works under the currently available reports for each
drain. Using the existing Engineer's Report for each drain allows the municipality to
undertake such maintenance/cleaning and then, using the existing Reports Assessment

Schedule, initiate billings to those properties within the watershed as detailed within
each report.

Bid documents were prepared and a public tender procedure was initiated. During the
tender process a total of four (4) contractors took out documents. At the time of tender
closing, three (3) contactors submitted pricing. The results of that tender opening are
listed below. The entire tender process and opening proceedings adhered to policies
and past practices as previously adopted and endorsed by Council.

3) STAFF COMMENTS AND DISCUSSIONS

The documents prepared by Staff for the 2017 Municipal Drains Maintenance Tender
called for:

» cleaning of the existing Municipal Drains to the individual design as detailed within
each report, including any maintenance corridors;

+ replacement or cleaning of any existing culverts along the Drain;

» restoration of the drain banks as may be required, including any tree removals.
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This project has the potential to extend into 2019, pending permit approvals and any
restrictions that may result from weather. Billings to the individual watersheds will be
initiated after the completion of work, once all final costs have been determined for each
Watershed.

All submitted tender documents were checked for errors or omissions and corrected
pricing has been listed below:

PRICES AS QUOTED FOR Project 2017-02, Drain Maintenance Cleaning

1) Anthony's Excavating Central Inc. $ 396,258.90
2) CRL Campbell Construction & Drains $ 763,484.85
3) Geo. Barns & Sons Limited $ 960,270.80

As indicated above, the lowest tender pricing was submitted by Anthony’'s Excavating
Central Inc. of Wellandport, Ontario. The tender document as submitted by Anthony’s
Excavating was found to be complete in all aspects with regard to specifications, details
and format.

The contract items and quantities which were listed within the contract documents are
based on the original report details. Those details relate to channel widths and depths,
(used to determining excavation requirements) along with all structures, and their sizing
and type, (used to determine cleaning or replacement quantities) and also any
vegetation, removals or access restrictions which may have been detailed in those
original Engineers Reports (i.e. Buffer strips along channels).

Budget numbers are not included within the text of this report. The actual quantities and
costs incurred by the works will be monitored by staff. All costs related to these works
will be assumed by the municipality during construction. The final quantities and their
associated costs will establish the final overall costs for each Watershed then be directly
charged back to the individual properties within the Watersheds, as per the Assessment
Schedule detailed within the Engineer’s Report for each drain.

Anthony's Excavating has carried out works of this nature in the past within the City of
Port Colborne and is currently the contractor for several other municipalities within the
Region.

It is staff's recommendation that Council accept the lowest priced tender as submitted
by Anthony's Excavating and award to them the Municipal Drains Maintenance
Program. This will allow the City to enter into an agreement with Anthony’s Excavating
Central Inc. and to initiate construction as soon as permits and scheduling allow.

4) OPTIONS AND FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS:

a) Do nothing.

If the tender is not accepted, no maintenance of these Municipal Drains will occur,
leading to future drainage issues. Also the municipality would not be meeting its
responsibilities under the Drainage Act, RSO 1990.

Report No.: 2018-01, Municipal Drain Maintenance for 2018 Engineering & Operations Page 2 0f 3
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b) Other Options

If the tender is accepted, maintenance and cleaning of these Municipal Drains will take
place, lessening the chance of drainage issues.

5) COMPLIANCE WITH STRATEGIC PLAN INITIATIVES
N/A

6) ATTACHMENTS

None.

7) RECOMMENDATION

That Project # 2017-02, Municipal Drain Maintenance and Cleaning, be awarded to
Anthony’s Excavating Central Inc., of Wellandport, Ontario, for the total tendered price
of $396,258.90, plus applicable taxes. Staff is directed to utilise the bid items as listed
within the awarded Tender Document, in such a manner as to complete all works as
may be required.

That a contract by-law, whereby the City enters into a Contract Agreement with the
contractor be prepared.

That funding for Project # 2017-02 be financed on an interim basis, under GL Accounts
# 3-560-33226-1510, 3-560-33210-1510, 3-560-33236-1510, 3-560-33217-1510, 3-560-
33206-1510, 3-560-33220-1510, 3-560-33221-1510, 3-560-33218-1510 and that staff
be authorized to initiate billings back to each Municipal Drain’'s Watershed at the

completion of each Watershed’'s works and upon receipt of the 1/3 Grant from
OMAFRA. '

8)  SIGNATURES

Prepared on December 201, 2017 by: Reviewed by:

/ZZ//Z/// A % /}L(Z’—]A/éi //’Z 9

Alana Vander Veen Chris Lee

Survey/CAD Technologist Director of Engineering & Operations
Acting Drainage Superintendent

Reviewed by: Reviewed and respectfully submitted:

Ly ‘
Lo ’

Peter Senese CrSeott Luey
Director of Corporate Services Chief Administrative Officer
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Engineering & Operations Department

L Public Works Division

PORT COLBORNE

Report Number: 2018-03 Date: January 22, 2018

SUBJECT: Request for Proposal 2017-14; Playground Replacement — Rose
Shymansky Memorial Park & Sunset Park

1) PURPOSE:

This report was prepared by Stefanie De Cicco, Construction Inspector, under the
direction of Steve Shypowskyj, Manager of Projects & Design. The purpose of this report
is to inform Council of the outcome of the Request for Proposal proceedings that were
initiated for the Playground Replacement ~ Rose Shymansky Memorial Park and Sunset
Park and to obtain approval from Council for the award of the contract.

2) BACKGROUND, COUNCIL POLICY, PRACTICES

Council approved the allocation of $73,200 from the 2017 Parks Capital Reserve Account.
Subsequently, staff was directed to prepare tender documents for the replacement of
playgrounds at Rose Shymansky Memorial Park. Due to timing, staff requested pricing
for the replacement of the Sunset Park playground as this is marked for replacement in
2018 and is awaiting approval in the 2018 budget.

3) STAFF COMMENTS AND DISCUSSIONS

The Request for Proposal Project 2017-14 was publicly posted and closed on Tuesday

November 14, 2017 at 2:00 pm with two companies submitting proposals. A budget limit
of $73,200 was set for this project, with the remaining amount reserved for finish grading
materials. A budget limit of $75,000 has been requested for the 2018 budget review for
the Sunset Park playground replacement.

The following Companies submitted documents:

o New World Park Solutions Inc.
¢ PlayPower LT Canada Inc.

As was stated within the RFP documents, a matrix was applied in evaluating the various
proposals submitted. The matrix for that assessment addressed the following items:

Technical Expertise and Resources

Similar Work Experience and Local Expertise
Sub-Contract List

Project Schedule

Statement E

Project Understanding

Statement F

Methodology (Work Plan, Innovation, Schedule, etc.)
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Bidders were also asked to supply documentation of IPEMA (International Play
Equipment Manufacturers Association) certification of structure components. In the
interest of public playground safety, IPEMA provides third party certification that validates
a manufacturer's certification of conformance to the CAN/CSA-Z614-14 Children
Playspaces and Equipment. Credit was given as part of matrix evaluation.

A panel of parks staff reviewed the various proposals as submitted and subsequently
rated each proposal, based on the matrix. The analysis below indicates the staff
recommended submission that was rated for acceptability. The entire RFP process
adhered to policies and past practices as adopted and endorsed by Council.

The prices submitted are as follows:

- New World Park Solutions
e Rose Shymansky Memorial Park $69,219.00
e Sunset Park $69,873.00
 Total $139,092.00

- PlayPower LT Canada Inc. (Recommended)
¢ Rose Shymansky Memorial Park $69,490.04
¢ Sunset Park $69,073.38
Total $138,563.42

Upon approval of the 2018 budget, both bidders’ submissions will have come in under
budget, it is the recommendation of staff at this time that Council accept the RFP as
submitted by PlayPower LT Canada Inc. and award the playground replacement to them
for a total price of $138,563.42. It is the opinion of staff, through the scoring process, that
PlayPower LT Canada Inc. is offering the best finished product for the monies quoted and
that their proposal offers the best experience, equipment and play value for the price.

PlayPower LT Canada Inc. are a common builder of playgrounds not only in Niagara
municipalities, but throughout Canada and the U.S. and have previously supplied and
installed playgrounds in H.H. Knoll Park, Humberstone Shoe Park, Vimy Park and
Centennial Park in the City of Port Colborne.

Pursuing this action will allow the City to enter into an agreement with PlayPower LT
Canada Inc. and to initiate an order for construction as soon as details and scheduling
allow, with an anticipated completion date of May, 2018.

4) OPTIONS AND FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS:

a) Do nothing.

If Council chooses not to award the project to PlayPower LT Canada Inc. the playgrounds
at both Rose Shymansky and Sunset parks would not be replaced. As the proposed
pricing will be within budget upon the 2018 budget approval it is not recommended to
proceed with this route.

Engineering & Operations Report No.;2018-03 ‘ Page 2 of 3
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b) Other Options

Should Council accept the recommendation of staff to award Playpower LT Canada Inc.
the contract for new playgrounds will be constructed at both Rose Shymansky and Sunset
Parks. This is the recommended option.

Council could direct re-tendering or choosing an alternative proponent. The evaluation
team worked diligently in the evaluation of each submission to obtain the results outlined
above. (not recommended)

5) COMPLIANCE WITH STRATEGIC PLAN INITIATIVES

None.

6) ATTACHMENTS

None.

7) RECOMMENDATION

That Contract #2017-14, Playground Replacement at Rose Shymansky Memorial Park
and Sunset Park be awarded to PlayPower LT Canada Inc. of Paris, Ontario, for the total
tendered price of $138,563.42; applicable taxes not included; and

That the Director of Engineering & Operations be authorized to issue a purchase order to
PlayPower LT Canada Inc.; and

That the appropriate by-law be prepared and submitted for execution by the Mayor and
City Clerk.

8) SIGNATURES

Prepared on December 19, 2017 by: Reviewed by:

S’L\ LA Q_C C D /% 5~
Stefanie De Cicco Steve Shypowskyj
Senior Construction Inspector Manager of Projects & Design

Reviewed and respectfully submitted by: ~ Reviewed by:

C. Scott Lue ‘ Peter Senese
Chief Administrative Officer Director of Corporate Services
Engineering & Operations Report No.:2018-03 Page 3 of 3
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] " Engineering & Operations Department
PORT COLBORNE Engineering Division

Report Number: 2018-07 Date: January 22, 2018

SUBJECT: Request for Installation of a Flashing “Children Crossing” Light on
Fielden Avenue near Franklin Avenue

1)  PURPOSE

This report was prepared by Jim Huppunen, Manager of Engineering Services, in
reference to the request for the installation of a flashing “children crossing” light on Fielden
Avenue near the intersection of Fielden and Franklin Avenues, referred to the Engineering
& Operations Department at the November 14, 2017 Council meeting.

2) HISTORY, BACKGROUND, COUNCIL POLICY, PRACTICES

The following request was raised by Councillor Kenny during the Councillors’ ltems
portion of the November 14, 2017 Regular Meeting of Council:

Installation of a Flashing Light on Fielden Avenue (Kenny)

Councillor Kenny requested the installation of a flashing “children crossing” light
near the intersection of Fielden and Franklin Avenues. The Manager of
Engineering advised that staff would investigate and report back.

Fielden Avenue is a north-south local residential road with a speed limit of 50 km/h with
stop controls at Borden Avenue to the south and Royal Road to the north of Franklin
Avenue. Franklin Avenue is an east-west local residential road with a speed limit of 50
km/h with stop controls at Fielden Avenue.

The entrance to Reservoir Park is on the east side of Fielden Avenue approximately 40
metres south of Franklin Avenue. There currently is a Playground Ahead Sign (W¢-3)
installed on a streetlight light pole approximately 40 metres north of Franklin Avenue.

There is no Playground Ahead Sign installed south of Franklin Avenue or the Reservoir
Park entrance.

3) STAFF COMMENTS AND DISCUSSIONS

Staff reviewed the area in regards to the request for a flashing “children crossing” light
near the intersection of Franklin Avenue on Fielden Avenue. There is the potential of a
blind spot on Fielden Avenue in the south bound direction when approaching Franklin
Avenue and the entrance to Reservoir Park.

Since the existing Playground Ahead sign is installed on a streetlight pole, the installation
of an amber flashing beacon is not possible, however, if the sign is moved to a signpost,
the flashing amber light could be installed on top of the signpost.
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Staff recommend that a new signpost be installed just north of the existing streetlight to
accommodate the Playground Ahead warning sign and the flashing amber beacon. This
would address the request for a flashing “children crossing” light.

The costs associated with this work would be approximately $2,500 for the new sign,
signpost and flashing amber beacon, which could be accommodated within existing
budgets. This would be a solar powered flashing beacon, similar to other units installed
throughout the City at stop sign ahead warning signs, for example.

Staff also recommend that a Playground Ahead sign be installed approximately 90 metres
south of the Reservoir Park entrance in order to advise northbound traffic on Fielden
Avenue that there is a park ahead and there could be the presence of children on or near
the road travelling to or from the park. The costs associated with the installation of a new

warning sign south of the Reservoir Park entrance on Fielden Avenue would be
approximately $500.

Therefore, the approximate total cost to address the request from Councillor Kenny would
‘be $3,000 which could be accommodated from existing Operational Budgets.

4) OPTIONS AND FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS

a) Do nothing.

Leave current signage in place on Fielden Avenue.

b) Other Options

Install a new signpost and Playground Ahead warning sign north of Franklin Avenue and
" anew signpost and Playground Ahead warning sign south of Franklin Avenue on Flelden
Avenue at a cost of approximately $3,000.

5) COMPLIANCE WITH STRATEGIC PLAN INITIATIVES

Not applicable.

6) ATTACHMENTS

None.

7) RECOMMENDATION

That staff be directed to proceed with the installation of a new Playground Ahead warning
sign including a signpost and amber flashing beacon on Fielden Avenue approximately
40 metres north of Franklin Avenue and a hew Playground Ahead warning sign including

a signpost on Fielden Avenue approximately 90 metres south of the Reservoir Park
entrance; and

That the approximate cost of $3,000 for this work be drawn from the 2018 Operating
Budget GL #0-500-74220-3215.
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8) SIGNATURES

Prepared on January 11, 2018 by: Reviewed by:
/%/%//
Jim Huppunen, A.Sc.T. Steve Shypowskyj, C.E.T.
Manager of Engineering Services Acting Director of Engineering &
Operations
Reviewed by: : Reviewed and respectfully submitted by:

Peter Sonese C. Scott Luey !
Director of Corporate Services Chief Administrative Officer

Engineering & Operations Department, Engineering Division, Report No.: 2018-07
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M) - Engineering & Operations Department
PORT C. BORNE Engineering Division

Report Number: 2018-08 Date: January 22, 2018

SUBJECT: Request for Stop Sign Installation — Knoll Street at Highland Avenue
1) PURPOSE:

This report was prepared by Jim Huppunen, Manager of Engineering Services in
reference to the request from Councillor Danch for the installation of a stop sign on Knoll
Street at Highland Avenue. The request was referred to the Engineering & Operations
. Department at the November 14, 2017 Council meeting.

2) HISTORY, BACKGROUND, COUNCIL POLICY, PRACTICES

The following request from Councillor Danch was raised during the Councillors’ Items
portion of the October 10, 2017 Regular Meeting of Council:

Installation of a Stop Sign at Oakwood Street and Highland Avenue (Danch)
Councillor Danch requested the installation of a stop sign at the intersection of
Oakwood Street and Highland Avenue. The Director of Engineering and
Operations advised that a report will be presented to Council in the near future.

Further investigation into the request led to the clarification below, presented by
Councillor Danch and raised during the Councillors’ ltems portion of the November 14,
2017 Regular Meeting of Council:

Traffic Study at the Intersection of Knoll Street and Highland Avenue (Danch)
Councillor Danch requested- the City’s ftraffic study include a review of the
intersection of Knoll Street and Highland Avenue due to concerns about speeding.
The Director of Engineering and Operations advised that the request will be
referred to staff.

Staff spoke with Councillor Danch recently to further clarify the request for stop signs on
Knoll Street. The clarification received is that there seems to be a high number of
pedestrians crossing Knoll Street along Highland Avenue due to the location of St. John
Bosco Catholic Elementary School at the west end of Highland Avenue and there are
speeding concerns on Knoll Street.

Knoll Street is a north-south local residential road with a speed limit of 50 km/h with stop
controls at Main Street West to the north and at Brady Street to the south of Highland
Avenue. Highland Avenue is an east-west local residential road with a speed limit of 50

km/h with stop controls at Oakwood Street to the west, at Knoll Street and at Steele Street
to the east of Knoll Street.

There is a sidewalk along the north side of Highland Avenue extending from St. John
Bosco Catholic Elementary School at the west to Steele Street at the east. There is a
Crossing Guard on duty during the school year on Steele Street as Steele Street is an
arterial north-south road.
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When pedestrians reach Knoll Street while travelling east-west on Highland Avenue, they
do not have a protected crossing. A protected crossing would consist of either a Crossing
Guard, a stop controlled intersection or an Intersection Pedestrian Signal.

3) STAFF COMMENTS AND DISCUSSIONS

Staff reviewed the area in regards to the request for a stop sign on Knoll Street at Highland
Avenue. There is potential for a high number of pedestrians to cross Knoli Street due to
the close proximity of St. John Bosco Catholic Elementary School. The sightlines were
checked and there were no obstructions within the sight triangles required at this
intersection.

During the review of accident reports for the intersection, it would appear that there have
been no accidents within the past 10 years. After a review of files staff do not have any
recent vehicle or pedestrian counts at the intersection.

At this time staff are unable to recommend the installation of a stop sign on Knoll Street
as there are pre-defined warrants.

in order to determine the feasibility of an all-way stop restriction, the existing conditions
must be measured against a set of pre-defined warrants, which have been established at
the Provincial level. This municipality has adopted the warrants as set out by the Ontario
Traffic Conference, and the accepted standard for traffic engineers throughout North
America, as listed in the Ontario Traffic Manual. The Manual also lists the following
conditions when all-way stop sign control should not be used:

1.  Where pedestrian protection, in particular school children, is a prime concern, as the
concern can usually be addressed by other means. (such as crossing guards)

2. Asaspeed control device.

3. Onroadways on which progressive signal timing exists.

4. On roadways within urban areas having a posted speed in excess of 60 km/h.

5. Atintersections having less than three and more than four approaches.

6. At offset or poorly defined intersections.

7. On truck or bus routes unless in an industrial area or where two such routes exist.

8. On multi-laned approaches where a parked or stopped vehicles will obscure the stop
signs.

9. Where traffic would be required to stop on grades.

10. As a means of deterring through traffic in a residential area.

11. Where visibility of the signs is hampered by curves or grades and a safe stopping
distance of less than 100 m exists.

12. Where any other traffic device controlling right-of-way is permanently in place within
250 m with the exception of a yield sign.

An All-Way Stop may be used under the following conditions:

e Only at the intersection of like roadways with the same number of lanes and similar
volumes. A total vehicle volume exceeding 350 vehicles for the highest hour recorded,
on streets not considered either arterial or collector streets.

e At locations with visibility problems.
¢ Atlocations with a high accident frequency where less restrictive measures have been
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tried and found inadequate. (typically four per year for a three-year period resulting
from right angle or turn type collisions)

¢ As an interim measure when traffic control signals are warranted but cannot be
installed immediately.

¢ As a means of providing an introductory period to accustom drivers to a reversal of
stop signs from one road to the other at the intersection.

All-way stop signs should not be installed to slow traffic to protect pedestrians (this is a
law enforcement issue) or to encourage vehicles to use another route because of the
inconvenience, as studies have found that they achieve the opposite result. Studies
conducted in Ontario indicate that all-way stop controls have the following effect:

e Slows traffic down only within a few hundred feet or so on each side of the
intersection. Most drivers accelerate back to their original speed (or faster to make
up for lost time) just past the intersection.

e Tends to cause motorists to not obey stop signs when they consider them
unnecessary. One study indicates that 78% of all vehicles do not come to a full legal
stop at stop signs.

+ Leads pedestrians to a false sense of security since they feel sure that they are
protected by the signs.

e Increases the noise level and pollution at the intersection as vehicles accelerate
away.

¢ Consumes a large amount of additional fuel from stopping and accelerating. (A Metro
Toronto Transportation Energy Study estimated that 50% to 80% of the existing 800
all-way stops in Metro did not meet the warrants and were unnecessary. It estimated
that 32 million litres of fuel per year could be saved with removal of the signs.)

Based on the above information, staff recommend hiring a consultant to conduct vehicle
and pedestrian counts at Knoll Street and Highland Avenue during the school year in
order to determine if the intersection meets the warrants for an all-way stop control (And
Crossing Guard Warrants). The consultant will also be able to provide recommendations
on how to address the concerns raised at the intersection. The approximate cost for this
analysis is expected to be less than $5,000. There are funds available in existing Traffic
Safety budgets to accommodate this work.

4) OPTIONS AND FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS:
a) Do nothing.

Leave current signage in place on Knoll Street.

b) Other Options

i. Install new stop signs on Knoll Street at Highland Avenue including appropriate
line painting at an approximate cost of $4,000. (not recommended)

ii. Hire an additional Crossing Guard to allow for controlled crossing of pedestrians
during the school year during school hours. The hourly rate of a Crossing Guard
is $15/hr plus 11% payroll burden which equals $12,250 for the year. An additional
$350 would be required to outfit the Crossing Guard for a total of $12,600.

(not recommended)
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ii. Direct staff to issue a Request for Quotation for vehicle and pedestrian counts
including a recommendation from a consultant at an approximate cost of $5,000.
(recommended)

5) COMPLIANCE WITH STRATEGIC PLAN INITIATIVES
Not applicable.
6) ATTACHMENTS

None.

7) RECOMMENDATION

That staff be directed to proceed with the issuance ‘of a Request for Quotation for vehicle
and pedestrian counts including recommendations at the intersection of Knoll and
Highland for an approximate cost of $5,000; and

That the approximate cost of $5,000 for this work be drawn from the 2018 Budget GL #0-
540-74610-3205

8) SIGNATURES

Prepared,6n January 11, 2018 by: Reviewed/% .

JiHuppunen, A.Sc.T. : Steve Shypowskyf,C.E.T.

Manager of Engineering Setrvices Acting Director of Engineering &
Operations

Reviewed by | Reviewed and respectfully submltted by:

She/fe[i; nCPSO \ "0 \ASYV .

Supervisor, By-law Enforcement Division ~ C. Scott Luey /
Chief Administrative Officer

Reviewed by:

w R M
Peter Senese

Director of Corporate Services
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Engineering & Operations Department
PORT COLBORNE Engineering Division

Report Number: 2018 -10 Date: January 22, 2018
Subject: Port Colborne Operations Centre Equipment Purchase: Mobile Column
Lifts

1)  PURPOSE

This report was prepared by Steve Shypowskyj, Manager of Projects & Design, in order to

report on the quotation proceedings for the purchase of six new mobile column lifts for the
Port Colborne Operations Centre.

2) HISTORY, BACKGROUND, COUNCIL POLICY, PRACTICES

A request for funding in the 2017 Capital Budget for the purchase of six new mobile column
lifts to furnish the Port Colborne Operations Centre was submitted and approved.

The equipment is to be utilized by the City mechanics to conduct routine maintenance and
repairs on fleet vehicles. Mobile column lifts allow a wide range of vehicle from passenger
vehicles to fire trucks and heavy equipment to be raised off of the ground and placed on jack
stands allowing mechanics to essentially create a mobile working space where needed.

A number of specifications were requested during the quotation process to suit the City’s
needs such as the possibility to lift the heaviest vehicle being Port Colborne Fire’s tanker truck.
All of Engineering & Operations equipment will also be able to be lifted with the mobile column
lifts alone or with supplemental attachments such as backhoes, front loader, and grader.

At the time of tender closing, formal, completed tenders were received from four suppliers as
noted below. The submitted tender documents have been checked for errors or omissions
and corrected pricing is listed below:

1) Vertical Systems $ 63,899.00 (Challenger)
2) Garage Supply Contracting Inc. $ 69,312.58 (Challenger)
3) ISN Canada Group Inc. $ 72,000.00 (Rotary Lift)
4) Novaquip Lifting Systems Inc. $ 77,199.96 (Stertil Koni)

Each quotation document as submitted was found to be complete in all aspects with regard

to specifications, details and format. The approved budgeted amount for the six mobile column
lifts is $72,000.

3) STAFF COMMENTS AND DISCUSSIONS

Upon submission of the quotations staff reviewed the specifications of each lift presented by
the above mentioned bidders. Specifications were very similar across models with the main
differences being lifting capacity, cycles per charge, and synchronization height between
multiple lifts. Staff then arranged viewings for all of the lifts submitted to have a hands-on
demonstration and question long-term users about their experiences with each particular unit.
Additional input to build quality, internal components, access to readily available parts and
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potential downtimes due to warranty work were all taken into consideration.

The Challenger model has limited presence within Ontario according to the supplier and, until
January 2018, a similar set was unavailable to be viewed. Staff dealt with Vertical Systems
(the low bidder) as two bidders supplied quotations on the same model. Upon review of the
lifts, staff determined that they were well built and had a user friendly LCD interface. Staff also
learned that there is not a supply of readily available parts in Ontario which would cause
extended down time if parts are needed for repair. Issues with the supplied batteries were
common with the two companies that staff contacted and the supplier recommended
upgrading both batteries in each unit to a Gel-Tech style battery before delivery; an additional
cost of approximately $500 per unit. Longevity of the units, which is a major factor in the
decision, is undetermined as staff and the bidder were unable to find a source with long-term
use. Since this report was delayed until January 2018, the supplier has applied a 3% increase
to the submitted cost which they have the right to apply at this time. This would increase each
unit’s cost by $319.50. With these additional fees the total purchase price would amount to
$68,814.97 plus applicable taxes. Due to the lack of availability of parts, limited product usage,
and lack of user experience/history, staff do not recommend these units.

Stertil Koni has made mobile column lifts for more than 20 years and provide a well-built
product that is easy to use. Multiple companies were contacted and visited to gather their
experience with their Stertil Koni mobile lifts. Overall feedback was good from long-term users
and users of the new models as well. The submitted cost for these units is the downfall and
why staff are not recommending them.

Rotary Lift has a strong presence in Ontario and staff were able to contact a number of
companies who use this product daily and attend multiple viewings. All contacts
recommended their units and commented on the great build quality, ease of use and quick
access to parts. The supplier has offered to upgrade the quoted units to their newest model
at no additional charge which has an additional 8001b lift capacity per column along with the
addition of previously upgradable accessories (weight gauge, wireless handheld remote, and
lock light safety beacon). These accessories are recommended as they make lifting a vehicle
safer by measuring how the weight is being distributed and the ability to stand back to ensure
the vehicle is being lifted at all corners within a certain tolerance. Staff had a representative
from ISN Canada Inc. attend the Operations Centre to verify use in the intended location due
to floor slope and they confirmed the lifts will work in the bays intended.

Two other lift manufacturers were submitted as alternative units to the bidder's main bid. Both
manufacturers were determined not to have wireless capabilities and would need to be
connected through a communication wire to each column. These manufacturers were

eliminated and not evaluated as the specification called for wireless communication between
all mobile columns.

Through this process, staff determined that the Rotary lift supplied by ISN Canada Group Inc.
to be the best solution to fulfill the City’s purposes at the Operations Centre and recommend

proceeding with the purchase of the Rotary Lift mobile columns. These lifts offer a comparable

1 year parts and labour warranty along with limited warranties on parts, corrosion, and
hydraulics for 5 years; 2 year electronics, and lifetime carriage rollers.

4) OPTIONS AND FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS:
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a) Do nothing.

Council has already approved the 2017 Capital Budget request for the purchase of six mobile
column lifts as they are required for day to day fleet maintenance. Staff does not recommend

this action.
b) Other Options

Direction to purchase equipment from the lowest submitted bid can be given. Staff has spent
a significant amount of time comparing specifications and visiting sites that currently operate
all of the brands presented in the quotations to make an educated recommendation to Council.
Staff does not recommend this action.

5) COMPLIANCE WITH STRATEGIC PLAN INITIATIVES
Not applicable.

6) ATTACHMENTS

None.

7) RECOMMENDATION

That Quotation #2017 — 07, the supply of Six Mobile Column Lifts be awarded to ISN

Canada Group Inc., for the total quoted price of $72,000 (plus any applicable taxes);
and

That funding for the equipment be financed under Account 3-500-33593-3401, Port
Colborne Operations Centre Capital Expenditures; and

That staff be authorized to issue a Purchase Order to ISN Canada Group Inc. for
$72,000.00 (plus any applicable taxes).

8) SIGNATURES
Prepared on January 11, 2018 by: Reviewed by: ‘
sy
o&';::/ M,c%d—" J&a\,—a\__&

Peter Senese
Acting Director of Engineering & Operations Director of Corporate Services

Reviewed and respectfully submitted by:

C. Scott Luey
Chief Administrative Officer
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Community & Economic Development Department

PORT COLBORNE

Report Number: 2018-02 Date: January 22, 2018
SUBJECT: Franchise Agreement Renewal — Enbridge Gas Distribution Inc.
1) PURPOSE:

The purpose of this report is to obtain approval for the City to enter into a Franchise Agreement
Renewal with Enbridge Gas Distribution Inc.

2) HISTORY, BACKGROUND, COUNCIL POLICY, PRACTICES

Provincial legislation requires a municipality enter into a Franchise Agreement with the gas
distribution company serving the municipality. In 1998, the City of Port Colborne entered into a
long-term Franchise Agreement with Enbridge Gas Distribution Inc. (formerly The Consumer's
Gas Company). The agreement will expire on August 17, 2018. As a result, Enbridge Gas

Distribution Inc. (“Enbridge”) has requested the City commence the process to renew the
Agreement.

3) STAFF COMMENTS AND DISCUSSIONS

Under the legislation, the renewal must follow the process approved by the Ontario Energy
Board in 2001. The renewal process is lengthy and can take between six and eight months to

complete. In order to avoid any lapse in franchise coverage, Enbridge has requested the City
begin the renewal process at this time.

In accordance with the process approved by the Ontario Energy Board, passage of a Council
resolution (in the form outlined in the “recommendation” section of this report) is required at this
time. Enbridge will then forward the resolution to the Ontario Energy Board for approval. Once

approved, Enbridge will provide direction to present the by-law and Franchise Agreement
Renewal for Council's approval and execution.

Further information about the process is outlined in the correspondence received from Enbridge
(including the Franchise Agreement Renewal documents, a copy of the existing By-law and
Agreement, as well an overview of the renewal process). These documents are attached as
Appendix “A”.

4) OPTIONS AND FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS:

a) Do nothing.

Not applicable.

b) Other Options

Council may defer or decline the Franchise Agreement Renewal. These options are not
recommended.
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5) COMPLIANCE WITH STRATEGIC PLAN INITIATIVES
Not applicable.
6) ATTACHMENTS

Appendix “A”" — Correspondence from Enbridge Gas Distribution Inc. and renewal documents.

7) RECOMMENDATION

That the Council of The Corporation of the City of Port Colborne (“Council’) approves the form
of the draft by-law (including the Franchise Agreement forming part thereof), attached hereto,
and authorizes the submission thereof to the Ontario Energy Board for approval, pursuant to
the provisions of Section 9 of the Municipal Franchises Act;

That Council requests the Ontario Energy Board to make an order dispensing with the assent
of the municipal electors of the attached draft by-law (including the franchise agreement

forming part thereof), pursuant to the provisions of Section 9(4) of the Municipal Franchises
Act; and

That By-law 733/50/78 and By-law 3665/91/98 be repealed.

8) SIGNATURES

Prepared on November 28, 2017 by: Reviewed by:
fg..—_m < “Wﬁw‘:} v “M
Ashley Grlgﬁ‘% : Peter Senese

Director of Community & Economic Director of Corporate Services
Development

ReVIewed and respectfully submitted by:

C. Scot Luey "
Chief Administrative Officer
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Appendix "A" to Community and Corporate Services,
Clerk's Division Report 2017-182

/ . Marh Witian el F10-750.7038 Enhridee o Disiribuiion
4’) %5 3 gﬁ@g Sr. Addvisar Municipal A i Mark.wilzon « b idye.com 300 Consunees Raned

Nosth York. Outavio M2 103

Canada
September 19, 2017 City of Port Cotour -
epiembet mﬁa&:ﬁﬁ:vw
Ms., Ashley Grigg, Clerk MOV 10 200
City of Port Colborne CORPORATE SERVICES:
66 Charlotte Street DEPARTMENT
Port Colborne, ON L3K 3C8 .

Dear Ms. Grigg:

Re: Franchise Agreement between the Corporation of the City of Port Colborne
(the “Municipality”) and Enbridge Gas Distribution Inc. (“Enbridge”)

I-am writing to draw your attention to the fact that on August 17,2018 the Franchise
Agreemerit between the City of Port Colborne and Enbridge (formerly The Consumers'
Gas Company Ltd.) will expire,

Provincial legislation requires a Franchise Agreement between the municipal
corporation and the gas company serving that municipality. In April 2001, the Ontario

Energy Board ("Board") issued the revised 2000 Model Franchise Agreement to serve
as a model for such agreement.

As a result, Enbridge and the Munimpallty need to commence the process to renew a
long-term Franchise Agreement using the approved model. The Mun/C/paI Franchises
Act, R.S.0. 1990, ¢. M.55, as amended (the "Act") is the legislation that gives Enbridge
the right to supply and distribute gas to the inhabitants of your Municipality.

Please be assured that Enbridge is renewing all municipal Franchise Agreements in
Ontario using the model agreement.

To-assist you in this matter, | am enclosing the following documents for your information
and review:

1. Renewal Documents: A copy of the proposed Resolution, draft By-Law, 2000
Model Franchise Agreement and a document to guide you through the renewal
process;

2. Historical Background: A copy of the current By-Law 3665 and Franchise
Agreement passed and dated August 17, 1998. As well as a copy of the
Certificate of Public Convenience and Necessity (EBC 58 and EBC 58A) that

Enbridge holds for the Town of Port Colborne dated July 25, 1967 and July 7,
1976.

i
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Ms, Griggy
Date
Page 2

3. Reference Document: A copy of the Gas Franchise Handbook, (an explanatory
supplement to the 2000 Model Franchise Agreement).

4. Map: Enbridge Customer Density Map for the Municipality
This entire process can be quite lengthy and may take up to six or eight months. My
letter to you, almost a year in advance, is to ensure we avoid any lapse in franchise
coverage.
Please, therefore, review the Guidelines for Processing Franchise Agreements and
arrange to have the Resolution passed by Council in a timely manner so that the
regulatory approval process can commence,
| am available to attend at Council, or meet with you further, at any time.
Enbridge looks forward to its continued service within the City of Port Colborne.
Sincerely,
Mark Wilson
Senior Advisor Municipal Affairs

Encls.

cc.  His Worship, Mayor John Maloney
Scott Leuy, Chief Administrative Officer
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THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF PORT COLBORNE

RESOLUTION

Moved by

Seconded by

BE IT RESOLVED:.

1. That this Council approves the form of draft By-law (including the franchise
agreement forming part thereof) attached hereto and authorizes the submission
thereof to the Ontario Energy Board for approval pursuant to the provisions of
Section 9 of the Municipal Franchises Act.

2, That this Council requests the Ontario Energy Board to make an order
dispensing with the assent of the municipal electors of the attached draft By-law

(including the franchise agreement forming part thereof) pursuant to the
provisions of Section 9(4) of the Municipal Franchises Act.

Certified to be a true copy of a resolution passed by the Council of the Corporation
of the City of Port Colborne onthe  day of , 20

Clerk

73




THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF PORT COLBORNE
(“CORPORATION")

BY-LAW NUMBER

A BY-LAW TO AUTHORIZE A FRANCHISE AGREEMENT
BETWEEN THE CORPORATION AND
ENBRIDGE GAS DISTRIBUTION INC.

~ WHEREAS the Coungil of the Corporation deerms it expedient to enter into the aftached franchise
agreement with Enbridge Gas Distribution Inc.;

AND WHEREAS the Ontario Enérgy Boatd by its Order isstied pursuant to The Musicipal
Franchises Act ofi the day of ,20  hasapproved the terms dnd coditions upon
which did the period for which the franchise provided for in the attached agreement is proposed.to be pranted, and

has declared and ditected that the assent of the municipal electors in respect’of this By-law is not riccessary;

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ENACTED:

1. Thatthe attached franchise agreement between the Corporation and Enbridge Gas Distribution Inc. is

hereby authorized and the franchise provided for therein is hereby granted.

2. That the Mayor and the Clerk are hereby authorized and instructed on behalf of the Corporation to
enter into and execute under its corporate seal and deliver the aforesaid agréement, which agreement is

hereby incorporated into and shall forim part of this By-law.

Read the first and second time this day of ,200 .

Clerk Reeve

Read the third time and ENACTED AND PASSED this day of , 20
Clerk Reeve




DATED this day of

THE CORPORATION OF THE
CITY OF PORT COLBORNE

- and -

ENBRIDGE GAS DISTRIBUTION INC.

FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

ENBRIDGE GAS DISTRIBUTION INC.
500 Consumers Road

North York, Ontario

M2J 1P8

Attention: Regulatory Affairs Department

-4 -

, 20
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Model Franchise Agreement

THIS AGREEMENT effective this day of , 20
BETWEEN: The Corporation of The City of Port Colborne hereinafter called the
"Corporation”
- and -

Enbridge Gas Distribution Inc. hereinafter called the “Gas Company"

WHEREAS the Gas Company desires to distribute, store and transmit gas in the
Municipality upon the terms and conditions of this Agreement;

AND WHEREAS by by-law passed by the Council of the Corporation (the
"By-law"), the duly authorized officers have been authorized and directed to
execute this Agreement on behalf of the Corporation;

THEREFORE the Corporation and the Gas Company agree as follows:

Part | - Definitions

1. In this Agreement:

a. “decommissioned” and "decommissions” when used in connection with
parts of the gas system, mean any parts of the gas system taken out of
active use and purged in accordance with the applicable CSA
standards and in no way affects the use of the term 'abandoned’
pipeline for the purposes of the Assessment Act;

b. "Engineer/Road Superintendent" means the most senior individual
employed by the Corporation with responsibilities for highways within
the Municipality or the person designated by such senior employee or
such other person as may from time to time be designated by the
Council of the Corporation;

¢. "gas" means natural gas, manufactured gas, synthetic natural gas,
liquefied petroleum gas or propane-air gas, or a mixture of any of
them, but does not include a liquefied petroleum gas that is distributed
by means other than a pipeline;

d. “gas system" means such mains, plants, pipes, conduits, services,
valves, regulators, curb boxes, stations, drips or such other equipment
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as the Gas Company may require or deem desirable for the
distribution, storage and transmission of gas in or through the
Municipality;

e. "highway" means all common and public highways and shall include
any bridge, viaduct or structure forming part of a highway, and any
public square, road allowance or walkway and shall include not only
the travelled portion of such highway, but also ditches, driveways,
sidewalks, and sodded areas forming part of the road allowance now
or-at any time during the term hereof under the jurisdiction of the
Corporation;

f. "Model Franchise Agreement" means the form of agreement which the
Ontario Energy Board uses as a standard when considering
applications under the Municipal Franchises Act. The Model Franchise
Agreement may be changed from time to time by the Ontario Energy
Board;

g. "Municipality" means the territorial limits of the Corporation on the date
when this Agreement takes effect, and any territory which may
thereafter be brought within the jurisdiction of the Corporation;

h. "Plan" means the plan described in Paragraphv 5 of this Agreement
required to be filed by the Gas Company with the Engineer/Road
Superintendent prior to commencement of work on the gas system,
and

i. whenever the singular, masculine or feminine is used in this

Agreement, it shall be considered as if the plural, feminine or
masculine has been used where the context of the Agreement so
requires.

Part Il - Rights Granted
To provide gas service:
The consent of the Corporation is hereby given and granted to the Gas

Company to distribute, store and transmit gas in and through the
Municipality to the Corporation and to the inhabitants of the Municipality.
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To Use Highways.

Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement the consent of the
Corporation is hereby given and granted to the Gas Company to enter upon
all highways now or at any time hereafter under the jurisdiction of the
Corporation and to lay, construct, maintain, replace, remove, operate and

repair a gas system for the distribution, storage and transmission of gas in
and through the Municipality.

Duration of Agreement and Renewal Procedures.

a.

or

If the Corporation has not previously received gas distribution services,

the rights hereby given and granted shall be for a term of 20 years
from the date of final passing of the By-law.

If the Corporation has previously received gas distribution setvices, the
rights hereby given and granted shall be for a term of 20 years from
the date of final passing of the By-law provided that, if during the 20-
year term this Agreement, the Model Franchise Agreement is changed,
then on the 7th anniversary and on the 14th anniversary of the date of
the passing of the By-law, this Agreement shall be deemed to be
amended to incorporate any changes in the Model Franchise
Agreement in effect on such anniversary dates, Such deemed
amendments shall not apply to alter the 20-year term.

c. Atany time within two years prior to the expiration of this Agreement,

either party may give notice to the other that it desires to enter into
negotiations for a renewed franchise upon such terms and conditions
as may be agreed upon. Until such renewal has been settled, the
terms and conditions of this Agreement shall continue, notwithstanding
the expiration of this Agreement. This shall not preclude either party
from applying to the Ontario Energy Board for a renewal of the
Agreement pursuant to section 10 of the Municipal Franchises Act.
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5.

Part Il - Conditions

Approval of Construction

a.

The Gas Company shall not undertake any excavation, opening or
work which will disturb or interfere with the surface of the fravelled
portion of any highway unless a permit therefor has first been obtained
from the Engineer/Road Superintendent and all work done by the Gas
Company shall be to his satisfaction.

Prior to the commencement of work on the gas system, or any
extensions or changes to it (except service laterals which do not
interfere with municipal works in the highway), the Gas Company shall
file with the Engineer/Road Superintendent a Plan, satisfactory to the
Engineer/Road Superintendent, drawn to scale and of sufficient detail
considering the complexity of the specific locations involved, showing
the highways in which it proposes to lay its gas system and the
particular parts thereof it proposes to occupy.

The Plan filed by the Gas Company shall include geodetic information
for a particular location:

i. where circumstances are complex, in order to facilitate known
projects, including projects which are reasonably anticipated by
the Engineer/Road Superintendent, or

ii. when requested, where the Corporation has geodetic information
for its own services and all others at the same location.

The Engineer/Road Superintendent may require sections of the gas
system to be laid at greater depth than required by the latest CSA
standard for gas pipeline systems to facilitate known projects or to
correct known highway deficiencies.

Prior to the commencement of work on the gas system, the
Engineer/Road Superintendent must approve the location of the work
as shown on the Plan filed by the Gas Company, the timing of the work
and any terms and conditions relating to the installation of the work.

In addition to the requirements of this Agreement, if the Gas Company
proposes to affix any part of the gas system to a bridge, viaduct or
other structure, if the Engineer/Road Superintendent approves this
proposal, he may require the Gas Company to comply with special
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conditions or to enter info a separate agreement as a condition of the
approval of this part of the construction of the gas system.

g. Where the gas system may affect a municipal drain, the Gas Company
shall also file a copy of the Plan with the Corporation's Drainage
Superintendent for purposes of the Drainage Act, or such other person
designated by the Corporation as responsible for the drain.

h. The Gas Company shall not deviate from the approved location for any
part of the gas system unless the prior approval of the Engineer/Road -
Superintendent to do so is received.

i. The Engineer/Road Superintendent's approval, where required
throughout this Paragraph, shall not be unreasonably withheld.

|- The approval of the Engineer/Road Superintendent is not a
representation or warranty as to the state of repair of the highway or
the suitability of the highway for the gas system.

As Built Drawings

The Gas Company shall, within six months of completing the installation of
any part of the gas system, provide two copies of "as built” drawings to the
Engineer/Road Superintendent. These drawings must be sufficient to
accurately establish the location, depth (measurement between the top of
the gas system and the ground surface at the time of installation) and
distance of the gas system. The "as built" drawings shall be of the same
quality as the Plan and, if the approved pre-construction plan included
elevations that were geodetically referenced, the "as built" drawings shall
similarly include elevations that are geodetically referenced. Upon the
request of the Engineer/Road Superintendent, the Gas Company shall
provide one copy of the drawings in an electronic format and one copy as a
hard copy drawing.

Emergencies

in the event of an emergency involving the gas system, the Gas Company
shall proceed with the work required to deal with the emergency, and in any
instance where prior approval of the Engineer/Road Superintendent is
normally required for the work, the Gas Company shall use its best efforts to
immediately notify the Engineer/Road Superintendent of the location and
nature of the emergency and the work being done and, if it deems
appropriate, notify the police force, fire or other emergency services having
jurisdiction. The Gas Company shall provide the Engineer/Road
Superintendent with at least one 24 hour emergency contact for the Gas
Company and shall ensure the contacts are current.
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10.

Restoration

The Gas Company shall well and sufficiently restore, to the reasonable
satisfaction of the Engineer/Road Superintendent, all highways, municipal
works or improvements which it may excavate or interfere with in the course
of laying, constructing, repairing or removing its gas system, and shall make
good any settling or subsidence thereafter caused hy such excavation or
interference. If the Gas Company fails at any time to do any work required
by this Paragraph within a reasonable period of time, the Corporation may
do or cause such work to be done and the Gas Company shall, on demand,
pay the Corporation's reasonably incurred costs, as certified by the
Engineer/Road Superintendent.

Indemnification

The Gas Company shall, at all times, indemnify and save harmless the
Corporation from and against all claims, including costs related thereto, for
all damages or injuries including death to any person or persons and for
damage to any property, arising out of the Gas Company operating,
construeting, and mamtammg its gas system in the Municipality, or utilizing
its gas system for the carriage of gas owned by others. Provided that the
Gas Company shall not be required to indemnify or save harmless the
Corporation from and against claims, including costs related thereto, which
it may incur by reason of damages or injuries including death to any person
or persons and for damage to any property, resulting from the negligence or
wrongful act of the Corporation, its servants, agents or employees,

Insurance

a. The Gas Company shall maintain Comprehensive General Liability
Insurance in sufficient amount and description as shall protect the Gas
Company and the Corporation from claims for which the Gas Company
is obliged to indemnify the Corporation under Paragraph 9, The
insurance policy shall identify the Corporation as an additional named
insured, but only with respect to the operation of the named insured
(the Gas Company). The insurance policy shall not lapse or be
cancelled without sixty (60) days' prior written notice to the Corporation
by the Gas Company.

b. The issuance of an insurance policy as provided in this Paragraph
shall not be construed as relieving the Gas Company of liahility not

covered by such insurance or in excess of the policy limits of such
insurance.
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¢. Upon request by the Corporation, the Gas Company shall confirm that
premiums for such insurance have been paid and that such insurance
is in full force and effect.

11. Alternative Easement

The Corporation agrees, in the event of the proposed sale or closing of any
highway or any part of a highway where there is a gas line in existence, to
give the Gas Company redsonable notice of such proposed sale or closing
and, if it is feasible, to provide the Gas Company with easements over that
part of the highway proposed to be sold or closed sufficient to allow the Gas
Company to presefve any part of the gas system in its then existing
location. In the event that such easements cannot be provided, the
Corporation and the Gas Company shall share the cost of relocating or
altering the gas system to facilitate continuity of gas service, as provided for
in Paragraph 12 of this Agreement.

12. Pipeline Relocation

a. Ifin the course of constructing, reconstructing, changing, altering or
improving any highway or any municipal works, the Corparation deems
that it is necessary to take up, remove or change the location of any
part of the gas system, the Gas Company shall, upon notice to do so,
remove and/or relocate within a reasonable period of time such part of
the gas system to a location approved by the Engineer/Road
Superintendent.

b. Where any part of the gas system relocated in accordance with this
Paragraph is located on a bridge, viaduct or structure, the Gas
Company shall alter or relocate that part of the gas system at its sole
expense.

c. Where any part of the gas system relocated in accordance with this
Paragraph is located other than on a bridge, viaduct or structure, the
costs of relocation shall be shared between the Corporation and the
Gas Company on the basis of the total relocation costs, excluding the
value of any upgrading of the gas system, and deducting any
contribution paid to the Gas Company by others in respect to such
relocation; and for these purposes, the total relocation costs shall be
the aggregate of the following:

i, the amount paid to Gas Company employees up to and including

field supervisors for the hours worked on the project plus the
current cost of fringe benefits for these employees,
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ii. the amount paid for rental equipment while in use on the project
and an amount, charged at the unit rate, for Gas Company
equipment while in use on the project,

iit. the amount paid by the Gas Company to contractors for Work
related to the project,

iv. the cost to the Gas Company for materials used in connection
with the project, and

v. areasonable amount for project engineering and project
administrative costs which shall be 22.5% of the aggregate of the
amounts determined in items (i), (if), (ili) and (iv) above.

d. The total relocation costs as calculated above shall be paid 35% by the
Corporation and 65% by the Gas Company, _except where the pait of
the gas system required to be moved is located in an unassumed road
or in an unopened road allowance and the Corporation has not
approved its location, in which case the Gas Company shall pay 100%
of the relocation costs. ’

Part IV - Procedural And Other Matters
13. Municipal By-laws of General Application

The Agreement is subject to the provisions of all regulating statutes and all
municipal by-laws of general application, except by-laws which have the
effect of amending this Agreement.

14, Giving Notice

Notices may be delivered to, sent by facsimile or mailed by prepaid
registered post to the Gas Company at its head office or to the authorized
officers of the Corporation at its municipal offices, as the case may be.

15. Disposition of Gas System

a. If the Gas Company decommissions part of its gas system affixed to a
bridge, viaduct or structure, the Gas Company shall, at its sole
expense, remove the part of its gas system affixed to the bridge, viaduct
or structure.

b. If the Gas Company decommissions any other part of its gas system, it
shall have the right, but is not required, to remove that part of its gas
system. It may exercise its right to remove the decommissioned parts of
its gas system by giving notice of its intention to do so by filing a Plan




as required by Paragraph 5 of this Agreement for approval by the
Engineer/Road Superintendent. If the Gas Company does not remove
the part of the gas system it has decommissioned and the Corporation
requires the removal of all or any part of the decommissioned gas
system for the purpose of altering or improving a highway or in order to
facilitate the construction of utility or other works in any highway,

the Corporation may remove-and dispose of so much of the
decommissioned gas system as the Corporation may require for such
purposes and neither party shall have recourse against the other for
any loss, cost, expense or damage occasioned thereby. If the Gas
Company has not removed the part of the. gas system it has
decommissioned and the Corporation requires the removal of all or any
part of the decommissionad gas system for the purpose of altering or
improving a highway or in order to facilitate the construction of utility or
other works in a highway, the Gas Company may elect to relocate the
decommissioned gas systern and in that event Paragraph 12 applies to
the cost of relocation,

16. Use of Decommissioned Gas Syétem

a. The Gas Company shall provide promptly to the Corporation, to the
extent such information is known:;

i. the names and addresses of all third parties who use
decommissioned parts of the gas system for purposes other than
the transmission or distribution of gas; and

ii. the location of all proposed and existing decommissioned parts of
the gas system used for purposes other than the transmission or
distribution of gas.

b. The Gas Company may allow a third party to use a decommissioned
part of the gas system for purposes other than the transmission or -
distribution of gas and may charge a fee for that third party use,
provided

i. the third party has entered into a municipal access agreement
with the Corporation; and

ii. the Gas Company does not charge a fee for the third party's right
of access to the highways.

¢. Decommissioned parts of the gas system used for purposes other than
the transmission or distribution of gas are not subject to the provisions
of this Agreement. For decommissioned parts of the gas system used
for purposes other than the transmission and distribution of gas, issues




such as relocation costs will be governed by the relevant municipal
access agreement.

17. Franchise Handbook

The Parties acknowledge that operating decisions sometimes require a
greater level of detail than that which Is appropriately included in this
Agreement. The Parties agree to look for guidance on such matters to the
Franchise Handbook prepared by the Association of Municipalities of

Ontario and the gas utility companies, as may be amended from time to
time. ‘

18. Agreement Binding Parties
This Agreement shall extend to, benefit and bind the parties thereto, their

successors and assigns, respectively.

IN WITNESS WHEREOQF the parties have executed this Agreement effective
~ from the date written above.

THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF PORT COLBORNE
By:

By:

Duly Authorized Officer

ENBRIDGE GAS DISTRIBUTION INC.

By:

-10 -
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GUIDELINES TO MUNICIPALITIES RESPECTING
FRANCHISE AGREEMENTS WITH ENBRIDGE GAS DISTRIBUTION (“Enbridge”)

Enclosed is the following package of documents:

(a)
(b)
()
(d)

Draft Resolution of the municipality;

Draft By-Law of the municipality;

Enbridge’s 2000 Model Franchise Agreement

Currently held Ceitificates of Public Convenience and Necessity

GUIDELINES FOR PROCESSING FRANCHISE AGREEMENTS:

PLEASEREAD INITS ENTIRETY AND FOLLOW STEPS IN ORDER

The draft By-law supplied in this package is designed to repeal any existing by-laws to give
effect to a new by-law.. Although Enbridge uses its best efforts to check its records for by-law
repeal, please advise us if there are other by-laws that the municipality is aware of that should
also be repealed.

Represeritatives (Mayor and Clerk) for the municipality should execute (i.e. sign and seal) the
Resolution. DO NOT SIGN OR DATE THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT AND DO NOT
SIGN THE BY-LAW AT THIS TIME. The Resolution as well as the By-law and Franchise
Agreeinent should be returned to Enbridge,

Upon Enbridge’s veceipt of the documentation from the municipality, a copy of this package
will be forwarded to the Ontario Enérgy Board ("OEB”) as part of the application for approval
of the franchise agreement.

Notice of Enbridge’s Application to the OEB for approval of the franchise agreement will be
published in a local newspaper by the OEB.

Upon receipt of a Decision and Order from the OEB, Enbridge will follow the directions from
the OEB as set out its Letter of Direction (i.e., directions as to service and publication).
Enbridge will then have four (4) copies of the Franchise Agreement executed by Enbridge.

Enbridge will send four (4) copies of the Resolution, By-law and executed Franchise
Agreement to the Municipality.

At this time the municipality will insert the date of the Decision and Order into the 2nd
paragraph of the By-law. The By-law should be given First, Second, Third and Final reading.
The date of the third and final reading of the By-law will be the effective date of the Franchise
Agreement

Upon this third and final reading, the municipality should return three fully executed (signed
and sealed) By-Laws and Franchise Agreements to Enbridge.

Upon receipt of the clocuments, Enbridge will then send one original fully executed Franchise
Agreement with the By-law to the OEB and retain the balance for its records.
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Kindly refer to the attached “Task List” for your reference and ease in completing the Franchise
Agreement. We thank you for your co-operation with this process.

CHECK LIST FOR COMPLETING FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

Task ' Task v Task
# Comglete
Io]

1 | Municipality creates official Resolution for execution puiposes - one otiginal
required

3 Municipality forwards original executed Resolution doctument with Draft By-law
and Franchise Agreement documents to Enbridge

Municipality inserts date of the OEB Order and Decision into By-law docuiment (20d
paragraph AND WHEREAS...)

6 | Municipality fully executes (signs and seals) all 4 originals of the By-law

Munimpahty fully execules ‘(51g11 and se
Agreement

10 | Municipality forwards three fully executed By-laws and Franchise Agreements to
Enbridge for completion
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THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF PORT COLBORNE
BY-LAWNO. _3665/91/98

ABY-LAW TO AUTHORIZE A FRANCHISE AGREEMENT
BETWEEN THE CORPORATION AND THE
CONSUMERS' GAS COMPANY

WHEREAS the Council of the Corporation of the City of Port Colborne deerns it
expedient to enter Into the attached franchise agreement with The Consumers' Gas
Company Lid.;

AND WHEREAS the Ontario Energy Board by its Order issued pursuant to The
Municipal Franchises Act on the 13" day of July, 1998 has approved the terms and
conditions upan which and the period for which the franchise provided for in the
attached agreement is proposed to be granted, and has declared and diracted {hat the
assent of the municipal elactofs in respect of this By-law Is not necessary;

AND WHEREAS The Consuimers’ Gas Company Ltd, has provided the
Corporation with a consent to the repeal of the By-law hereinafter referred to:

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ENAGTED:

1. That the at’tacﬁed franchise agreement between the Corporation and The
Consumers' Gas Company Itd. is hereby autharized and the franchise provided
for therein is hereby granted,

2. That the Mayor and the Clerk are hereby authorlzed and instructed on behalf of
the Corporation to enter into and éxcecute under its corporate seal and deliver
the aforesaid agreement, which agreement is hereby incorparated into and shall
form part of this By-law.

3. That the By-law referred to in Schedule "A" annexed hereto and forming part of
this By-law is hereby repealed insofar as it applies to any area within the present
geographic limits of the Corporation.

READ A FIRST, SECOND AND THIRD TIME AND FINALLY PASSED THIS

17" DAY OF AUGUST, 1998, ..
) - D ——
MAYOR
{1V OF PANY BOLBORNE e
CEATIFIED D CORRECT COpY R ap
. CLERK A CTHETS
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SCHEDULE "A” %K

By-law No. 733/50/78 passed by the Council of the Corparation of the City of Port

Colborne on the 26" day of June, 1978,

By-law No. 255 passed by the Council of the Corporation of the Town of Port Galborne

on the 14" day of July, 1958,
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T

DATED

L AUGUsT (8.

THE. CORPORATION OF THE
CITY OF PORT COLEORNE

aand -,
THE CONSUMERS'GAS COMPANY LTD.

FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

THE CONSUMERS' GAS COMPANY LTD,
Atela 11; Suits 1100
2225 Sheppard Avenua East

* North York, Ontirio

M2 5C2

Attention: ‘Legal Depurtment

19 g
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THE CONSUMERS' GAS COMPANY LTD.

FRANCHISE AGREEMENT
THIS AGREEMENT made this /& % day of ' 197X,
BETWEEN:

THE CORPORATION OF THE

CITY OF PORT COLBORNE

heretnafter called the “Corporation”
~and »
THE CONSUMERS' GAS COMPANY LTI,

hereinafier called the "Gas Company"

" WHEREAS the Gas Company desires to distribute i d sell gas in thc Municipality upon the terms md
conditions of this Agreement;

AND WHEREAS by by-law passed by the Counci\ of the Corporation (the *By-law™), the Mayor and the
-Clerk have been authorized and directed to execute this Agreement on behalf of the Corporation;

THEREFORE the Corporaﬁon uid the Gas Company agree as follows:

| Definitions

1. In this Agmement:‘

(®)
®)

()

@

()

+ "gas™ means natural gas, manufastured gas, synthetic natural gas, liquefied petroleum gas or

propane-alr gas, or 3 mixture of any of them, but does not include a liquefied petroleum gas that is
dism’b\ncd by means other than a pipchm.

"gas systcm“‘ means such iains, plaats, pipes, conduits, services, vnlvm, regulators, curb boxes,
stations, drips or such other equipment as the Gas Company may require or deem desirable for the
supply, transmitssion end distributfon of gas in or theough the Municipality;

*nighway* means all common and putilic highways and shall include any bridge, viaduct or
structure forming part of o highway, and any public square, road allowance or walkway and shall |
include not only the travelled portion of such highway, but also ditches, driveways, sidewalks, and
sodded areas forming part of the road allowance now or at any time during the term hereof under
the Jurisdiction of the Corporation;

"Mundcipality” means the territorfal limits of the Corporation ou the date when this Agrecment
takes effect, and any tcmtory which may thereafter be beought within the jurisdiction of the
Corporation;

'Bn@ncer/lload Superintendent” means the most senior individual employed by the Corporation
with responsibilities for highways withln the Munlelpality oc the person designated by such senfor

employee or such other person as may from time to time be designated by the Council of the
Corporation,

1
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| Rights Granted

1. To provide gas service.

The consent of the Corparation is hereby given and granted to the Gas Company to supply gas in the
Municipality ta the Corporation and to the inhabitants of the Municipality.

2. Touseroad allowances.

The consent of the Corporation is hereby given and granted to the Gas Company to eater upon all highways
now or at any time hereafter under the jurisdiction of the Corporation and to lay, construct, maintain,

replace, remove, operate and repair a gas system for the supply, distribution and transmission of gas in and .

through the Municipality. .

3. Dumﬁon of Agreement and Renewal Procedures,

-

“The rights hereby given and granted shall be for a term of twenty (20)* years from the date of final passmg
of the By-law,

T

At any time within two years pﬁor to the expiration of this Agreement, gither party may give notice to thc
other that it desires to enter fnto negotiations for a renewed franchise upon such terms and conditions as
may be agreed upon, Until such renewal has been settled, the terms and conditions of this Agreement shall
continue, notwithstanding the explration of this Agreement, Nothing herein stated stiall prccludc sither party

from applying to the Ontario Energy Board for & renewal of the Agreement pursuant to section 10 of the
Munielpal Franchises Act,

4 Condltions
L. Approval of Canstruction,

Before beginning construction of or any extension or change to the gas system (except servics laterals
which do not interferé with municipal works in the highway), the Gas Company shall file with the

Engineer/Road Supecintendent a plan, satisfactory to the Engineer/Road Superintendent, drawn to scale and

of sufficlent detail considering the complexity of the specific location, showing the highways In which it
proposes to lay its gas system ind the particular parts thereof It propases to occupy, Geodetle lnformation
will ot be required except in complex urban intersections {n ocder to facilitats known projects, being
projects which are reasonably anticlpated by the EnginccrfRoad Superintendent, The Brglncer/Road
Supérintendent may requive sections of the gas system to be lald at a"greater depth than required by
CAN/CSA- Z184-M92 to facilitate known projects, The location-of the-work a5 showm on the sald plan
must be approved by the Bngineer/Road Superlntendent before the commencement of the work and the
Almlng, terms and conditions relating to the instaliation of such works shall be to his satisfaction,

Notwithstarding the provisions of the above noted paragraph, in the event it is proposed to affix.a part of
the pas system to a bridge, viaduct or structure, the Engineer/Road Superintendent may, If the

Bugineer/Road Superintendent approves of such location, require special conditions oc a separate
agreemcm.

No excavation, openmg or-work whlch shall dlsmrb or mtcrfcrc W\th the surface ot‘thc traveﬂcd portion of

any highway shall be made or done unless a pcrm!t therefor has first been obtained from the Bngineer/Road
Superintendent and all works shall be done to his satisfaction.

*The rights given ead geanted for o fiest sgroonient shall s for & term of 20 yesurs. The rights glven and granted for any subsequent agreement -
shall be Tor /3erm of not niote than |5 years, unless bath partics agree o extend the temt o & term 0 20 years maximrn.

2
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6.

The Engineer/Road Superintendent's approval, where rcqum:d throughaut this séction, shall not be withheld
unreasonably,

As Built Drawings.

The Gas Company shall not deviate from the approved location for any part of the gas system unless the
prior approval of the Engineer/Road Supcnntendcnt to do so is received. After completion of the
construction, where plans were Initially filed, an "as built" plan of equal quality to the pre-construction plan

or certification that the pre-construction plan is "as built" will be filed with the Engineer/Road
Superinterident.

Emergencies.

In the event of an emergency {nvolving the gas system, the Gas Company will procesd with the work and in
any instance where prior approval of the Englnéer/Road Superintendent is normally rcqulrcd shall use its
best efforts to |mmcdlatclynonfy the Engineer/Road Superintendent of the location ‘and" riature of the
emergency and the work being done and, if it deems appropnatc. notify the police. forcc having jurisdiction,

P Restoration,

v

The Gas Company shall well and sufficiently restore, to the rcasonable satisfaction of the Engincer/Road
Superintendent, 2!l highways, mumc:pal works or improvements which it may excavite of interfere with in
the course of laying, constructing, répairing or removinig its gas system, and shall make good any settling or
subsidence thereafter cansed by such-excavation or interference. Ifthe Gas Compary fails at any time to do
anty work required by this paragraph within a reasonable period of time, the Corparation may do or cause
such work to be done and the Gas Company shall, on demand, pay any reasonable account therefor s
certified by the Engineer/Road Superintendent.

Indemnification.

The Gas Company shall, at all times, indemnify and save harmless the Corporation from and against all
clatms, ineluding costs ralated thcrcto, for all damages or fnjuries including death to any person or persons
and for dariage to any property, arising out of the Gas Company opcratmg, constructing, and maintaining
its gas system In the Municipality, or utiliziag its gas system for the carriage of gas owned by others.
Provided that the Gas Company shall not be required to indcmmt’y ar save harmless the Corporation from
and against claims, Including costs related thereto, which it may incur by reason of damages or Injuries

~including death to any person or persons and for damage to any property, resulting from the negligence or

wrongful act of the Corpocation, its servants, agents or employees.
Altermnative Baserrient,

The Corporation agrecs, in thc event of the proposed sale or closing of any highway or any part of @

highway where'there is & gas line in exlstence, to give the Gas Company reasonable notice of such proposed |

sale or closing and to provide, if it is feasible, the Gas Company with easements over that pact of the
highway proposed to be sold or closed sufficlent to allow thé Gas Company to preserve any part of the gas
system In its then existing location, [n the event that such easements cannot be provided, the Corporation

will share, as provided in clause I1I, T of this Agreement, in the cost of relocating or'altering the gas system

to facilitate continuity of gas service.

3
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v "

Pipeline Relocation,

If in the course of constructing, reconstructing, changing, altering or improving any highway or any
municlpal works, the Corporation deems that it is necessary to take up, remove or change the location of
any part of the gas system, the Gas Company shall, upou notice to do so, yeimove and/or relocate within a

reasonable perfod of time such part of the gas system to a location approved by the Enginecr/Road
Superintendent.

Where any part of the gas system relocated in accordance with this section is located on & bridge, viaduct or
structure, the Gas Company shall alter or rclocate at its sole expense, such part of the gas system.

Where any part of the gas system relocated in accordance with this section is located other than on & bridge,
viaduet or structure, the costs of refocation shall be shared between the Corporation and the Gas. . Company
on the basis of the total rclocatmn costs, excluding the value of any upgrading of the gas systam, and
deducting any contribution paid to the Gas Company by others in respect to such relacation; and for these
purposes, the tota] relocation costs shall be the aggregate of the following: -

(2 the smount pald to Gas Company employees up to and including field supervisors for the hours
worked on the project plus the current cost of fringe benefits for these employees,

) the amount paid for rental cquipmcnt while fn use on thq,pro;ect and an amount, charged at the unit
rate, for Gas Company equipment while in use on the project,

(c) the amount paid by the Gas Company to contractors for work related to the project,
(d) the cost to the G‘a,s Company for materfals used in connection with thé project, and

(e 2 n:asonab!o amount for project engineering and project administrative costs which shall be 22. 5%
of the aggregate of the amounts determined in ftems.(), (b), (c) and (d) above.

The total relocation costs as calculated abovc shall be paid : 35% by the Corpot;auon and 65% by the Gas
Company.

Notice 16 Drainage Swpcrintendent.

fn 2 case where the gas system may affect a municipal drafn, the Gas Company shall file witii the Drainage )

Superintendent, for purposes of the Dralnage Act, or other person responsible for the draln, 2 copy of the
plan rcqmrcd to be ﬁled with thc Edgineer/Road Supcdntcndmt.

ijocedural And Other Matters

Municipal By-laws of General Application.

This Agreemetit and the rcspccth rights and obligahons hereunto of the parties hereto are hereby declared
to be subject to the provisions of ll regulating statutes and all municipal by-laws of general application and
to all orders and regulations made thereunder from time to time remaining in effect save and except by-laws
which impose permit fees and by-laws which have the effect of smending this Agréement.. .

Giving Notice,

Notlces may be given by delivery or by mail, and if mailed, by prepaid registered post, to the Gas Company
at its head office or to the Clerk of the Corporation at-its municipal offices, as the case may be,

4
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3. Disposition of Gas System.

During the term of this Agreement, if the Gas Company sbandons & part of its gas system affixed to a
bridge, viaduct or structure, the Gas Company shall, at its sole expense, remove that part of its gas system
affixed to the bridge, viaduet or structure,

[f at any time the Gas Company abandons any other part of its gas system, it shall deactivate that part of its
gas system in the Municipality. Thereafter, the Gas Company shall have the right, but nothing herein
contained shall require it, to remove its gas system, (f the Gas Company fails to remove its gas system and
the Corporation requires the removal of all or any of the gas systemt for the purpose of altering or improving
a highway or i order to facilitate the gonstructlon of utility or othier works in any highway, the Corporation
may remove and dispose of so much of the deactivated gas system as the Corporation may require for such
purposes and neither party shall have récourse against the other for any loss, cost, expense or damagge
occasloned thereby,

4. Agreement Binding Parties. .

This Agreement shall extend to, benefit and biad the parties thereto, their successors and assigns, .

respectively,
s Y
IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have duly executed these presents with effect from the date
first sbove written. : ’
THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF PORT COLBORNE
, S J g_)
Mayor A E j
Clerk A
THE CONSUMERS' GAS COMPANY LD, & J. Hill
. 5 ' Senk:; 'V;h;‘e-tpr?‘sldam
nistration
“%‘[}“W , /é% /% u'nd Corrgorata Secratary
[T FORM | g
T 1.8, Williamson
LEGAL y ) ; . Sxen.&or.tfgal c?lunsbat anAd
] l nac:a\uu\ OHPrIEISTAaTY

5
SMEGALREGGOWFRANCHRENEWALS\WGTBROCK 6AM
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THE_ONTARIO ENERGY BOARD

E.B.C. 58

IN THE MATTER of The Municipal Franchises Act,
R.8,0, 1960, Chapter 255 and amendments thereto;

AND IN THE MATTER of an Application by The Consumers'
Gas Company for certificates of public comvenience
and necessity to construct works to supply and to
supply matural gas to the inhabitants of the undex-
mentioned municipalities

City of St. Catharines
City of Niagara Falls
Gity of Welland

Toyn of Port Colborne
Town of Fort Erie

Town of Niagara~on-the~Lake
Town of Therold

Village of Chippawa -
Village of Crystal Reach
Village of Fouthill
Township of Crowland
Township of Willoughby
Township of Bertie
Township of Humberstone
Township of Wainfleet
Towrship -of Thoxold
Township of Pelham
Tovmship of Niagara
Township of Louth

BE FORE:

A/R. Crozler, Chalrman g
Tuesday, the 4th day

A.B. Jaclkson, Vice Chalrman »
of July, 1967,

I.C. MacNabb, Vice Chairman

UPON. the Application of The Consumers' Gas Company (here-
inafter called the Applicant) for a certificate pursuant to
the provisions of The Municipal Franchises Act, R.S5.,0. 1960,
Chapter 255, and amendments thereto, and upon the hearing of
such Application by the Board at the City of Toronto, on the
4th day of July, 1967, after due notlce had been given as dir-
ected by the Board, in the presence of Counsel for the Appli=
cant, no one else appearing, upon consideration of the evidence
and exhibits produced at the hearing and upon hearing what
was alleged by Counsel for the Applicant
1. THIS BOARD DOTH ORDER that a Certificate of Public Con~

veniente and Necessity be and the same is hereby granted to
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The Consumers' Gas Company for the supply of natural pas
to the f{nhabitants of the

City of St. Catharines

City of Niagara Falls

City of Welland

Town of Port Colborne

Towvm of Niagara-on~the-Lake
Town -of Thorold

Village of Chippawa Ve
Villdge of Crystal Beach
Village of Fonthill
Tovmship of Crowland
Township of Willoughby
Township of Bettie

Township of Humberstone
Township of Wainfleet
Townshlp of Thorold
Township of Pelham
Township of Niagara
Township of Louth

and for the construction of the works necessary therefor.
2.  THIS BOARD fixes the costs of this Application at $25,00
payable forthwith by the Applicant.

DATED AT TORONTO this #577 day of July, A.D. 1967.

THE ONTARIO ENERGY'BOARD

Ag&ﬁ,szZLﬂtxéL1)

Board Secretary.
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THE _ONTARIO ENERGY BOARD

IN THE MATTER of The Municipal Fran-
chlises Act, R.S,0, 1960, Chapter 255
and amendments theretos

~ AND IN THE MATTER of an Applicatfon by
The Consumers' Gas Company for certi-~
ficates of public convenience and

necessity

to construct works to su

pply
and to sugpl natursgl gas to the inga~

bitants o
palities,

City
Clty
City
Town
Town
Towm
Torn

the undermentioned munici-

of 8t, Catharines
of Niagara Falls
of Welland

of Port Colborne

of Fort Erie
of Niagara~on~-the=Lake
of Thorold

Village of Chippawa
Village of Crystal Beach
Village of Fonthill
Tovmship of Crowland
Township of Willoughby
Townéhip of Bertie
Tewvnship of Humberstene
Township of Wainfleet
Township of Thorold
Toymship of Pelham
Township of Niagara
Township of. Louth

CERTIFICATE OF PUBLIC CONVENIENCE

AND NECESSITY

MCDONALD & ZIMMERMAN
199 Bay Street,
Toronto 1, Ontario.
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Schedule C

\' EeBva 58]\

D T L A e T L IR ey

Ontario

Y
he Y
k

- IN THE MATTER OF The Municipal Fran-
AN chises Act,. 8.5,0. 1960, Chapter 255
and amendments thereto;u

A . 5
AND IN THE MATTER of an Application by
The Consumers' Gas Company for certi-
Ficates of public convenience and neces-
“glty to construct works to supply and to
supply natural gas to the inhabitants of
the undermentioned municipalities

City of St. Catharines
City of Hiagara Falls
City of Welland = .
Town 6f Port Colborne
Town of Fort.Exrdie -
Town of Niagara-on-the~lLake
Tovn of Thorold
~Village of Chippawa
-Village of Crystal Beach
"Village of Fonthill
~Tovnehip of Crowland
" Township of Willoughby
;:wanship%of Bertie
Township of Humberstone
Towmship of Wainfleet
Township of Thorold
Towaship of Pelhan
™Township of Niagara
~ Tovnship of Louth

 BEFORE: A, B, Jackson
Chailrman Monday, the 5th

day of July, 1976

I. G. MaclNabb -
Vice~Chairman

CERTIFICATE OF PUBLfC'CONVENIEMCE AND NECES3ITY

',;';,"-'1‘ f‘ 33.‘ ,‘ "J’ ’ u’ ,
ngj{H”A?Gégﬁi%%émgﬂﬁﬁﬂbation of The Consumers' Gas Company
dated May 30, 1967 for certificates of public
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convenience and necesslity pursuant to section & of The
Municipal Franchises Act to construct works to supply
and to supply natural gas to the inhabitants of the above-

named municipalities;

AND UPON the application having been heard at

Toronto on July 4, 1967 in the présence of counsel for
the Applicant, no one else appearing, and a Certificate
having been isSued on July 25, 1967 under Docket E.B.C, 58
in respect of all the above-named munlclpalxties except
the Town of Fort Erie, and the appllcatlon having besen
adjourned sine die in respect of the Town of Fort Erie

due to the qﬁesbion of the validity of the Applicant‘s

then existing franchise by-law for the Town of Fort Erie;

AND UPON the Applicant having negotiated a new
franchise by-law with thé Town of Fort Erie, the terms
and conditions and period thereof having been approved -
by the Board by E.B.A. 173 dated May 8, 1975, and the
new franchise by-law having been finally passed by the ',
Council of the Corporation Qf the Town of Fort Erie on |
June 23, 19753 '

IT IS ORDERED that a certificate of public convenience

and necessity be and the same is hereby granted to The

3
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Consumers' Gas Company for the supply of natural gag to

the inhabitants of the Tovm of Fort Lrie.
ISSUED at Toronto.this 727/.aay of July, 1976.

ONTARIO ENERGY BOARD

@(;Zé%

5.A.0. Tnomas
oecxebary to the Board
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N Corporate Services Department

Report Number: 2018-13 , Date: January 22, 2018
SUBJECT: Appointments to Boards and Committees
1) PURPOSE

The purpose of this report is to obtain approval regarding appointments to boards and
committees.

2) HISTORY, BACKGROUND, COUNCIL POLICY, PRACTICES

In 2006 staggered terms were introduced for many of the City's boards and committees
and citizens were appointed for terms of two, three and four years. Future appointments
were to be for four year terms in order to maintain the staggered structure established by
the 2006 appointments. Council’s current policy regarding the making of appointments to
Boards and Committees was adopted by Council on November 10, 2008. A copy of the
policy is available on the City’s website.

New appointments to fill an expired term are for a four-year term. The term of
appointments to fill vacancies created by resignations is for the balance of the term of the

appointee who resigned. Notice is provided to each Board/Committee member with an
expiring term.

3) STAFF COMMENTS AND DISCUSSIONS

The following information was made available to Council at the closed session portion of
the December 11, 2017 Council meeting and is provided now for the benefit of the public.

Canal Days Committee:

The Terms of Reference provide that this Committee is to be composed of five community
members, two Councillors, as well as representative from each local Business
improvement Area (BIA). Four vacancies exist for community members.

Betty Konc

Betty Konc is a resident of Port Colborne and is a local business owner who is seeking
reappointment to the Committee. Ms. Konc is a member of the Economic Development
Advisory Committee and serves as the Chair of the Downtown BIA. Ms. Konc has

expressed a desire to continue to be a part of the team that organizes and executes Canal
Days.

East Village Neighbourhood Improvement Task Force:
The Terms of Reference provide for the appointment of three residents of the East Village

Area of Port Colborne and both Ward Two Councillors. There is one vacancy on the
Committee due to an expired term.
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Neal Schoen

Neal Schoen is a Paralegal with Justice Niagara who is a property owner within the East
Village and is seeking reappointment to the Task Force. Mr. Schoen has served as Chair
of the Task Force since May 2016, and is aware of the community issues within the East
Village. Mr. Schoen has expressed desire to enact change in the East Village with a focus
to reduce crime, improve the quality of rental housing, increase the pride of ownership by
homeowners, improve safety and appearance and improve the dialogue between
residents and Council.

Economic Development Advisory Committee:

This Committee was established at the November 9, 2015 Council meeting. The Terms
of Reference provide for the appointment of six citizen members, who must be affiliated
with the Port Colborne business community. These members are not required to be
qualified municipal electors. There are two vacancies representing the business
community on the Committee due to expired terms.

Kate Ostryhon-Lumsden

Kate Ostryhon-Lumsden has worked in real estate sales in Port Colborne and area for
thirty-one years and is seeking reappointment to the Committee. Ms. Ostryhon-Lumsden
possesses a Bachelor of Arts (Hons.) and has expressed interest in continuing to serve
on the Committee as she views herself as an ambassador for Port Colborne and is
concerned about the community’s growth.

Environmental Advisory Committee
The Terms of Reference provide for the appointment of up to thirteen voting members;

three from Council and up to ten from the public. There are three vacancies due to expired
terms.

Beth Palma
Beth Palma is a Registered Nuclear Medicine Technologist and is seeking reappointment
to the Committee. Ms. Palma advises that she has been a member of the Environmental

Advisory Committee since the time of its establishment and is happy to be able to assist

with this Committee.

Ryan Waines

Ryan Waines is a Port Colborne resident who is employed as the Environmental Manager
at Jungbunziauer Canada Inc. and is seeking reappointment to the Committee. Mr.
Waines advises that in his role and position at work he is engaged with the various laws

and regulations pertaining to facility operations that overlap with the mandate and

discussions of the Committee. Mr. Waines is a life-long resident of Port Colborne and has
expressed that he has an active interest in all environmental related activities.

Tim Hoyle

Tim Hoyle is an Assistant Manager at Buffalo State College and a Volunteer Fire Fighter
for the City of Port Colborne. Mr. Hoyle is seeking reappointment to the Committee. Mr.
Hoyle has experience with air monitoring, HAZMAT, safety and chemical identification
and advises that his experience at work and as a Fire Fighter has brought the complexity
of environmental issues to light.

Corporate Services Department, Clerk's Division, Report No. 2018-13 Page 2 of 6
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Port Colborne Historical & Marine Museum

The Terms of Reference provide for the appointment of twelve members of the public.
Seven vacancies exist.

Amanda Emery

Amanda Emery possesses a Bachelor's Degree in History and Political Science and has
worked in four different museums in positions including Archives Assistant, Audio/Visual
Cataloguing Assistant, Heritage Outreach Officer, Tour Guide and Outreach Coordinator.
Ms. Emery is currently applying to complete her Masters in Museum Studies and advises
that her education and work experience and her genuine interest in history fit well with
the tasks and goals of the Port Colborne Museum.

Claudia Brema

Claudia Brema is a retired employee of the Niagara Health System and is a life-long
resident of Port Colborne with family ties to the community. Ms. Brema has experience in

volunteerism including the Canal Days Committee, Port Cares, Meals on Wheels, Niagara

Community Foundation, Port Colborne Hospital Foundation, Port Colborne Lioness and
United Way. Ms. Brema has expressed interest in the history of Port Colborne and

Niagara as well as an interest in supporting the fantastic staff at the Port Colborne
Museum.

Bert Murphy

Bert Murphy possesses a Bachelor of Science (Hons.) and a Masters of Education degree
and is a retired program consultant with the District School Board of Niagara and a retired
part-time lecturer with Brock University. Mr. Murphy has experience teaching about the
geography and history of the Niagara Peninsula and is a volunteer at the museum
assisting with the restoration of the timber cabin. Mr. Murphy has expressed interest in

the programs that the museum offers as well as local history and has abilities in writing
and carpentry.

Brian Heaslip ' :

Brian Heaslip is retired from the Port Colborne Fire Department and has experience in
community service and history. Mr. Heaslip is seeking reappointment to the Board in order
to continue to work with the staff and Board to expand the museum’s impact on the
community and increase the interest of youth in the history of the area.

Cheryl MacMillan

Cheryl MacMillan is a retired teacher from the District School Board of Niagara and
possesses a Bachelor of Arts and Bachelor of Education. Ms. MacMillan is seeking
reappointment to the Board and notes that she has experience advocating for the
museum and all it offers to the citizens in Niagara and beyond. Ms. MacMillan has
expressed interest in continuing to further the goals of the museum including expansion

of the facilities on the museum property and enhancement of education programming for
youth.

Corporate Services Department, Clerk's Division, Report No. 2018-13 Page 3 of 6
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Pamela Koudijs

Pamela Koudijs served thirty-eight years as an educator and currently works as a
Designated Early Childhood Educator with the District School Board of Niagara. Ms.
Koudijs is seeking reappointment to the Board and states that she loves Port Colborne,
its history and its role in the formation of this area. Ms. Koudijs advises that her experience

as an educator and her skills as a photographer can continue to help her to assist the
Board.

Port Colborne Medical Education, Recruitment and Health Services Committee
The Terms of Reference provide that the Committee shall be composed of the Mayor,
five members of the community, up to three Council representatives and a minimum of
one member of the medical community. Three citizen vacancies exist.

Connie Butler

Connie Butler is a retired Registered Nurse who holds a Bachelor of Arts, Bachelor of
Education, Bachelor of Science and Masters of Education and who served for more than
twenty-five years as a nurse educator, general educator and Infection Control
Practitioner. Ms. Butler is seeking reappointment to the Committee and advises that she
has experience serving on a number of committees and as a new member of the

community she is interested in helping to acquire appropriate medical care in Port
Colborne.

Senior Citizen Advisory Council

The Terms of Reference provide for the appointment of up to ten members of the public.
Three vacancies exist.

Judy Wade

Judy Wade possesses a Bachelor of Arts and was employed as a high school teacher for
the District School Board of Niagara for more than twenty years. Ms. Wade is seeking
reappointment to the Committee and advises that she feels she can help with determining
needs of seniors in the community in order to advise Council of such needs.

Valerie King

Valerie King is a retiree who was employed as a police officer, social worker and senior
lecturer at Cumbria University in the United Kingdom. Ms. King is seeking reappointment
to the Committee and advises that she has more than forty years of experience working
with the public with respect to issues affecting their rights as well as teaching others to

work with vulnerable people and she has expressed a desire to give back to the
community.

Susan Brown

Susan Brown is seeking reappointment to the Committee. Ms. Brown is semi-retired and
states that her work experience and business contacts make her an asset to the
Committee. Ms. Brown also notes that she feels she has the time and knowledge to help
the citizens of Port Colborne.
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4) OPTIONS AND FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS
a) Do nothing.

This is not a practical option. In accordance with the City’s policy, Council should consider
the applications. All appointments are at the discretion of Council.

b) Other Options

Council may choose to provide additional direction with regard to future recruitment.
5) COM.PLIANCE WITH STRATEGIC PLAN INITIATIVES

Not applicable.

6) ATTACHMENTS

None.

7) RECOMMENDATION

Canal Days Advisory Committee:

That Betty Konc be appointed to the Canal Days Advisory Committee for a term ending
December 31, 2020.

East Village Neighbourhood Improvement Task Force:

That Neal Schoen be appointed to the East Village Neighbourhood Improvement Task
Force for a term ending December 31, 2020.

Economic Development Advisory Committee:

That Kate Ostryhon-Lumsden be appointed to the Economic Development Advisory
Committee for a term ending December 31, 2020.

Environmental Advisory Committee:

That Beth Palma, Ryan Waines and Tim Hoyle be appointed to the Environmental
.Advisory Committee for a term ending December 31, 2020.

Port Colborne Historical & Marine Museum:

That the following persons be appointed to the Port Colborne Historical & Marine
Museum Board:

Amanda Emery for a term ending December 31, 2019;
Claudia Brema for a term ending December 31, 2019;
Bert Murphy for a term ending December 31, 2019;
Brian Heaslip for a term ending December 31, 2021;
Cheryl MacMillan for a term ending December 31, 2021;
Pamela Koudijs for a term ending December 31, 2021.

SN~
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Port Colborne Medical Education, Recruitment and Health Services Committee:
That Connie Butler be appointed to the Port Colborne, Medical Education, Recruitment
and Health Services Committee for a term ending December 31, 2020.

Senior Citizen Advisory Council:
That Judy Wade, Valerie King and Susan Brown be appointed to the Senior Citizen
Advisory Council for a term ending December 31, 2020.

That the Clerk be directed to bring forward the necessary by-law for approval.

8) SIGNATURES

Prepared on January 15, 2018 by: Reviewed by: )
Carrie Mclntosh Peter Senese

Deputy Clerk Director of Corporate Services

Reviewed and respectfully submitted by:

C. Scott Luey

Chief Administrative Officer
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" Corporate Services Department
(P - Corporate Services Division

PORT COLBORNE ,
Report Number: 2018-06 Date: January 22, 2018

SUBJECT: 2016 Audited Financial Statements

1)  PURPOSE

The purpose of this report is to provide the 2016 Financial Report for approval by Council.
2) HISTORY, BACKGROUND, COUNCIL POLICY, PRACTICES

Each year, the City’'s appointed audit firm, Grant Thornton, plans and completes the audit of
the City of Port Colborne’s financial records. City finance staff prepare all year-end working
papers for the auditor, including all accounting of assets, liabilities, revenues and
expenditures. When the audit is complete, Grant Thornton prepares a draft financial report

for review by the Treasurer and CAO. The Draft Financial Report (Financial Statements) is
presented to Council. '

3) STAFF COMMENTS AND DISCUSSION

The consolidated Financial Statements are prepared in accordance with Canadian Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles as recommended by the Public Sector Accounting Board
(PSAB) of the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants (section 294.1, Municipal Act).

The draft audited Financial Statements are attached to this report and presented in draft
format prior to the official signing and release of the Financial Report by the City’'s auditors,
Grant Thornton, pending Council approval. Once approved by Council the Financial
Statements will be put on the City's web site for public viewing. A notice will be published in

the local newspaper that the 2016 financial report is available to the public (section 295(1),
Municipal Act).

in addition to the Financial Report, staff prepare the Financial Information Return (FIR) which
is a statutory report filed with the Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Housing annually. Copies
of the FIR and the Financial Report are available on request, free of charge (section 295(2),
Municipal Act). The 2016 FIR has been submitted to the Ministry and both reports will be
available on the City’s web site for public viewing.

The 2016 Financial Statements are in compliance with the full accrual accounting method and
reports the 2015 comparative financial information. The reporting includes the budgeted
amounts, as audited, in comparison to the actual results and Council’s adopted budget.

The Financial Statements recognize all tangible capital assets on the Consolidated Statement

of Financial Position (balance sheet) and the recognition of amortization of assets as an
expense on the Consolidated Statement of Operations (income statement). Capital
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expenditures are removed from the Statement of Operations and replaced by amortization
expense. Specifically, depreciable tangible capital assets are to be written off over their
expected useful life rather than expensing a capital asset in the year of purchase.

In addition, the Financial Statements report the results from adjustments to unfunded liabilities
such as interest accruals, long term debt, Workplace Safety & Insurance Board (WSIB) and
employee future benefits which are part of the Accumulated Surplus. These items are not
required to be funded by current accounting regulations, but represent a future cost to the
City that Financial Statement readers should be aware of and are required to be reported by
PSAB regulations.

Accumulated surplus (Note 10 to the Financial Statements) is comprised of all the
accumulated surpluses and deficits of the City’s operating funds (including General, Water
and Wastewater capital funds). It includes reserves and reserve funds, investment in tangible
capital assets, operating surplus and deficits of consolidated agencies that are included in the
Financial Statements (Library Board, Downtown Development Board Business Improvement
Area (BIA), Main Street BIA, and Niagara Central Airport Commission) and unfunded liabilities
(long term debt and employee benefit obligations).

The reserves and reserve funds are shown in Note 11 to the Financial Statements and are
encumbered for specific purposes.

Accumulated surplus primarily consists of the City’s investment in Tangible Capital Assets
which represents the unamortized cost of the assets which will be reported as an expense in
the future through amortization over their useful lives.

The Consolidated Statement of Financial Position is consolidated showing Net Financial
Assets (Net Debt) and Non-Financial Assets to report the overall financial position of the City
as Accumulated Surplus which is detailed in Note 10 to the Financial Statements. The
Accumulated Surplus is primarily made up of the Tangible Capital Assets and reserve fund
allocations and is not available for distribution to ratepayers.

The Consolidated Statement of Operations is reported on a consolidated basis with budget
comparisons. As noted above, this statement does not include capital expenditures as they
have been capitalized and will be amortized over their useful life with the annual amortization
expensed to this statement. This statement summarizes the revenues and expenses that
have occurred throughout the reporting period. It then records any revenue related to
Tangible Capital Assets for the current annual surplus (deficit).

The Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows illustrates the effects operations, capital asset
purchases and debt proceeds/payments have on the cash position of the municipality. The
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Net Financial Assets (Net Debt) provides a
reconciliation of the annual surplus to the change in Net Financial Assets (Net Debt).

Corporate Services Division, Report No.; 2018-06 Page 2 of 8
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2016 Financial Report

The Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Balance Sheet) provides for
accounting policies and balances as follows:

a) Employee benefit obligations for vested sick leave, WSIB and post-employment
benefits are accounted for by an actuarial valuation and shown on the balance sheet
as a liability. The sick leave benefits are partially funded by a reserve, which were
decreased from $85,007 to $36,118 in 2016, and is currently under funded. The WSIB
and post-retirement benefits are funded on a current year basis. This unfunded liability
amounts to $8,042,000 (2015 - $7,860,679) (Note 8 to the Financial Statements) and
reduces the Accumulated Surplus. The valuation was updated in 2015 as required
every 3 years.

b) Deferred Revenues are revenues collected under the Development Charges Act,
recreational land (Parks) and Federal Gas Tax Revenues for development purposes
and shown on the balance sheet as a liability. This amounts to $321,237 (2015 -
$692,294) (Note 5 to the Financial Statements). These revenues are brought into
income as expenditures are incurred.

c) The City's unfunded long term debt amounts to $11,742,073 (2015 - $13,214,271)
(Note 7 to the Financial Statements) which includes outstanding debentures and
capital lease obligations under full accrual accounting. All principal debt payments are
no longer expensed and are applied directly to the debt payable. Previously this
amount was reported as an amount to be recovered in the future. As it is unfunded,
long term debt is a reduction of the Accumulated Surplus.

In addition, the City incurred a constrljction loan to finance the new Operations Centre
pending the issuance of the debenture in 2017. This amounted to $7,437,000 of the
approved debenture of $14,230,000 (Note 6 to the Financial Statements).

d) The City’s cash amounted to $1,439,226 (2015 - $3,464,908) and a bank indebtedness
of $NIL. Investments amount to $12,132,914 (2015 - $10,593,831) which includes
GICs increased from the sale of the investment in NRBN (Note 3 to the Financial
Statements). Taxes receivable amounted to $1,979,562 (2015 - $1,949,060) and user
charges (water/wastewater) receivable amounts to $1,801,174 (2015 - $1,410,790).

Other receivables include grants, other receivables and drains receivable amounting
$2,899,675 (2015 - $2,877,855).

All of the above assets and liabilities are based on cash or readily available cash required to
pay for liabilities which amount to a Net Financial Debt position of the municipality being
$13,571,787 (2015 - $6,439,145). This debt position is attributed to the long term debt and
employee benefit obligations which will require future cash flow. This is a measure of the
resources that the City has to finance future operations. The Non-Financial Assets are
primarily the Tangible Capital Assets and amount to $125,937,648 (2015 - $116,082,367)
which is the net book value of assets (cost less accumulated amortization) based on historical
costs. The Accumulated Surplus of $113,315,587 (2015 - $110,275,900) represents the net
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financial assets of the City including the City’s Tangible Capital Assets and is detailed in Note
10 to the Financial Statements as described previously in the report. This represents the net
resources (both financial and physical) which are not readily available for spending as the
majority of its value is non-financial capital assets that the City has to provide City services.

The accumulated surplus represents Port Colborne’s net financial position and its ability to
meet the current and future needs of the community.

The Consolidated Statement of Operations (Income Statement) reports the annual
surplus/deficit from operations during the accounting period. It is a summary of the sources,
allocation and use of financial resources throughout the reporting period.

This statement, under PSAB standards:

- does not include transfers to/from reserves and capital (as budgeted) as they are not
considered as a source of revenue/expense for municipal activities.

- - capital expenditures are not included as expenses but are capitalized. It is the amortization
expense (not budgeted) of capital assets which are included as a non-cash expense on
the statements. _

- grants or cash raised for the purpose of purchasing capital assets are inciuded in revenues
and not allocated to the purchase of the asset. The expenditure is the amortization of the
asset over its useful life.

- capital projects, such as drains, benefitting and assessed to landowners which were
previously reported as unfunded capital until collected are shown as a receivable on the
Statement of Financial Position.

The Financial Statements show an Annual Accounting Surplus in 2016 of $3,039,687 (2015
- $5,429,622) and is equal to the annual excess of revenues over expenses for the year and
is related primarily to capital grants and revenues. The revenues raised during the year
covered the cost of services provided, including the annual cost of using capital assets to
provide those services and the funding of capital assets through grants. As this annual deficit
or surplus takes into account amortization of assets, loss on sale of assets and does not
consider the acquisition of capital assets and principal debt payments, this surplus is not
indicative of the operational surplus/deficit in any given year.

In 2016, the City experienced an overall cash surplus in general operations in the amount of
$169,333. Various revenues exceeding budget and expenditures being under budget created
variances within the accounts for both surpluses and/or deficits throughout the department
budgets. Staff recommend that the allocation of the 2016 general operating cash surplus be
transferred to the following reserves: $10,000 in surplus wharfage fees collected to the
Goderich Elevators reserve fund, $50,000 in surplus from the Marina to the Marina Capital
reserve fund, $47,000 in surplus from the Building Division to the Building reserve, $31,074
to the Salary/Wages reserve for 2017 increases and $31,259 to unfunded capital 861 Elm
Street land sale and 40-44 Killaly Street property per Schedule C.

The following funds were transferred from 2016 operations to specific reserves for future
expenditures as such funds were received or budgeted for in 2016 but will not be expended
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until 2017 or future years:

Human Resources
Physician Recruitment
Fire

Fire

Wastewater Operations
Corporate Services
‘Corporate Services
Wastewater Equipment
Wastewater
Wastewater Capital
Water

Water Equipment
Storm Sewers

Nickel Area Storm Sewers

Public Works/Parks
Public Works/Parks
Nickel Beach
Sidewalks

Bethel Community Centre

Planning
Community Services
Museum

Streetlights Debt
Marina

Roselawn

Roselawn

Transit funding

Vale H&W Centre
Traffic Study

Traffic signals
Tourism Centre
Economic Development
Marina

Employee Benefits

"Land Sales

WSIB

Skatepark Debt

Library

Library

New Operations Centre
Debenture Debt

$ 10,102 — consultant budgeted 2016

$ 41,260 — 2016 savings

$ 34,000 - Vol FF Recruitment

$ 20,000 — Communication Upgrades

$ 60,461 — Sewer TV Inspections

$ 40,000 — Records Mgmt Project budgeted

$ 33,763 — Finance System Project

$ 6,437 — unspent capital funds

$ 320,994 - rate stabilization

$ 1,113,000 — capital funds

$ 279,633 — rate stabilization

$ 5,354 — budgeted in 2016 (Net)

$ 25,472 —flushing funds for 2017
$ 1,100,000 — project for 2017 ’
$ 101,422 — various projects completion in 2017 :’
$ 159,637 — Equipment Replacement

$ 3,000 — Qutdoor showers not done

$ 70,902 — to be completed in 2017

$ 55,500 — Roof and Doors

$ 6,126 — Development Charge Study

$ 13,219 — Various programs

$ 1,861 — Donations for Equipment

$ 15,110 — savings for future debenture payments
$ 3,858 - POCOMAR balance of reno funds
$ 9,579 — fees collected for capital works
$ 43,604 — capital funds budgeted

$ 17,648 — Prov Gas Tax for 2017 program
$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

150,183 — sponsorships for debt payments
10,000 ~ continuation of the program
44,845 — Pedestrian Walk Main St

1,768 — remaining funds from windows project
10,000 — Corporate/Tourism branding
10,775 — Sewer Pumping Station

50,000 — Greenshield funds refunded

39,091 — surplus land sales

61,610 — surplus of claims and premiums
15,000 - sponsorships for debt payments

4,195 — budget stabilization surplus
2,823 - WSIB »
365,000 — ongoing project
52,078 — future debt
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The following funds were transferred from 2016 reserves to operations/capital for 2016
expenditures budgeted in 2016 or previously budgeted in 2015:

e SCADA Water Study $ 14,530 - ongoing program

o Water Rate Stabilization $ 279,633 - funding water deficit & frozen services
¢ Lakeshore Watermain $ 230,884 — capital project completed in 2016

¢ Signs ‘ $ 3,480 - City Entrance Signs

¢ Playground Equipment $ 66,283 — completion in 2016

¢ Water capital $ 704,885 — completion capital projects in 2016

o Water Meter Replacements $1,806,164 — completion capital project in 2016

¢ Nickel Area Storm Sewers $ 239,643 — design project costs for 2017

o Fire $ 24,258 — Additional cost for roof

¢ Physician Recruitment $ 15,000 —fund recruitment

e Engineering $ 11,000 — GIS computer in 2016

o Fire $ 129,899 — Firefighter retro pays

e« Community Services $ 15,172 — Aged Needs Study completed in 2016
¢ Marina $ 72,664 — LES Grant renovations completed

e Library $ 81,904 — Capital projects

¢ Sick Leave $ 50,426 — retirement payout

¢ Traffic Signals $ 91,834 — complete projects

e Vale Centre Debt $ 343,817 — payment of debenture

o Capital Infrastructure $ 9,298 — costs associated with NRBN sale

Currently, there is $3,023,822 (2015 - $2,511,422) included in the overall operating deficit due
to projects not funded in the past but are to be recovered in the future through other sources
of revenue such as sale of specific property, taxation, debentures and matured debentures.
These Unfunded Capital Projects are attached in Schedule “C”.

The Consolidated Statement of Changes in Net Financial Assets/Debt reports the City's
financial activities during the year by way of the Annual Surplus (Deficit) and eliminates all
non-financial activity such as amortization, write down of Tangible Capital Assets, acquisition
and disposals of Tangible Capital Assets, gain/loss on sale of capital assets and prepaid
expenses from the Statement of Operations. This measures the increase or decrease in net
financial assets/debt which represents the City’s ability to pay for its liabilities and provide the
resources for the City to finance future operations. In 2016, the increase in net debt was
$7,132,642 (2015-the decrease in net debt was $2,915,131) and amounts to a net debt of
$13,571,787 (2015 - '$6,439,145) as at December 31, 2016. As stated previously, this in
mainly due to future employee benéefit obligations and the long term debt of debentures net
of the City’s financial assets.

The Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows explains how the City financed its activities
and met its cash requirements resulting in a change in cash over the reporting period. It
provides for changes in activities from operations, capital, financing and investing. It displays
a net decrease in cash of $2,025,682. This results from a net change in operations of cash
amounting $8,156,846, net acquisition in capital assets of $14,789,568, a net increase of debt
of $6,146,123 and an increase in investments of $1,539,083. Cash and cash equivalents
amount to $1,439,226 (2015 - $3,464,908) at the end of the year.
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The Consolidated Schedules of Tangible Capital Assets for 2016 and 2015 year ends are
on pages 28 and 29 of the Financial Report. These schedules provide information on the
gross costs, additions/disposals, amortization and net book value of the City's assets. The
classes of assets include: land, land improvements, buildings, vehicles, furniture/equipment,
infrastructure and construction in process. The net book value of the capital assets is
$125,937,648 as compared to 2015 for $116,082,367.

The Consolidated Schedules of Segment Disclosure (pages 30 to 33 in the Financial
Report) reports revenues and expense amounts that are directly related to the segment. The
segments that are reported for disclosure of services are: General, Water, Wastewater and
Port Colborne Public Library Board. Segmented information as required under PSAB is
described in Note 22 to the Financial Report. The City provides for a wide range of services
that reflect the way in which the operations are managed. City expenses are reported by
function in the Statement of Operations such as: General Government, Protection to

persons/property, Environmental, Transportation, Recreation and Cultural and
Planning/Development.

Auditor's Report

The City's auditor, Grant Thornton, has concluded an audit of the records of the Corporation
and has issued an unqualified audit opinion on the financial statements for 2016. This means
that there were no significant internal financial control weaknesses or material errors noted
during the audit and the financial statements are free of material misstatement; the financial

- statements present fairly the financial position of the City of Port Colborne as at December
31, 2016.

The "Report to Council - Communication of Audit Results" is provided to Council as Schedule
“B”, with the December 31, 2016 draft audited Financial Report. This report is addressed to
Members of Council from Grant Thornton to communicate such matters as the audit results
and reportable matters they believe should be brought to Councnl s attention.

4) OPTIONS AND FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS

No financial impact.

5) COMPLIANCE WITH STRATEGIC PLANNING INITIATIVES
Not applicable.

6) ATTACHMENTS

- Schedule “A" - The 2016 Draft Financial Report.

- Schedule “B" - Report to Council - Communication of Audit Results from Grant Thornton
- Schedule “C" - Unfunded Capital Projects
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7) RECOMMENDATION

That the 2016 draft audited Financial Report for the year ended December 31, 2016 be
approved.

8) SIGNATURES

Prepared on January 5, 2018 by: Reviewed and respectfully submitted by:
o {.‘}'”f'}- r oo ¥ ’

Peter Senese C. Scott Luey

Director of Corporate Services Chief Administrative Officer
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City of Port Colborne
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

As at December 31 2016 2015
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 2) $ 1,439,226 $ 3,464,908
Portfolio investments (Note 3) 12,132,914 10,593,831
Taxes receivable 1,979,562 1,949,060
User charges receivable : 1,801,174 1,410,790
Other receivables 2,898,675 2,877.855
20,252,551 20,296,444
Liahilities
Payables and accruals 4,361,558
Other liabilities 606,787
Deferred revenue (Note ) 692,294
Construction loan (Note 6) i -
Long term debt (Note 7) s 11,742,073% 13,214,271
Employee benefit obligations (Notes 8 and 17). “. 8,042,000 7,860,679
33,824,338 26,735,589
Net debt (13,571,787) (6,439.145)
Non-financial assets
Tangible capital assets (Note 9 and Pages 28 and 29) 125,937,648 116,082,367
Prepaid expenses 949,726 632,678
126,887,374 116,715,045
Accumulated ﬁrplus (Note 10) $ 113,315,587 $ 110,275,900
Contingencies (Note 20)
Approved by
Director of Corporate Services Chief Administrative Officer
See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements,
3
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City of Port Colborne

Consolidated Statement of Operatlons
For the Year Ended December 31, 2016

Budget Actual Actual
2016 2016 2015
{Note 23)
Revenue
Taxation (Note 12) $ 15691,076 $ 15,768,064 $ 14,688,088
User charges (Note 14) 12,999,506 12,462,080 11,914,135
Government transfers (Note 15) 3,080,366 3,206,916 3,169,890
Other (Note 18) 779,495 979,943 945,899
%,

32,550,443 32.417,003 30,718,012

Expenses
General government 5,196,241
Protection to persons and property 3,458,214
Transportation services 5,042,918
Environmental services 8, 852L399 10,318,615
Health services 214,672 189,231
Social and family services 46,464 20,000
Recreation and culture services " 7,994,237 7,600,794
Planning and development 2,065,641 2,531,120

31,850,734 34,366,133

Net revenues (expenses) 566,269 (3.648,121)
Other g
Revenue related to tangxble capital‘ass
Government transfers (Note 15) 7 839,592 1,945,543 1,735,042
Other (Note' 16) = 2,500 449,397 577,218
Gain on disposal of tangible -
capital assets Sy - 78,478 40,483
Gain on sale of mvestment in Niagara
Regional Broadband Network Limited - - 6,725,000
842,092 2473418 9,077,743
Annual surplus 762,739 3,039,687 5,429,622
Accumulated surplus (Note 10)
Beginning of year 110,275,900 110,275,900 104,846,278
End of year $ 111,038,639  $113,315,687  $110,275,900

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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City of Port Colborne

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Net Debt
For the Year Ended December 31, 2016

Budget Actual Actual
2016 2016 2015
{Note 23)

Annual surplus $ 762,739 § 3,039,687 $§ 5,429,622
Amortization of tangible capital assets 5,012,783 5,012,765 4,990,398
Acquisition of tangible capital assets (19,446,799) {15,204,882) (7,953,267)

Proceeds from sale of tangible
capital assets - . 415,314 716,473

Gain on disposal of tangible capital assets - ?“‘f;.-,("78,478) (40,483)

(13,671,277) 815,594) 3,142,743

Acquisition of prepaid expenses (317,048) (227,612)

(Increase) decrease in net debt (7,132,642) 2,915,131

Net debt

Beginning of year < _(6,439,145) (9.354,276)

End of year $ (6,439,145)

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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City of Port Colborne

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended December 31 2016 2015

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Operating activities

Annual surplus $ 3,039,687 $ 5,429,622
Non-cash items :
Amortization of tangible capital assets 5,012,765 4,990,398
Gain on disposal of tangible capital assets (78,478) (40,483)
Gain on sale of investment in Niagara Regional
Broadband Network Limited - (6,725,000)
Increase in taxes receivable (62,616)
(Increase) decrease in user charges receivable 102,370,

Increase in other receivables (21,820) (944,070)

Increase in payables and accruals 484 747
Increase (decréase) in other liabilities 6,0 (16,172)
(Decrease) increase in deferred revenue ,057) - 3,285
Increase in prepaid expenses (317,048) (227.612)
8,156,846 3,004,469
Capital activities
Proceeds from sale of tangible capital‘asséts © 415314 716,473
Acquisition of tangible capital assets " (15,204,882) (7.953,267)
{14,789,568) (7,236,794)
Financing activities
Issue of construction foan s 7,437,000 -
Issue of long term debt T 7 296,000 . 4,864,576
| - 6,861
{1,750,589) (1,077,152)
t of A (17,609) (19,411)
Increase in émployee benefit obligations 181,321 1,450,272
6,146,123 52251486
Investing activities
Proceeds from sale of investment in Niagara
Regional Broadband Network Limited - 7,500,000
Purchase of portfolio investments, net (1,539,083) (8,669,235)
(1,539,083) (1.189,235)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (2,025,682) (176,414)
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 2)
Beginning of year 3,464,908 3,641,322
End of year $ 1,439,226 $ 3,464,908
See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
6
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City of Port Colborne

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Year Ended December 31, 2016

1. Significant accounting policies
Management responsibility

The consolidated financial statements of the City of Port Colborne ("Municipality”) are the
responsibility of and prepared by management in accordance with Canadian public sector
accounting standards. The preparation of the consolidated financial statements necessarily
involves the use of estimates based on management's judgment, particularly when transactions
affecting the current accounting period cannot be finalized with certainty until future periods.

The significant accounting policies used are as follows:

(a) Reporting entity

The consolidated financial statements reflect the
assets, revenues, expenses and changes in accumu|ated surplu
The reporting entity is comprised of all organii‘
administration of their affairs and resources to'tf
controlled by the Municipality. |n addition

operations, they include the followingi

liabilities, non-financial
the reporting entity.
ions and, enterprises accountable for the
Aunicipality and which are owned or
general government tax-supported

Port Colborne Public Library Boar
Port Colbome D

The statements exc\ude trust assets that are administeréd for the benefit of external
parties (Note 19).

(b) Basis of accounting

Sources of revenue and expenses are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. The
accrual basis of accounting records revenues in the period they are earned and

measurable and expenses in the period the goods and services are acquired and a liability
is incurred.
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City of Port Colborne

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Year Ended December 31, 2018

1.

(c)

(d)

(e)

®

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and temporary investments include cash on hand, balances with banks and
guaranteed investment certificates that mature within one year, ‘

Portfolio investments

Portfolio investments are valued at the lower of cost and market value. Interest income is
reported as revenue In the period earned. .

Deferred revenue

Revenues received in advance of expenses thf will be incurred in a later period are
deferred until they are eared by being matched against those expenses.

Employee future benefits

The present value of the cost of provndlng employees with future benefit programs is
expensed as employees earn: these entltlements through service.

Contaminated sites ||abilg

Contaminated ;sités ‘afe. 2
sediment of & chemical; ¢
environm 13 tal standard.

s anenvironme I:standard exists,
*  contamination-éxceeds the environmental standard;
«  the Municlpality:
o isdirectly responsible; or
o accepts responsibility;
« itis expected that futlire economic benefits will be given up; and
*  areasonable estimate of the amount can be made. '

The liability is recognized as management's estimate of the cost of post-remediation
including operation, maintenance and monitoring that are an integral part of the
remediation strategy for a contaminated site.
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City of Port Colborne

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Year Ended December 31, 2016

1.

(h)

)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Tangible capital assets

Tangible capital assets are recorded at cost. Cost includes all directly attributable
expenses in the acquisition, construction, development and/or betterment of the asset
required to install the asset at the location and in the condition necessary for its intended
use. Contributed tangible capital assets are capitalized at their estimated fair value upon
acquisition.

The Municipality does not capitalize interest as part of the cosj%éagf its capital assets,

Works of art for display in municipal property are
works of art are held for exhlbmon educational 2 ] |

significance. No valuat!on of the collectlon
consolidated financial statements.

Leases are classified as capital or dperating lease
benefits incidental to ownership are
accounted for as operating leases a
expenses as incurred.

eases that transfer substantially all
al leases, All other leases are
lated-lease payments are charged to

Amortization is calculated on’ a stranght—hne basis to write-off the net cost of each asset
over Its estimated useful-life for all classes ‘except land. Land is considered to have an
infinite life without amortlzatlon ‘Residual values of assets are assumed to be zero with
any net gain or-logs arlsmg from the dlsposal of assets recognized in the consolidated
statement of’ operatlons as "other.revenue”. Half-year amortization is charged in the year
of acqwsl’uon and disposal. Assets under construction are not amortized until the asset is
available for. productlve use.

Amorttzatlon is based on the following classifications and useful lives:

Classmcatlon Useful Life
Land improvements 10-100 years
Buildings 20-50 years
Leasehold improvements 20-50 years
Vehicles 10-20 years
Office equipment and furniture and fixtures 5-10 years
Machinery and equipment 3-30 years
Infrastructure 10-100 years

Subdivision infrastructure

Subdivision streets, lighting, sidewalks, drainage and other infrastructure are required to
be provided by subdivision developers. Upon completion they are turned over to the

Municipality and recorded as tangible capital assets. The Municipality is not involved in
the construction.

125




City of Port Colborne

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Year Ended December 31, 2016

1.
0

(k)

U

Signlficant accounting policies (continued)
Revenue recognition

i) Taxation

Property tax billings are prepared by the Municipality based on assessment rolls issued by
the Municipal Properly Assessment Corporation (‘MPAC"). Tax rates are established
annually by Council incorporating amounts to be raised for local services and amounts

and renders supplementary tax billings. Asse
subject to appeal. Any supplementary billing
determination of such changes will be~>recogn|zed
and the effect shared with the school b

iy  Usercharges

User charges are recognized

gr] n the serVices are performed or goods are delivered and
there is reasonable assura ion,

ii) Governr_péﬁtit’fan_s}fer

Governr_n,ejng transfers inciyqe entitlements, transfers under shared cost agreements, and
grants.” Revenue is recognized for entitlements and grants in the period received.
Revenue is recognlzed for transfers under shared cost agreements in the period the costs
are incurred. ¢ .

iv)  Other

Other revenue is recorded when it is earned and collection is reasonably assured.
Reserves for future expenses

Certain amounts, as approved by Municipal Councll, are set aside in reserves and reserve
funds for future operating and capital expenses.

Local improvements

The Municipality records capital expenses funded by local improvement agreements as
they are incurred. Revenues are recognized in the year they become payable,

10
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City of Port Colborne

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Year Ended December 31, 2016

1.

(m)

(n)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Region and school board transactions

The taxation, other revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities with respect to the
operations of the school boards and the Region of Niagara are not reflected in the
accumulated surplus of these consolidated financial statements,

Use of estimates

The preparatxon of financial statements in accordance w:h‘:: Canadian public sector
accounting standards requires management to make mates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and digclosure of contingent assets

and expenses during the reporting period, Actual It
Two areas in which management make estimates are wnth reg

2.

Cash on hand

Cash and cash equivalents 2016 015

$ 3,950 3 4,350

Bank balances 1,436,276 3,460,558
$ 1,439,226 $ 3,464,908
3. Portfolio mvestment

Guaranteed lnvestment certlftcates carry an effective interest rate from 1.00% to 2.50% and
maturity datés ranging from January, 2017 to December, 2020. Interest is receivable on
maturity. Carrying value approxnmates market value,

(
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City of Port Colborne

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Year Ended December 31, 2016

4. Bankindebtedness

An operating line of credit of $ 4,000,000 has been established with the CIBC, of which $ Nil
{2015 - $ Nil) was used at December 31, 2016. An executed borrowing by-law in form and
content satisfactory to CIBC is in effect to a limit of $ 4,000,000. Interest is calculated at prime
minus 0.50%. Overdrafts outstanding under the line of credit are converted to a promissory note
at the CIBC's request which has not been enacted.

5. Deferred revenue L 2016 015
Development Charges Act § 215,898 $ 415083
Parkland 16,315 924
Federal gas tax 275,387

$ 692,294

The deferred revenue is made up of the following:
“$ 692,294 $ 689.009

Balance, beginning of year

Contributiohs from

Parkland 17,200 -
Interest earned 8,400 11,116
Gas tax grants received

Federal 560,148 533,475

585,748 544 591
Utilized for: =
Tangible capital asset,acc@yisitions {956,805} (541,308)
Balance, end of year ‘ $ 321,237 $ 692,204

6. Construction loan

The City entered into an agreement with the Ontario Infrastructure and Lands Corporation
("OILC" to temporarily borrow money to finance capital expenditures relating to the operations
centre for $ 13,780,000 and the east side employment lands for $ 450,000 to a maximum of
$ 14,230,000, pending the issue of debentures in 2017. The City is paying interest on the loan
monthly at the OILC floating interest rate until the loan is replaced by the debenture. Principal
payments will begin once the debenture is issued.

12
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City of Port Colborne

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Year Ended December 31, 2016

7.

(a)

(b)

Long term debt

N
—
{o2]
N
(o)
-
w

B
|

The balance of net long term debt reported on the
consolidated statement of financial position is made up
of the following:

The Municipality has assumed responsibility for the payment
of principal and interest charges on certain long term debt
issued by the Region of Niagara. At the end of the year,
the outstanding principal amount of this debt is $ 11,708,601 3 13,163,190

Capital lease obligations 51.081
Net long term debt $ 13,214,271
The net long term debt:

Debenture interest

Number Purpose Rates 2015

74-2003 Marina Pavilion/

Restaurant and
Fire Dept. HQ 694,000 $ 1,014,000
57-2006 Flre Truck 2016 - 346,000
72-2007 t
4,90 to 5. 10% 2017 104,224 203,478
61-2008 37010 4.90% 2018 165,000 © 242,000
67-2009 ip.1.15104.80% 2019 155,000 203,000
73-2010 dv-;Clty Hall, Marina, *-
* Main St. CIP; and ¥
’ 1.60to 4.65% 2020 1,262,101 1,437,314
46-2013 1 :
Weilness Centre 2.67% 2023 2,039,192 2,322,869
47-2013 Roads and Fire )
Dept. : 3.37% 2033 696,063 727,159
48-2013 Skatepark Fuel
Tanks and Op.
Centre Design 3.70% 2043 1,764,119 1,802,794
75-2015 LED Street Lights
and Water Meters 1.15t02.80% 2025 2,498,000 2,755,000
94-2015 Fire Tanker and :
Watermains 3.46% 2035 2,034,902 2,109,576
34-2016 Fire Truck 1.20t01.60% 2021 296,000 -
Leased Vehicles
and Equipment  Various 2016-18 33,472 51,081

$ 11,742,073 $ 13,214,271
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City of Port Colborne

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Year Ended December 31, 2016

7.  Longterm debt (continued)

{¢) Principal repayments in each of the next five years are due as follows:

2017 $ 1,530,628
2018 1,472,469
2019 1,045,319
2020 1,501,320
2021 . 831,541

" {d) The Municipality paid § 445,608 (2015 $ 364,868) mterest Vzn""long term debt during the
year.

8. Employee benefit obligations 015

Workplace Safety and Insurance Board

future benefits $ 1,851,400 $ 1,837,779

Vested sick leave benefits 249,300 268,900
Retirement benefits 5,941,300 5,754,000
8,042,000 7,860,679

(36,118) (85,007)

Less: sick leave funded by reserve

$ 8,005,882 $ 7,775,672

(a} Workplace Safety d Insiirz cé Board future benefits

The City. Port Colborng is a W kplace Safety and Insurance Board (WSIB) Schedule 2

In 2018, an actuarial estimate of future liabilities has been completed and forms the basis
for the estimated habmty reported in these financial statements. In 2015, the City has
recorded an accrual for the estimate of future benefit costs and administrative loading as
calculated by the WSIB. During the year $ 38,237 (2015 - § 36,811) was paid by the City
to the WSIB in relation to these benefits.

~ The accrued benefit abligation at December 31, 2016 of $ 1,851, 400 was determined by
an actuarial valuation using a discount rate of 3.3%.

The most recent actuarial valuation was prepared at December 31, 2016,
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City of Port Colborne

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Year Ended December 31, 2016

8.

(a)

Employee benefit obligations (continued)

Workplace Safety and Insurance Board future benefits (continued)

The main actuarial assumptions employed above are as follows (where applicable):

(Y Interest (discount) rate

The obligations as at December 31, 2016 of the present value of future liabilities

were determined using a discount rate of 3.3%.

(iiy  Future benefit indexing rate

The rates used for loss of earnings benefits

d survivors benefits are

assumed to be 2% per annum. The rate for health benefits is assumed to be 4%

per annum.
2015
Accrued benefit obligation
Balance, beginning of year $ 1,837,800 $ 582400
Benefit payments (129,000) (109,300)
Current service cost 81,400 79,600
Interest cost 61,200 20,000
Increase in obligatior elate tonew
] - 1,265,100
Balance, end:of"j'/:éér $ 1,851,400 $ 1,837,800
Funded: status
Deficit ™% = $ 1,571,000 $ 1,837,800
Unamortized- actuana! gam 280,400 -
o $ 1,851,400  $ 1,837,800
The net benefit expense is as follows:
Current service cost $ 81,400 $ 79,600
Interest cost 61,200 20,000
Nat benefit expense $ 142,600 $ 99,600
15
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City of Port Colborne

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Year Ended December 31, 2016

8.

(b)

Employee benefit obligations (continued)

Vested sick leave benefits

Under the sick leave benefit plan for employees of the Port Colborne Firefighters'
Association, sick leave can accumulate and employees may become entitled to a cash

payment upon leaving the Municipality's employment.

The accrued benefit obligation at December 31, 2016 of $ 249,300 (2015 - $ 268,900)
was determined by an actuarial valuation using a discount rate.of 3.4%.

The most recent actuarial valuation for the vested

ick leave was prepared at
December 31, 2015.

The main actuarial assumptions employed for the vested sickzleave and retirement
benefits valuations above are as follows (wi efe ’
(i) Interest (discount) rate

The obligations as at Decemb 3%,
were determined using a discourit

(i) Salary increase rate

The rate used:t6increase salaries ;i;%"éssumed to be 3% per annum. This rate
reflects management:s best estimate’of future salary increases.

: 2016 2015

Accrued, beneflt obligat ;
nce,.beginning ofyear $ 268,900 $ 268,096
Benefit payments (51,300) (30,000)
Current service, cost - 24,700 23,900
Interest cost 8,600 8,600
Amortization of actuarial gain {1,600} {(1,696)
Balance, end of year $ 249,300 $ 268,900

Funded status

Deficit $ 237,000 $ 255,000
Unamortized actuarial gain 12,300 13.900
$ 249,300 $ 268,900
16
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City of Port Colborne

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Year Ended December 31, 2016

8. Employee benefit obligations (continued)

{b) Vested sick leave benefits (continued)

The net benefit expense for the employee benefit plan is as follows:

2016 015
Current service cost $ 24,700 $ 23,900
Interest cost . 8,600 8,600
Amortization of actuarial gain < (’I 600) (1.696)

Net benefit expense .31,700 $ 30,804

During the year $ 50,427 (2015 - § 48 34‘1) was pald to
Municipality's employment. The Municipalit
areserve, ¢

nployees who left the
as set a5|de $ 36, 1 1872015 - $ 85,007) in

{c) Retirement benefits

The City of Port Colborne pays ¢ rta| tirement :benefits on behalf of its retired
employees, The City of Port Colborne recogmzes ‘these retirement costs in the period in
which the employees repdered the services. The plan is substantially unfunded and

Actuarial valuatton fpr accountmg purposes are performed every three years using the
projected benefit méthod, pro-rated on service. Under this method, the projected

retirement benefits are deemed to be earned on a pro-rata basis over the employee’s
years of service.

The most recent actuarial valuation for the retirement benefits was prepared at
December 31, 2015.

The main actuarial assumptions employed for retirement benefits valuation above are as
follows (where applicable):

(iy  Interest (discount) rate

The obligations as at December 31, 2016 of the present value of future liabilities
were determined using a discount rate of 3.4%.

17
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City of Port Colborne

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Year Ended December 31, 2016

8.

(c)

Employee benefit obligations (continued)

Retirement benefits (continued)

(it}

(iii)

Accrued benefit obligation
Balance, beginning of year

Funded.:status

Balance, erid of yez

Medical costs

Drug costs were assumed to be 8% in 2016 and decrease 0.175% per year until
2036 when the rate will be 4.5% and continue thereafter,

Vision costs were assumed to be 2.5% in 2016 and decrease 0.25% per year until
2026 when the rate will be 0% and continue therea

Other health costs were assumed to be 4.5% in 2

Dental costs

Dental costs were assumed to be 6%in:2016 a}‘d-gecrease 1875% per year until
2024 when the rate will be 4.5% and contifue thereafter.

2016 2015

"$ 5,754,000 $ 65569,924

Benefit payments (337,900) (318,300)
Current service co 298,900 289,100
interest cost L 205,600 196,600
Amortization of actuarial loss~... ~  + 20,700 26,676

$ 5,941,300 $ 5,754,000

$ 6,083,100 $ 5916,500

Unamortized actuarlal Ioss (141,800) {(162,500)

$ 5,941,300 $ 5,754,000

The net benefit expense for the employee benefit plan is as follows:

Current service cost $ 298,900 $ 289,100
Interest cost 205,600 196,600
Amortization of actuarial loss 20,700 26,676
Net benefit expense $ 525,200 $ 512,378
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City of Port Colborne

Notes to the Consolidated Fmanmal Statements

For the Year Ended December 31, 2016

9. Tangible capital assets 2016 015
Net book value
Land $ 6,203,049 $ 6,411,698
Land improvements 9,361,806 9,573,052
Buildings - 34,967,968 36,326,976
Leasehold improvements 273,214 172,654
Vehicles 2,739,467 2,838,602
Office equipment and furniture and fixtures 593,763 614,486
Machinery and equipment 2,370,711 2,437,889
infrastructure 58,722,511 54,929,113
113,304,470
Assets under construction 2.777.897
$125,937,648  § 116,082,367
10. Accumulated surplus 2016 2015

Consists of.

Surpluses (deficits)
Operating $ (3,336,488) $ (2,827,898)
Port Colborne PublicL ‘rary Bo d 1,425 1,426
Port Colborne Downtown'Dayelopment | Board . 43,334 ~ 40,915
Port Colborne Main:Stre ss Improvement Area 28,051 23,932
Nlagara Central Airpor : ' 'j:gn'(Note 18) 18,625 26,452

| (3.245,053) (2,735.173)

Investment in tangible capital assets 125,937,648 116,082,367

Unfunded 7
Construction loan (7,437,000) -
Long term debt (11,650,183) (13,034,873)
Employee benefit obligations (8,042,000) (7,860,679)

Reserves and reserve funds (Note 11)

{27,129,183)

(20,895,552)

17,752,175

17,824,258

$ 113,315,587

$ 110,275,900

19
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City of Port Colborne

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the Year Ended December 31, 2016

11. Reserves and reserve funds

Reserves set aside for specific purposes by Council

Working capital

Recreation programs and facilities
- Acquisition of capital assets

Library

Museum

Transit

Election expense

Administration costs

Airport

Cemetery

Wastewater operations

Water operations

Total reserves

Reserve funds set aside for specific purpos
by Coungil or agreement '
Acquisition of fixed assets
Accumulated sick leave and disability
Administration costs =
Grain elevator property
Community centre ’
- Library
Transit v
Water projects

Total reserve fdﬁd;_

Total reserves and reserve funds

2016 2015

$ 703010 § 703010
339,114 352,474
2,085,445 1,450,757
34,598 27,580
18,259 16,399
75,100 75,100
47,956
816,357

33,232

16,978

1,793,579

: 2,981,579
7,632,319 8,315,001
7,365,171 6,411,270
36,118 85,007
1,133,189 1,031,630
891,041 845,563
465,656 647,574
191,301 241,120
37,380 18,891

. 228,202
10,119,856 9,509,257
$ 17,752,175  $ 17,824,258
20
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City of Port Colborne

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Year Ended December 31, 2016

12. Taxation Budget Actual Actual
2016 2016 2015
Real property ‘ $ 34,375,878  $ 33,311,518

From other governments
Payments in lieu of taxes 382,761 365,683

34,758,639 33,677,201

Less: taxation collected on behalf of (Nots 13)

Region of Niagara 13,471,321 13,490,355
School boards ,519,254 5498758

18}9"99.575 18,989,113

Net taxes available for municipal purposes $ 15,768,664 $ 14,688,088

Residential, multi-residential and farm

~$ 12,472,922  $ 11,396,484
Commercial and industrial

3,695,142 3,291,604

Net taxes avallable for municipal:pu $ 15,768,064 % 14,688,088

es received or receivable on behalf of the Region of

Niagara and Eheﬁ{school boards'were as follows:

2016 201
Region of Niagara - , $ 13,471,321  $ 13,490,355
School boards i 5,619,254 5,498,758

$ 18,990,675  §$ 18,989,113

The Municipality is required to levy and collect taxes on behalf of the Region of Niagara and the
school boards, These taxes are recorded as revenue at the amounts levied. The taxes levied
over (under) the amounts requisitioned are recorded as accounts payable (receivable).
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City of Port Colborne

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Year Ended December 31, 2016

14. User charges Budget Actual Actual
: 2016 2016 2015
Operating
Fees and service charges $ 2,475,349 $ 2815464 § 2,460,590
Direct water billings ' 4,707,244 4,383,898 4,209,330
Wastewater surcharges 5,691,436 4,934,473 5,032,943
Licences and permits 225477 328,245 211272

$ 12,999,506 $ 12,462,080 $ 11,914,135

15. Government transfers Actual
2015
Operating

Government of Canada $ 35,531
Province of Ontario 3,165,395 3,096,444
Municipal 413 37,916
3,206,916 3,169,890

Capital
Government of Canada “.,/743,000 748,951 1,425,000
Province of Ontario .+ 96,592 . 1,196,592 110,042
Municipal e - - 200,000
839,692 1,945,543 1,735,042

$ 3,919,958 $ 5152459 $ 4,904,932
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City of Port Colborne

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Year Ended December 31, 2016

16. Other revenue Budget Actual Actual
2016 2016 2015

Operating .
Penalties and interest on taxe $ 382,770 $ 409,426 $ 394,893
Fines 22,000 18,266 21,691
Interest income . 30,525 34,164 50,095
Rental income , 37,573 48,594 49,116

Investment income — reserves
and reserve funds - % 131,450 50,041

Contributions from developers 100,000 . *©

Transfer from trust funds 5,105 4,273 4,371
Donations 184,46@ 28,822 122,230
Other 17:060: 204,948 253,462

979,943 945,899

Capital
Contributions from developers 204,717 -
Donations 186,932 293,627
Other 57,748 283,591
3500 449,397 577.218
... <$781995 1429340  § 1523117

17. Pension

The Municip%lity 1akes contrib;i‘fions to the Ontario Municipal Employees Retirement System
("OMERS"), which multi-employer plan, on behalf of the members of its staff. The planis a
defined benefit plan that:specifies the amount of the retirement benefit to be received by the

employees based on tﬁfé‘:length of service and rates of pay. Employees and employers
contribute jointly to the plan.

Since OMERS is a multi-employer pension plan, the Municipality does not recognize any share
of the pension plan deficit of $ 2.3 billion (2015 - § 5.3 billion) based on the fair market value of
the plan's assets, as this is a joint responsibility of all Ontario municipal entities and their
employees. Contributions were made in the 2016 calendar year at rates ranging from 9.0% to
15.8% depending on the member's designated retirement age and level of earnings. Employer
contributions for current and past service are included as an expense in the consolidated
statement of operations. Employer contributions to OMERS for 2016 current and past service

was $ 761,678 (2015 - $ 771,777) and were matched by employee contributions in a similar
amount,
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City of Port Colborne

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Year Ended December 31, 2016

18. Niagara Central Airport Commission

The Niagara Central Airport Commission operates a two runway airport offering a year round
fixed base operation. The Commission is funded by the four nearby municipalities, City of
Welland, City of Port Colborne, Town of Pelham and the Township of Wainfleet. The City of
Port Colhorne has a non-controlling interest in the airport of 20%.

The following table provides condensed supplementary financial information for the Niagara

Central Airport Commission:

Financial assets
Cash and temporary investments
Receivables

Liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities

Net financial assets

Non-financial assets
Prepaid expenses
Fuel inventory
Tangible capital assets”

Accumulated:

Accumulated surplus consists of:
Operating surplus .. ’
Reserves
Investment in tangible tapital assets

Revenues
Grants
Fuel, rentals and other
Interest

Expenses

Annual surplus

2015

$ 125564

17,710

143,274

44,763 14,552
83,225 128,722
1,354 1,354
24,712 18,347

1,238,403 1,132,862
1,264,469 1,152,663

$ 1,347,694 $ 1,281,285

$ 93127 § 132,250
16,164 16,164
1,238,403 1,132,862

$ 1,347,694 $ 1,281,285

$ 84,450 $ 82800

162,110 109,079
477 935
(170,627) (166,679)

$ 66,410 $ 26,135
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City of Port Colborne

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Year Ended December 31, 2016

18. Niagara Central Airport Commission (continued)

The financial position information is as reported by the Niagara Central Airport Commission as
at December 31, 2016 and the results of operations are as reported for the year ended
December 31, 2016, The comparative financial position and results of operations figures are as
reported by the Niagara Central Airport Commission at December 31, 2015.

The Municipality has recorded in the financial statements its 20% share of the Niagara Central

Airport Commissions' assets, liabilities, accumulated surplus, revenues, expenses, and annual
surplus.

£

The following summarizes the Municipality's related party trans tlons "with the Niagara Central
Airport Commission for the year. All transactions are in the fofimal course of operations, and

are recorded at the exchange value based on normal coniifercia Btes, or as agreed to by the
parties.

2015
Government transfers ' " $ 16,890 $ 16,560

19, Trustfunds

Trust funds administered by the Mumolpallty amountingsto $ 386,188 (2015 - $ 358,553) have
not been included in the consglidated statement of financial position nor have these operations
been included in the consold d st ement of operahons

20, Contingencig_s*ﬁ‘l?

The Municipality:i; time to time in litigation, which arises in the normal course of
business. In rés sect of any gutstanding claims, the Municipality believes that insurance
coverage Is adequate: and that no material exposure exists on the eventual settiement of such
litigation, thersfore no provi 'on has been made in the accompanying financial statements.

21. Liabilities for contaminated sites

The Municipality reports environmental liabilities related to the management and remediation of
any contaminated sites where the Municipality is obligated or likely obligated to incur such

costs. Currently no such contaminated sites have been identified and therefore no liability has
been recorded.

The Municipality's ongoing efforts to assess contaminated sites may result in future
environmental remediation liabilities related to newly identified sites, or changes in the
assessments or intended use of existing sites. Any changes to the Municipality's liabilities for
contaminated sites will be accrued in the year in which they are assessed as likely and
reasonably estimable.
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City of Port Colborne

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Year Ended December 31, 2016

22. Segmented information

The Municipality is a diverse municipal government that provides a wide range of services to its
citizens. Segmented information has been identified for the service lines that reflect the way in
which the operations are managed and resource needs are identified and budgeted. Municipal
activities are reported by function in the body of the financial statements.

Certain departments that have been separately disclosed in the segmented information, along
with the services they provide, are as follows:

General

The general provision of municipal services includes
transportation services, storm sewer services, planning
cemeteries.

vernment, fire services,
nt, facilities, parks and

Water

metering and cost recovery for all treated Wi
settlement areas of the Municipality.

Wastewater

The wastewater operatlons install a

aintain’ wastewater capital infrastructure and recover
costs of providing thss service wi

all urban‘and settlement areas of the Municipality.

Port Colbome Pubhc lerary Board ;

The Port Colbom ublic Lpbra_r_y Board provides library services, materials and facilities, The
Municipality controls the board and consolidates the financial activities.

For each reported segm’ént, revenues and expenses represent both amounts that are directly
attributable to the segment and amounts that are aliocated on a reasonable basis.

The accounting policies used in these segments are consistent with those followed in the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements as disclosed in Note 1. The consolidated

schedule of segment disclosure and the schedules of segment disclosure with budget
information follow the notes.
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City of Port Colborne

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Year Ended December 31, 2016

23. Budget

The budget bylaw adopted by Council March 29, 2016 was not prepared on a basis consistent
with that used to report actual results in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting
standards. The budget was prepared on a modified accrual basis while Canadian public sector
accounting standards require a full accrual basis. As a result, the budget figures presented in
the consolidated statement of operations and consolidated statement of changes in net debt
represent the budget adopted by Council with the following adjustments:

Budgeted annual deficit $ 64,364
Add:
- Acquisition of tangible capital assets 19,446,799
Repayment of long term debt 1,696,293
Less:
Transfers to (from) reserves, net (2,731,669)
Amortization of tangible capital assets (6,012,783)
Debenture proceeds {12.700,365)
Budgeted deficit per consclidated statement_:of—?'op rations $ 762,739
27
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City of Port Colborne

Consolidated Schedule of Tangible Capital Assets
For the Year Ended December 31, 2016

Cost
Beginning of year

Additions
Disposals

End of year

Accumulated amortization
Beginning of year

Amortization
Amortization on disposals

End of year

Net book value

Land  Buildings and Fumiture and Construction
Land Improvements Leaseholds Vehicles E§uipment Infrastructure in Process 2016
$ 6411698 $ 16,811,714 3 46,414,989 5,628 § 102,110,260 $ 2,777,897 $ 186,663,614
- 289,388 353,228 ) ,&297’“ 5,949,952 8,701,202 15,968,822
(208,649) {62,245y (143,377 (274;84@) (342 655) (763,940) (2,067.825)
6,203,049 17.038,857 46.624.840 7,211.079 107.717.557 10,715,159 200,564,611
- 7,238,662 9,915,350 3,954,253 47,181,147 - 70,581,247
- 504,020 . -:1582,807 294’890 563,759 2,067,289 - 5,012,765
- (55,631} ] 114.508) (272,113} (271.407) (253,320) - (967,049}
- 7.687.051 .. 11383658 4,246,605 48.995.046 - 74,626,963
$ 6,203,049 .“:9',‘5'%:‘1:,{‘816‘6;;}_” $ 35241182 § 2,739,467 $ 2964474 $ 58722511 $ 10715159 $ 125,937,648
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City of Port Colborne

Consolidated Schedule of Tangible Capital Assets
For the Year Ended December 31, 2015

Cost
Beginning of year

Additions
Disposals

End of year

Accumulated amortization
Beginning of year

Amortization
Amortization on dispesals

End of year

Net book value

land  Buildings and Fumiture and Construction

Land Improvements L easeholds Vehicles ¢ Infrastructure in Process 2015

$ 6,466,065 $ 16,708,675 $ 46,090,400 $ 98,740,465 $1 ,437,745 $ 180,669,917
20,289 177,321 565,864 4,301,382 4,285,495 11,032,310
(74,656) (74,282} {241.375) _ (931,587) _ (2,945343) {5.038.613)
6411698 16.811.714 46,414,989 7.006.628 102,110,260 2777.897 186,663,614

- 6,761,803 8,421,865 3,616,612 45,724,783 - 66,874,429

- 264,807 556,223 2,063,217 - 4,990,398
- __ (322.447) (218.482) (606.853) - {1,283,580)

- 3,954 253 47.181.147 - 70.581.247

$ 6,411,698 $ 2,838,602 $ 3052375 $ 54929113 $ 2777897 $ 116,082,367
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City of Port Colborne

Consolidated Schedule of Segment Disclosure

For the Year Ended December 31, 2016

Revenue
Taxation

User charges
Govemment transfers

Cther revenue
Gain (loss) on disposal of
tangible capital assets

Expenses
Salaries and benefits
Materials
Contracted services
Rents and financial expenses
External transfers to others
Long term debt interest
Tax write-offs
Amortization
Inter-functional transfers

Annual surplus

General Water ﬁés,tgwater Library  Eliminations Consolidated

$ 15,768,064 $ ] - 3 - $15,768,064
3,093,256 26,574 - 12,462,080
5,109,516 729,633 (686,690) 5,152,459
33,112 S 1,429,340

- - 78,478

- 4,935,007 789,319 (686,690) 34,890,421

610,388 208,458 511,099 - 12,500,011

246,855 61,991 129,085 - 5,851,934

2,240,339 3,458,421 23,260 - 7,626,505

6,482 2,869 162 - 118,551

- - - - 154,994

‘‘‘‘‘ 294,726 106,358 - - - 401,084
£ 184,890 - - - - 184,390
4,082,436 497,503 363,792 69,034 - 5,012,765
235,908 247,616 203,166 - {686,690) -
23,550,546 3,955,541 4,298,697 732,640 (686,690 31,850,734

$ 1,728,406 $ 618,292 $ 636,310 $ 56,679 $ - % 3,039,687
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City of Port Colborne
Consolidated Schedule of Segment Disclosure

with Budget Information
For the Year Ended December 31, 2016 Budget

Actual

General government

Revenue
Taxation $ 15,691,076 $ 15,768,064
User charges 2,647,126 3,093,256
Government transfers : 3,877,188 5,109,516
Other ‘ 679,953 1,229,626
Gain on disposal of tangible capital assets . - 78,490
22,895,343 25,278,952
Expenses
Salaries and wages 88 11,170,066
Materials 5,414,651 5,414,003
Contracted services 1,701,200 1,904,485
Rents and financial expenses 124,185 109,038
External transfers to others 106,262 154,994
Long term debt interest " 312,780 294,726
Tax write-offs 255,698 184,890
Amortization 4,082,454 4,082,436
Inter-functional transfers 236,349 235,908
22,933 167 23,550,546
Annual surplus (deficit) = - $  (37,824) $ 1,728,406
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City of Port Colborne

Consolidated Schedule of Segment Disclosure

with Budget Information

For the Year Ended December 31, 2016 Budget Actual
Water
Revenue .
User charges $ 4,727,494 $ 4,407,243
Government transfers - -
Other 102,042 166,602
Loss on disposal of tangible capital assets - (12)
4,573,833
Expenses
Salaries and wages 610,388
Materials 246,855
Contracted services 2,240,339
Rents and financial expenses 6,482
Long term debt interest 109,096 106,358
Amortization 497,503 497,503
Inter-functional transfers " 247616 247,616
4,257 535 3,955,641
Annual surplus $ 572,001 $ 618,292
32
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City of Port Colborne

Consolidated Schedule of Segment Disclosure

with Budget Information

For the Year Ended December 31, 2016 Budget Actual
Wastewater
Revenue
User charges $ 5,596,436 $ 4,935,007
Government transfers - -
Other - -
Loss on disposal of tangible capital assets - -
4,935 007
Expenses
Salaries and wages 208,458
Materials 61,991
Contracted services 1o 3,458,421
Rents and financial expenses 6,2;:‘,0” 2,869
Amortization 363,792 363,792
Inter-functional adjustments 203,166 203,166
5,374,040 4,298,697
Annual surplus $ 222,396 $ 636,310
Library
Revenue
User charges - $ 28,450 $ 26,574
Government transfers 729,460 729,633
Other s - 33,112
Loss on disposal of tangible capital assets - -
757.910 789,319
Expenses
Salaries and wages 522,436 511,099
Materials 135,774 129,085
Contracted services 24,500 23,260
Rents and financial expenses - 162
Amortization 69,034 69,034
751,744 732,640
Annual surplus $ 56,679

$ 6,166
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City of Port Colborne
Trust Funds

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
As at December 31, 2016

Local  Julia Yager Fulton
Improvements Trust Trust
Assets
Cash $ 975 $ 1,045
Investments 6,252 -
~Accrued interest - -
Accumulated surplus $ 7227 $ 1,045
Consolidated Statement of Operations
For the Year Ended December 31, 2016
#Julia Yager Fuiton
Trust Trust
Revenue
interest earned $ 43 $ 1
Perpetual trust contributions - -
Donations - -
43 1
Expenses et
Transfer to capital fund = - - -
Transfer to reyen‘tle fund - - -
Annual surplus R A 167 43 1
Accumulated surplus
Beginning of year 22,077 7,184 1.044
End of year $ 22244 $ 7,227 $ 1,045
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Sherkston Overholt Roselawn Total

Total
Trust Cemetery Centre 2016 20156
$ 772 $ - $ 32,5633 $ 57,554 $ 43,169
10,639 311,708 - 328,599 316,361
- - 20 35 23
$ 11,411 $ 311,708 $ 32,553 $ 358,553
Sherkston Overholt Total Total
Trust Cemetery 2016 2015
3 66 $ 6,827 $ 7,288 $ 4,767
- 10,650 10,650 10,710
- 13,972 18,375
66 31,908 33,852
- 4,273 7,136
- , 4,273 7.136
6 13204 14,154 27,635 26,716
11,345 298,504 18,399 358,553 331,837
$ 11,411 $ 311,708 $ 32,5653 $ 386,188 $ 358,653
See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements
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City of Port Colborne
Trust Funds

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Year Ended December 31, 2016

1. Accounting policies

The consolidated financial statements of the trust funds of the City of Port Colborne are the
representation of management prepared in accordance with accounting policies prescribed for
Ontaric municipalities by the Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Housing. Since precise
determination of many assets and liabilities is dependent upon future events, the preparation of
periodic financial statements necessarily involves the use of estimates and approximations.
These have been made using careful judgements.

Significant aspects of the accounting policies adopted are as follows: ™

(a) Basis of accounting

Sources of financing and expenses are reported’on
accrual basis of accounting recognizes révenuesias they
measurable; expenses are recognized as th

is of accounting. The
y become available and
rred and measurable.

(b) Investments

Investments are recorded at cost.

Subdividers' deposit

Letters of credit, begi $ 479369  $ 454455

Net additions 619,354 24,914
Letters of credit, end of yéar $ 1,098,723 $ 479,369
These letters of credit are not reflected in the accounts.

37
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Grant Thornton

December 5, 2017

Members of Council of the
Corporation of the City of Port Colborne

Grant Th LLP
66 Charlotte Street o orton
Port Colborne, ON 222 Catharine Street. PO Box 336
= Port Colborne, ON
L3K 3C8 L3K 5W1
T +1 905 834 3651
To the Members of Council of the F +1 905 834 5095

E PortColborne@ca.gt.com

Cortporation of the City of Port Colborne: www.Gran(Thornlon.ca

We are pleased to report that we have now substantially completed our audit of the
consolidated financial statements (hereinafter the “financial statements”) of the Corporation of
the City of Port Colborne (hereinafter the “entity”) for the year ended December 31, 2016. We
enclose our Report to Conncil - Comninnication of andit results to continue our dialogue with the
committee on the audit of the entity. This report provides an overview of the results of our
audit including comments on misstatements, significant accounting policies, sensitive
accounting estimates, and other matters that may be of interest to the committee.

This communication has been prepared to comply with the requirements outlined in CAS 260
Communication with those Charged with Governance. The information in this document is intended
solely for the information and use of Council and management. It is not intended to be
distributed or used by anyone other than these specified parties.

We express our appreciation for the cooperation and assistance received from the management
and staff of the entity during the course of our audit.

If you have any particular comments or concerns, please do not hesitate to raise them at our
scheduled meeting.

Yours sincerely,

Grant Thornton LLP
& vy

James D. Brennan, CPA, CA
Principal

JDB/jf
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Status of the audit

Outstanding items
We have substantially completed our audit of the financial statements of the entity for the year ended
December 31, 2016 and the results of that audit are included in this report.

We have attached our draft auditor’s reports in the appendices. We will finalize the reports once
Council has approved the draft consolidated financial statements. The following items were
outstanding as at the date of this report:

e Approval of the financial statements by Council;
e Receipt of signed management representation letter (draft has been attached in appendix B);
e Procedures regarding subsequent events; and

e Responses from legal inquiries.
Planned audit approach

We have successfully executed our audit strategy in accordance with the plan presented to Council on
December 15, 2016.
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Audit results

Summary of misstatements

Misstatements identified and adjusted in the financial statements by the entity as a result of our audit
procedures are as follows:

Adjustments:

To adjust location of capital lease
obligation elimination for F/S.

To record change in unfunded
employee benefit obligations.

Non-trivial misstatements noted duting the course of our audit but not adjusted in the consolidated
financial statements were as follows:

Unadjusted misstatements

To accrue for statutory holidays which
are not recorded as part of the year end
payroll accrual and the reversal of the
prior year amounts.

To record overstatement of water and
sewer fixed charges and
understatement of accumulated surplus
due to catch up of revenue to calendar
year.

We have discussed the unadjusted misstatements with management and requested that the identified
amounts be adjusted. The amounts have not been adjusted for the following reason: they are not

material to the financial statement presentation.
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Other adjustments

Our audit did not identity any other adjustments made after receipt of the trial balance and audit
workpapers.

Summary of disclosure matters

Our audit did not identify any unadjusted non-trivial misstatements from disclosure matters.
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Reportable matters

Internal control

Management is responsible for the design and operation of an effective system of internal control that
provides reasonable assurance that the accounting system provides timely, accurate and reliable
financial information, and safeguards the assets of the entity.

The audit is designed to express an opinion on the financial statements. Our understanding of internal
control is sufficient to enable us to plan the audit and to determine the nature, timing and extent of
tests to be performed. If we become aware of a deficiency in your internal controls systems, auditing
standards requires us to communicate to the audit committee those deficiencies we consider significant
or material. However, a financial statement audit is not designed to provide assurance on internal
control.

During the course of performing our audit, we identified areas of improvement in internal control.
Our comments on the matter have been provided in an internal control letter to management.

159



Report to Council - Communicat
Corporation of the City «
For the year ended De

54
31

n of audit resuits
t Colborne
2016

Significant findings from the audit

As part of the audit, we identified the following significant items we wanted to discuss:

Significant findings

Considerations and results

Acceptable alternative None
accounting policies
Significant transactions None

Sensitive accounting estimates
and disclosures

The provision for post-employment benefits of approximately S 6,191,000.

Management engaged an actuary to calculate the liability for employees who
have taken early retirement based on the current annual benefits and the
number of years until the employees turn 65.

Liabilities have been recognized in the financial statements for future employee
benefits. The objective is to recognize a liability in the reporting period in which
employees have provided the services that give rise to the benefits.
Management's estimate is based on the actuary’s valuation report and is
reasonable in the context of the consolidated financial statements taken as a
whole. The actuary’s valuation was performed in accordance with the
standards of the Canadian Institute of Actuaries.

The provision for Workplace Safety and Insurance Board future benefits of
approximately S 1,851,000.

Management engaged an actuary to calculate the liability for employees who
have taken early retirement based on the current annual benefits and the
number of years until the employees turn 65.

Liabilities have been recognized in the financial statements for future employee
benefits. The objective is to recognize a liability in the reporting period in which
employees have provided the services that give rise to the benefits.
Management's estimate is based on the actuary’s valuation report and is
reasonable in the context of the consolidated financial statements taken as a
whole. The actuary’s valuation was performed in accordance with the
standards of the Canadian Institute of Actuaries.

The provision for uncollectible taxes of approximately $ 224,000.

Management reviews previous year's rebates to determine the current years.
Management also reviews accounts which are significantly in arrears and
determines if it is likely that they will be collected either through the land owner
or through tax sale.

For tax revenue amounts billed but may not be collected as of December 31,
2016. For uncollected accounts, management estimates the collectability of
these receivables based on their age and their knowledge of the specific
properties. As part of our audit, we review the age of the receivables and
search for any subsequent receipts or relevant communications to assess
whether management's allowance for uncollectable receivables is reascnable.
Management's estimate is reasonable in the context of the consolidated
financial statements taken as a whole.

Fraud and illegal acts

None
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Other matters to discuss

The following table outlines additional matters we would like to bring to your attention:

Factors affecting disclosure Useful life estimates of tangible capital assets
values

The estimated useful lives assigned to tangible assets are as follows:

Land improvements 10-100 years
Buildings 20-50 years
Leasehold improvements 20-50 years
Vehicles 10-20 years
Office equipment and furniture and fixtures 5-10 years
Machinery and equipment 3-30 years
Infrastructure 10-100 y=ars

Independence

We confirm that there have been no changes to our status with respect to independence since we
confirmed our independence to you on December 15, 2016.
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Technical updates

Canadian standards in transition

Accounting standards

Accounting standards issued by the Accounting Standards Board which may affect your business for
the current and future years have been summarized in Appendix C

Auditing standards

Recent changes to auditing standards have been summarized in Appendix D.

If you have any questions about these changes we invite you to contact us and we will be pleased to
address your concerns.
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Appendix A — Draft auditor’s report

Independent auditor’s report

To the Members of Council, Inhabitants and Taxpayers of the
Corporation of the City of Port Colborne

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Corporation of the
City of Port Colborne, which comptise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
December 31, 2016, and the consolidated statements of operations, changes in net financial assets
and cash flows for the vear then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information. i

Management’s responsibility for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit

to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present faitly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of the Corporation of the City of Port Colborne as at December 31,
2016, and the results of its operations, changes in net assets and cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards.

Port Colborne, Canada Chartered Professional Accountants
L2017 Licensed Public Accountants
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Independent auditor’s report

To the Members of Council, Inhabitants and Taxpayers of the
Corporation of the City of Port Colborne

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of the trust funds of the
Corporation of the City of Port Colborne, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at December 31, 2016, and the consolidated statement of operations for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared by management based on the financial reporting
provisions prescribed for Ontario municipalities by the Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Housing,

Management’s responsibility for the financial statements

Management 1s responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the trust funds of the Corporation of the City of Port Colborne as at December 31, 2016,
and the results of its operations for the year then ended in accordance with the financial reporting
provisions of the Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Housing.

Basis of accounting

Without modifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements,
which describes the basis of accounting. The consolidated financial statements are prepared to assist the
trust funds of the Corporation of the City of Port Colborne to comply with the reporting provisions of
the Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Housing. As a result, the consolidated financial statements may
not be suitable for another purpose.

Port Colborne, Canada Chartered Professional Accountants

L2017 Licensed Public Accountants
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Appendix B — Draft Management
representation letter

Management Representation Letter
Jamwary XX, 2018

Grant Thornton LLP

Chartered Professional Accountants
PO Box 336

Port Colborne, ON

L3K 5W1

Dear Sirs:

We are providing this letter in connection with your audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the Corporation of the City of Port Colborne as of December 31, 2016, and for the year then ended,
for the purpose of expressing an opinion as to whether the consolidated financial statements present
fairly, in all material respects, the financial position, results of operations, and cash flows of the

Corporation of the City of Port Colborne in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting
standards.

We acknowledge that we have fulfilled our responsibilities for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards and for the design
and implementation of internal controls to prevent and detect fraud and error. We have assessed the
risk that the consolidated financial statements may be materially misstated as a result of fraud, and have
determined such risk to be low. Further, we acknowledge that your examination was planned and
conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards (GAAS) so as to enable
you to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We understand that while your
work includes an examination of the accounting system, internal controls and related data to the extent
you considered necessary in the circumstances, it is not designed to identify, nor can it necessarily be
expected to disclose, fraud, shortages, errors and other irregularities, should any exist.

Certain representations in this letter are described as being limited to matters that are material. An item
is considered material, regardless of its monetary value, if it is probable that its omission from or
misstatement in the consolidated financial statements would influence the decision of a reasonable
person relying on the consolidated financial statements.
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We confirm, to the best of our knowledge and belict, as of January XX, 2018, the following
representations made to you during your audit.

Financial statements

1

The consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the entity as at December 31, 2016 and the results of its operations and its
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting
standards, as agreed to in the terms of the audit engagement.

Completeness of information

2

9

We have made available to you all financial records and related data and all minutes of the
meetings of Council and committees of Council, as agreed in the terms of the audit engagement.
Summaries of actions of recent meetings for which minutes have not yet been prepared have been
provided to you. All significant Council and committee actions dre included in the summaries.

We have provided you with unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom you
determined it necessary to obtain audit evidence.

There are no material transactions that have not been properly recorded in the accounting records
undetlying the consolidated financial statements. The adjusting journal entries which have been
proposed by you are approved by us and will be recorded on the books of the entity.

We arc unaware of any known or probable instances of non-compliance with the requirements of
regulatory or governmental authorities, including their financial reporting requirements.

We are unaware of any violations or possible violadons of laws or regulations the effects of which
should be considered for disclosure in the consolidated financial statements or as the basis of
recording a contingent loss.

We have disclosed to you all known deficiencies in the design or operation of internal control over
financial reporting of which we are aware.

We have identified to you all known related parties and related party transactions, including sales,
purchases, loans, transfers of assets, liabilities and services, leasing arrangements guarantees, non-
monetary transactions and transactions for no consideration.

You provided a non-attest service by assisting us with drafting the consolidated financial
statements and related notes. In connection with this non-attest service, we confirm that we have
made all management decisions and performed all management functions, have the knowledge to
evaluate the accuracy and completeness of the consolidated financial statements, and accept
responsibility for such consolidated financial statements.

Fraud and error

10

We have no knowledge of fraud or suspected traud aftfecting the entity involving management;
employees who have significant roles in internal control; or others, where the fraud could have a
non-trivial effect on the consolidated financial statements.
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11 We have no knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the entity’s
financial statements communicated by employees, former employees, analysts, regulators or
others.

We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation and maintenance of internal
control to prevent and detect fraud.

13 We believe that the effects of the uncorrected financial statement misstatements summarized in the

accompanying schedule are immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to the consolidated
financial statements taken as a whole.

Recognition, measurement and disclosure

14 We believe that the significant assumptions used by us in making accounting estimates, including
those used in arriving at the fair values of financial instruments as measured and disclosed in the
consolidated financial statements, are reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances.

15 We have no plans or intentions that may materially affect the carrying value or classification of
assets and liabilities, both financial and non-financial, reflected in the consolidated financial
statements.

16 All related party transactions have been appropriately measured and disclosed in the consolidated
financial statements.

17 The nature of all material measurement uncertainties has been appropriately disclosed in the
consolidated financial statements, including all estimates where it is reasonably possible that the
estimate-will change in the near term and the effect of the change could be material to the
consolidated financial statements.

18  All outstanding and possible claims, whether or not they have been discussed with legal counsel,
have been disclosed to you and are appropriately reflected in the consolidated financial statements.

19 Allliabilities and contingencies, including those associated with guarantees, whether written or

oral, have been disclosed to you and are appropriately reflected in the consolidated financial
statements.

20 With respect to environmental matters:

a) atyear end, there were no liabilities or contingencies that have not already been disclosed to
you,

b) liabilities or contingencies have been recognized, measured and disclosed, as appropriate, in
the consolidated financial statements; and

¢) commitments have been measured and disclosed, as appropriate, in the consolidated financial
statements.

21 The entty has saustactory title to (or lease interest in) all assets, and there are no liens or
encumbrances on the entity’s assets nor has any been pledged as collateral.
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We have disclosed to you, and the entity has complied with, all aspects of contractual agreements
that could have a material effect on the consolidated financial statements in the event of non-
compliance, including all covenants, conditions or other requirements of all outstanding debt.

23 The Harmonized Sales Tax (HST) transactions recorded by the entity are in accordance with the
federal and provincial regulations. The HST liability/receivable amounts recorded by the entity
are considered complete.

24 Employee future benefit costs, assets, and obligations have been determined, accounted for and
disclosed in accordance with the requirements of Section 3250 Retirement Berefits and Section 3255
Post-Employment Benefits, Compensated Absences and Terminations Benefits of the Canadian Institute of
Chartered Accountants (CICA) Public Sector — Accounting.

25  There have been no events subsequent to the statement of financial position date up to the date
hereof that would require recognition or disclosure in the consolidated financial statements.
Further, there have been no events subsequent to the date of the comparative financial statements
that would require adjustment of those financial statements and related notes.

Other

26 We have considered whether or not events have occurred or conditions exist which may cast
significant doubt on the Municipality’s ability to continue as a going concern and have concluded
that no such events or conditions are evident.

Yours very truly,

Chief Administrative Officer

Director of Corporate Services/Treasuter
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Non-trivial misstatements noted during the course of our audit but not adjusted in the consolidated
financial statements were as follows:

Unadjusted misstatements

To accrue for statutory holidays which |
are not recorded as part of the yearend |
payroll accrual and the reversal of the |
prior year amounts.

To record overstatement of water and
sewer fixed charges and
understatement of accumulated surplus
due to catch up of revenue to calendar |

year.
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Appendix C — PSAB

Accounting developments

Public Sector Accounting Board — [updated September 30, 2017] Effective date

Introduction to the PSA Handbook
The Introduction to the PSA Handbook has been amended to add a new type of Government components

public sector entity called a government component. A government component that adopt the PSA
is an integral part of a government, such as a department, ministry or fund, that standards - Fiscal periods
is not a separate entity with the power to contract in its own name and that can beginning on ar after
sue and be sued. Government components that want to prepare general January 1, 2017. Earlier
purpose financial statements must apply the standards for governments in the adoption is perinitted. :
PSA Handbook. GBPs that adopt the
As a result of adding the definition of a government component, the definition of standards applicable to
a government organization was amended. A government organization is any PAEs - Fiscal periods
organization controlled by a government that is a separate entity with the power beginning on or after
to contract in its own name and that can sue and be sued. Government January 1, 2017. Earlier
organizations include government business enterprises (GBEs), govemment adoption is permitted.
not-for-profit organizations (GNPOs) and other government organizations Government partnerships.
(OGOs). As a result of the change in the definition of a government other than GBPs, that
organization, some entities that were formerly classified as GNPOs or OGOs determine the standards
may now be classified as government compongnts which may resultin a change applicable to PAEs are
in the accounting framework that they are required to apply. most appropriate for their
Government business partnerships (GBPs) between two or more public sector partnership - Fiscal
entities that want to issue general purpose financial statements must apply the periods beginning on or
standards for PAEs in Part | of the CPA Canada Handbook — Accounting — after January 1, 2017.
IFRS. Earlier adoption is !
Non-business government partnerships between two or more public sector permitted. i
entities that want to issue general purpose financial statements would normally Government components,
apply the PSA Handbook, unless it does not meet the needs of the partnership’s GBPs and other
financial statement users. In that case the partnership can apply, the standards government parinerships
applicable to PAEs in Part | of the CPA Canada Handbook — Accounting — IFRS. that expect to change their
Factors to consider in assessing users' needs include, but are not limited to, basis of accounting must
whether the partnership: disclose this fact in the
o has issued, or is in the process of issuing, debt or equity instruments that are, ~ Perods preceding the
or will be, outstanding and traded in a public market; period the change
becomes effective.

¢ holds assets in a fiduciary capacity for a broad group of outsiders as one of its
primary businesses;

» has commercial-type operations and substantially derives its revenue from
these activities; and

« receives limited government assistance on an ongoing basis.

Government components and government partnerships that adopt the PSA
Handbook must account for the transition retroactively, with the restatement of
prior periods in accordance with Section PS 2125 First-time adoption.
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Public Sector Accounting Board — [updated September 30, 2017]

Effective date

Section PS 3450 Financial instruments, Section PS 2601 Foreign currency
translation, Section PS 1201 Financial statement presentation, and PS
3041 Portfolio investments

PS 3450 Financial instruments is a new Section that establishes standards for

recognizing and measuring financial assets, financial liabilities and non-financial
derivatives.

PS 2601 Foreign currency translation revises and replaces Section PS 2600
Foreign currency translation.

PS 1201 Financial statement presentation revises and replaces Section PS
1200 Financial statement presentation.

PS 3041 Porifolio investments revises and replaces Section PS 3040 Portfolio
investments.

The issuance of these new sections also includes consequential amendments to

« [niroduction to accounting standards that apply only to government not-for-
profit organizations

« PS 1000 Financial statement concepts
« PS 1100 Financial statement objectives
» PS 2125 First-time adoption by government organizations
« PS 2500 Basic principles of consolidation
o PS 2510 Additional areas of consolidation
« PS 3050 Loans receivable
« PS 3060 Government partnerships
« PS 3070 Investments in government business enterprises
o PS 3230 Long-term debt
.o PS 3310 Loan guarantees
s PS 4200 Financial statement presentation by not-for-profit organizations

PSG-6 Including results of organizations and partnerships applying fair value
measurement was withdrawn as a result of the issuance of these sections.

The new requirements are

all required to be applied

at the same time.

For govemments - Fiscal
years beginning on or after
April 1, 2019. This effective
date was amended in
September 2015.

For government
organizations that applied
the CPA Canada Handbook |
— Accounting prior to their
‘adoption of the CPA Canada
Public Sector Accounting
Handbook - Fiscalyears
beginning on or after April 1.
2012.

For all other government
Jorganizations - Fiscal years
beginning on or after April 1,
2019. This effective date
was amended in September,
2015. 1

Earlier adoption is
permitted.

Section PS 2200 Related party disclosures

This Section defines a related party. It also establishes the disclosures required
for related party transactions, including disclosure of information about an
entity's related party transactions and the relationship between the related
parties when the transactions:

¢ have occurred at a value different from that which would have been arrived at
if the parties were unrelated; or

« have or could have, a material financial effect on the financial statements.

As a result of the issuance of Section 2200, the Public Sector Accounting Board
(PSAB) approved the withdrawal of Section PS 4260 Disclosure of related party
transactions by not-for-profit organizations since PS 2200 contains similar
disclosure requirements.

Fiscal years beginning on
or after April 1, 2017.
Earlier adoption is
permitted.

Section PS 4260 will
remain in effect for
GNFPOs reporting under
PSAS plus the PS 4200
series until Section PS
2200 must be adopted for
fiscal periods beginning on
or after April 1, 2017.
Earlier adoption is
permitted.
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Effective date

Section PS 3420 Inter-entity transactions

This Section establishes how to account for and report transactions between
public sector entities that comprise a government’s reporting entity from both a
provider and recipient perspective (i.e., related parties within a government
reporting entity). The main features of the new Section are:

+ Transactions are measured at their carrying amounts, except in specific
circumstances.

+ Transactions occurring on similar terms and conditions as an arm’s length
transaction are measured at the exchange amount.

Cost allocation and recovery is the allocation of costs of activities associated
with providing goods or services to another entity and the recovery of the
costs incurred from the other entities. Under a policy of cost allocation,

revenues and expenses are recognized on a gross basis at their exchange
amount.

+ Unallocated costs are the cost of resources recorded by the providing entity in
its operating activities that are incurred on behalf of a recipient entity. A
recipient may choose to recognize unallocated costs for the provision of
goods and services and measure them at their carrying amount, fair value or
other amount dictated by policy, accountability structure or budget practice.

+ The transfer of an asset or liability for nominal or no consideration is
measured by the provider at its carrying amount and by the recipient at its
carrying amount or fair value.

Inter-entity transactions must be disclosed in accordance with Section PS
2200 Related party disclosures.

Fiscal years beginning on
or after April 1, 2017.
Earlier adoption is
permitted.

Section PS 3210 Assets

This new Section provides guidance for applying the definition of an asset set
out in Section PS 1000 Financial statement concepts and establishes general
disclosure standards for assets.

Disclosure of information about the major categories of assets that are not
recognized is required. When an asset is not recognized because a reasonable
estimate of the amount involved cannot be made, the reason(s) for this should
be disclosed.

Fiscal years beginning on
or after April 1, 2017.
Earlier adoption is
permitted.

Section PS 3320 Contingent assets

This new Section defines and establishes disclosure standards for contingent
assets.

Contingent assets are possible assets arising from existing conditions or
situations involving uncertainty. That uncertainty will ultimately be resolved when
one or more future events not whaolly within the public sector entity’s control
occur or fail to occur and that resolution will confirm the existence or non-
existence of an asset.

Disclosure of information about contingent assets is required when the
occurrence of the confirming future event is likely.

Fiscal years beginning on
ar after April 1, 2017.
Earlier adoption is
permitted.

Section PS 3380 Contractual rights

This new Section defines and establishes disclosure standards on contractual
rights. Contractual rights are rights to economic resources arising from
contracts or agreaments that will result in both an asset and revenue in the
future.

Disclosure of information about cantractual rights is required, including a
description about their nature and extent and the timing.

Fiscal years beginning on
or after Apnil 1, 2017.
Earlier adoption is
permitted.
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Public Sector Accounting Board - [updated September 30, 2017]

Section PS 3430 Restructuring transactions

This new Section defines a restructuring transaction and establishes standards
for recognizing and measuring assets and liabilities transferred in a restructuring
transaction.

A restructuring transaction is a transfer of an integrated set of assets and/or
liabilities, together with related program or operating responsibilities without
consideration based primarily on the fair value of the individual assets and
individual liabilities transferred. The main requirements in the new Section are:

= The net effect of a restructuring transaction is recognized as revenue or an
expense by the entities involved (transferor/recipient).

« The recipient must recognize the individual assets and liabilities received in a
restructuring transaction at their carrying amounts with applicable adjustments
at the restructuring date.

« The transferor and recipient cannot restate their financial position or results of
operations as if the transaction had happened from inception.

+ The transferor and recipient must disclose sufficient information to enable
users to assess the nature and financial effects of a restructuring transaction
on their financial position and operations.

The issuance of this new Section also resulted in consequential amendments to
Section PS 3050 Loans receivable.

Effective date

Fiscal years beginning on
or after April 1. 2018.
Earlier adoption is
permitted.
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Proposed modifications to the accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations in the private and

public sectors

In April 2013, the Accounting Standards Board (AcSB) and the Public Sector Accounting Board (PSAB and
collectively, the Boards) published a joint statement of principles (SOP) entitled /mprovements to Not-for-Profit
Standards. The changes proposed in the SOP would apply to private sector NFPOs that apply Part Ill of the CPA
Handbook — Accounting Standards for Not-for-Profit Organizations and public sector NFPOs that apply the CPA
Canada Public Sector Accounting Handbook (PSA Handbook) including the Section PS 4200 to 4270 series of
standards contained within the PSA Handbook. The consultation document issued by the Boards proposed
improvements to better meet the needs of financial statement users and, where possible, to align accounting
standards for private and public sector NFPOs.

The Boards received an overwhelming 292 responses from interested parties of which 11% related to the
proposals for public sector NFPOs. The Boards analyzed the responses and discovered some common concems
with certain proposed principles, including:
« contributions and pledges
o only recognizing contributions and pledges receivable when the NFPO has control over the contribution and
can exercise its control;
o recognizing contributions as revenue immediately unless the contribution gives rise to an obligation that
meets the definition of liability;

« controlled and related entities
o consolidating all controlled NFPOs;
o equity accounting for all controlled for-profit entities;

financial statement presentation

o presenting expenses by function in the statement of operations and disclosing expenses by object in the
notes to the financial statements; and

o presenting total fundraising and general expenses separately in the statement of operations (or disclosing
the amounts in the notes).

The Boards met in March 2015 to develop a process to address the SOP. They discussed key issues including:
user needs, a need for symmetry between both private and public NFPOs, and future timing of the project. In late
June 2015, PSAB discussed their own project plan to improve its standards for NFPOs. As part of its proposed
strategic initiative, the PSAB plans to explore the implications of all government organizations following the same
set of standards. PSAB will also consider whether its standards should provide more flexibility when being applied
to different stakeholder groups. While the AcSB will continue to issue not-for-profit standards, PSAB will monitor
and assess any accounting differences from a broader public sector perspective.
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Appendix D — Auditing

developments

Canadian Auditing Standards (CASs) and other Canadian Standards
issued by the AASB

Replacement of the Joint Policy Statement Concerning Communications
with Law Firms Regarding Claims in Connection with the Preparation and
Audit of Financial Statements and AuG-46, Communication with Law Firms
under New Accounting and Auditing Standards

The former joint policy statement, which was appended to CAS 501, Audit
Evidence — Specific Considerations for Selected Items, was based on the
terminology and accounting requirements of Part Il of the CPA Canada
Handbook. That joint policy statement was replaced with a revised statement of
the same name that incorporates the following fundamental changes:

=  expanding the scope of the revised Statement to apply to in-house legal
counsel who are acting in a legal capacity by performing a role that
commonly would be performed by external legal counsel;

=  providing a more detailed discussion on the legal concept of privilege;

«  structuring the revised Statement to be accounting framework neutral so
that it can be used regardless of the applicable financial reporting
framework applied by management to evaluate the entity’s claims and
possible claims; and

=  updating guidance with respect to the timing of issuance of the inquiry and
response letters.

The implementation of this Policy Statement has resulted in the withdrawal of Au-
G 46 Communications with Law Firms under new Accounting and Auditing
Standards.

Effective date

‘The revisions are effective

for communication letters
issued on or after
December 1, 2016.

Replacement of Section 5020, Association with CSOA 5000, Use of the
Practitioner's Communication or Name

The AASB has approved the replacement of Section 5020 with a new standard to

address a number of issues that were raised by practitioners and other Canadian

stakeholders. The key issues that are now addressed in CSOA 5000 include:

*  Determining the meaning of “association”;

* l|dentifying when a practitioner becomes associated with information:

»  Establishing the work effort required and the communications needed in the
context of the nature and extent of the practitioner's association with
information; and

Determining how this standard should interrelate with other standards.

CSOA 5000 is effective for
consents provided on or
after June 1. 2017 with early
adoption permitted.

CSAE 3000 ~ Attestation Engagements Other than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information and CSAE 3001 - Direct Engagements

In an attestation engagement, the practitioner’s cbjective is to reach a conclusion
on a public statement or assertion issued by the party responsible for the
underlying subject matter of the engagement. In a direct engagement, there is no
public statement or assertion by the responsible party and the practitioner
expresses a conclusion “directly” on the underlying subject matter.

The two standards noted above replace the following sections:

*  Section 5025 — Standards for Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits
of Financial Statements and Other Historical Information;
e  Section 5030 — Quality Control Procedures for Assurance Engagements

The final standards are
effective for attestation and
direct engagements where
the assurance report is
dated on or after June 30,
2017, with early adoption
permitted.
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Canadian Auditing Standards (CASs) and other Canadian Standards
issued by the AASB

Other Than Audits of Financial Statements and Other Historical Financial
Information;

»  Section 5049 — Use of Specialists in Assurance Engagements Other Than
Audits of Financial Statements and Other Historical Financial Information;

e  Section 5050 — Using the Work of Internal Audit in Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits of Financial Statements and Other Historical Financial
Information; and

»  Section 8100 — General Review Standards.

The key differences between the superseded standards and the new standards
relate to a number of different areas, including the number and format of the
standards, the relationships between assurance standards, the terminology and
definitions, specifications regarding those assurance providers who can claim
compliance with assurance standards, the detailed requirements of the standards,
and limited assurance engagements. The full extent of the changes is beyond the
scope of this summary, but Grant Thomnton would be happy to provide further
information, if required.

Effective date

Amendments to CAS 250, Consideration of Laws and Regulations in an

Audit of Financial Statements

The amendments to this standard have not changed the work effort of the auditor

and serve to clarify existing guidance. The key changes are intended to:

»  help the auditor decide whether to report identified or suspected non-
compliance to authorities outside the entity

« clarify the auditor’s duty of confidentiality and any additional responsibilities
the auditor may have according to laws, regulations and relevant ethical
requirements

* enhance consideration of the implications of non-compliance with laws and
regulations for the audit

« emphasize the fact that, in certain cases, communication with management
or those charged with governance may be restricted or prohibited by law or
regulation

Amendments to CAS 700 and other standards pertaining to Reporting on
Audited Financial Statements and adoption of 701, Communicating Key
Audit Matters in the Independent Auditor’s Report

The key changes to the existing Canadian standards as a result of adopting CAS
700 (revised) and CAS 701 are as follows:

»  Expanded disclosures regarding management's responsibilities related to
going concern, specifically: the responsibility to assess the entity's ability to
continue as a going concern and whether the use of the going concern
basis of accounting is appropriate as well as disclosing, if applicable,
matters relating to going concern.

+  Expanded disclosures regarding the auditor’s responsibilities related to
going concern, specifically: the requirement to conclude on the
appropriateness of management's use of the going concemn basis of
accounting and, if based on the audit evidence obtained, whether the
auditor concludes a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s ability to continue
as a going concern. If the auditor concludes that a material uncertainty
exists, the auditor is required to draw attention in their report to the related
disclosures.

«  Disclosure of the engagement partner’'s name in auditor's reports for audits
of listed entities.

« Changes to the descriptions of the responsibilities of management, the
auditor and those charged with governance, including a reference to who
within the entity is responsible for overseeing the reporting process (when
those charged with governance are distinct from management) (ISA 700)

e  Adoption of a new standard (CAS 701) that deals with the requirements
when the auditor will be communicating the matters judged to be most

The new reporting standards
apply for periods ending on
or after December 15, 2018,
with earlier application
permitted.
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Canadian Auditing Standards (CASs) and other Canadian Standards
issued by the AASB

significant to the audit in the audit repori, either because the auditor has

chosen to do so or because law or regulation requires key audit matters to
be described in the auditor’s report.

It is believed that these changes will enhance the communicative value of the
auditor’s report and also improve the overall quality of the audit and financial
reporting.

Effective date

Amendments to CAS 720, The Auditor’s Responsibilities Relating to Other

Information

The main changes are as follows:

« broadening and clarifying the scope of other information by linking it to the
concept of an “annual report”

* enhancing the auditor’'s work effort with respect to other information; and

« providing transparency by requiring reporting on the auditor’s work relating to
other information.

The concept in extant CAS 720 that other information is not audited (i.e. that
auditors do not provide assurance on the other information) has been retained.

CAS 720 applies for periods

‘ending on or after

December 15, 2018, with
earlier application permitted.

Amendments to CAS 800, Special Considerations — Audits of Financial
Statements Prepared in Accordance with Special Purpose Frameworks, and
CAS 805, Special Considerations — Audits of Single Financial Statements
and Specific Elements, Accounts or Items of a Financial Statement

CAS 800 and CAS 805 have been amended to provide guidance as to how the
enhancements to the Auditor Reporting standards apply to audits of special

purpose financial statements and audits of specific elements, accounts or items
of a financial statement.

CAS 800 and CAS 805 apply
for periods ending on or after
December 15, 2018, with
earlier application permitted.

Amendments to CAS 810, Engagements to Report on Summary Financial
Statements

The key changes are as follows:

« The requirsments of extant CAS 810 have been amended to require a
material misstatement related to going concern or a material misstatement of
other information to be highlighted in the CAS 810 report, if these items have
been highlighted separately in the auditor’s report on the related audited
financial statements in accordance with the new reporting format.

« A new requirement has been introduced for CAS 810 reports to include a
reference to the communication of key audit matters in the auditor’s report an
the audited financial statements

The layout of the CAS 810 illustrative auditor’s report has been altered to be
consistent with those in CAS 700 (Revised).

CAS 810 applies for periods

- ending on or after

December 15, 2018, with
earlier application permitted.

Amendments to CAS’s related to the subject of Addressing Disclosures in
the Audit of Financial Statements

The AASB has approved certain changes to the standards that clarify how
auditors should address the audit of financial statement disclosures. The
changes include:

« Clarifying the meaning of “Disclosure”(CAS 200)

« Providing guidance to auditors to address audit considerations relating to
disclosures early in the Audit (CAS 210, 260, 300)

» Disclosure considerations in identifying, assessing and responding to risks of
material misstatement (CAS 240, 315, 320 and 330)

Clarifying and elaborating on expectations of the auditor when evaluating
misstatements and forming an opinion (CAS 450 and 700)

These revised standards
apply for periods ending on
or after December 15. 2018,
with earlier application
permitted.
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3-160-35131
3-160-35122
3-160-35132
3-160-35133
3-160-35134
3-500-33133
3-550-33129
3-550-33129
3-500-33122
3-550-33179
3-500-33134
3-500-33593
3-540-33142
3-670-33604
3-670-33605

3-670-33603
3-670-33606
3-600-33568
3-600-33568
3-670-33609
3-800-34012
3-800-34006
3-600-33584
3-600-33568
3-200-32700

3-595-33416
3-595-33417
3-590

Island Property sale

Babcox Wilcox Property

861 Elm St-Oskam Steel
CMT School

40-44 Killaly st

Roselawn Bld

Road Const

Railway grade crossings
Roads

East Side Employment Lands
Operations Centre
Operations Centre

Island Land Purch-Op Centre
Main St CIP

Marina Land

SHM Boat Storage Equipment
SHM FuelPump/Tank Replace
SHM Shower Renov

SHM Fencing

SHM Fencing

SHM Pumping station
Museum Log Cabin

Museumn Building

Sherkston Comm Centre
SHM Weed Harvester
Finance Computer

Water meters program
Lakeshore watermain
sewer

City of Port Colborne
Unfunded Capital Projects

Schedule C

at Dec 31, 2015 Total at Dec 31, 2016
Balance deposit onsale  saleofland  expenses/donations  revenue fund Capital Alloc Balance Future funding
33,263.22 - 30,000.00 - 3,263.22 sale of property
250,829.94 - 250,829.94 sale of property
50,534.27 = 25,534.27 25,000.00 future taxes
549,108.90 - 384,299.98 24,274.54 - 360,025.44 189,083.46 sale of property
144,711.09 - 5,724.47 138,986.62 sale of property
34,526.91 - 34,526.91 sale of piano
122,947.26 - 122,947.26 2016 Roads Const budget
100,000.00 - 100,000.00 - 100,000.00 expended in 2017
2,198.56 - 2,198.56 2,198.56 apply to unfunded roads
315,421.77 71,537.41 - - 378,462.59 63,040.82 expended in 2017
155,455.01 624,661.99 - - 155,455.01 Future Debenture 2017
7,659,319.44 - 1,522,981.43 1,522,981.43 Future Debenture 2017
226,161.90 - - 226,000.00 161.90 Future Debenture 2017
320,684.08 88,237.40 57,132.00 - 65,499.60 255,184.48 maturing debentures in 2014
141,346.33 30,630.00 - 30,630.00 110,716.33 currently in budget-$30,000/year
28,372.96 - 28,372.96 matured debentures
22,964.83 6,818.30 6,818.30 29,783.13 matured debentures
35,521.00 - 31,168.00 4,353.00 matured debentures
9,950.00 9,950.00 g 9,950.00 - 2016 budget
10,998.80 10,998.80 10,998.80 2017 budget
5,274.54 5,274.54 - 5,274.54 - 2016 budget
19,248.07 6,762.00 6,762.00 26,010.07 fund over 3 yrs 2016 to 2018
23,920.00 6,000.00 = 6,000.00 17,920.00 fund over 4 yrs 2016 to 2019
19,583.94 5,000.00 - 5,000.00 14,583.94 fund over 4 yrs 2016 to 2019
18,190.00 9,000.00 - 9,000.00 9,190.00 fund over 5 yrs 2013 to 2017
9,183.00 5,000.00 - 5,000.00 4,183.00 fund over 5 yrs 2013 to 2017
2,537,199.02 - 30,000.00 - 384,299.98 8,492,609.88 - 115,921.10 - 282,093.06 2,789,292.08
200,876.08 200,876.08 200,876.08 Future Debenture 2017
29,430.72 29,430.72 29,430.72 2017 capital budget
4,223.00 4,223.00 Alloc from Sewer fund-surplus
4,223.00 230,306.80 - 230,306.80 234,529.80
512,399.86
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Region 1815 Sir Isaac Brock Way, PO Box 1042, Thoroﬁﬁ?@ﬁ’f&%ﬁﬁﬁwlcm
EIos R o 77

)

December 12, 2017

CL 17-2017, December 7, 2017
CSC 14-2017, November 29, 2017
Report CSD 77-2017

LOCAL AREA MUNICIPAL COUNCILS
SENT ELECTRONICALLY

Commercial and Industrial Sub Class Tax Rate Reductions and Rebates
CSD 77-2017

Regional Council, at its meeting of December 7, 2017, approved the following
recommendation of its Corporate Services Committee:

That Report CSD 77-2017, dated November 29, 2017, respecting Commercial
and Industrial Sub Class Tax Rate Reductions and Rebates, BE RECEIVED and
the following recommendations BE APPROVED:

1. That the public consultation process described in Report CSD 77-2017 and
which is required to consider changes to the Commercial and Industrial Vacant

and Excess Land sub-class reductions and Commercial and Industrial Vacancy
Rebates BE APPROVED; and

2. That Report CSD 77-2017 BE APPROVED and CIRCULATED to the Councils
of the area municipalities for information.

A copy of report CSD 77-2017 is enclosed for your information.

Yours truly,

Frank Fabiano

Acting Regional Clerk
Cjp

CLK-C 2017-132

cc: H. Chamberlain, Director, Financial Management and Planning, Enterprise Resource Management Services
J. Burgess, Commissioner, Enterprise Resource Management Services
M. Montague, Executive Assistant to the Commissioner, Enterptise Resource Management Services
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Niagara,/l/ Region CSD 77-2017

November 29, 2017
Page 1

Subject: Commercial and Industrial Sub Class Tax Rate Reductions and
Rebates

Report to: Corporate Services Committee
Report date: Wednesday, November 29, 2017

Recommendations

1. That the public consultation process described in this report and which is
required to consider changes to the Commercial and Industrial Vacant and

Excess Land sub-class reductions and Commercial and Industrial Vacancy
Rebates BE APPROVED

2. That this report BE APPROVED and CIRCULATED to the Councils of the area
municipalities for information.

Key Facts

e The purpose of this report is provide Council with the data required to understand
opportunities related to new legislation on Commercial and Industrial Vacant and
Excess Land tax rate sub-class reductions and Commercial and industrial vacancy
rebates in advance of considering the 2018 tax policy decisions in 2018 Q1 and to
proceed with the necessary public consultation process.

¢ The Commercial and Industrial Vacant and Excess Land sub-classes are currently
automatically provided with a 30% discount to the Commercial and Industrial tax
rates

e The Commercial and Industrial classes have available to them the application based
30% rebate program for building vacancies that are greater than 90 days in the year.

¢ Commencing in 2017, the Province is providing municipalities a greater range of
options to eliminate or modify these programs however the process must include
public consultation and a subsequent application to the Province for a regulation to
prescribe the percentages.

¢ In 2016 the City of St. Catharines initiated a request to the Region to consider a
single sub-class reduction for the tax rates for Industrial and Commercial classes.
This change was made to the Region’s 2017 tax policy based upon the analysis
completed. A reduction to the industrial sub-class reduction was approved at 30%
(industrial formerly 35%) and was guided by pre-existing regulations that did not
require the public consultation process.

o The above changes were highlighted in the discussion of 2017 tax policy and
Council was provided with some additional general information in CSD 26-2017.
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Financial Considerations

There are two components to these two incentives provided to the Commercial and
Industrial properties:

Sub-class Rate Reductions — Currently the Region’s sub-class reductions provide a
30% discount to both Commercial and Industrial Vacant and Excess Land subclasses.
There are no direct costs to the Region for changes in these reductions, only shifts in
taxes across classes and municipalities. The Region engaged Municipal Tax Advisory
Group (MTAG) to undertake a study of the sub-class reduction impacts across property
classes and across municipalities and this analysis is included in Appendix 1 to this
report. Page 116 of the attachment provides, for illustrative purposes, the pure effect of
discounts to the benefit of the industrial and commercial properties owners which total
$535,000 and $1,021,000 respectively.

MTAG modelled a number of scenarios to better understand the full impacts on
Regional taxation of eliminating the discounts. As these discounts also have municipal
tax impacts, the pages 32 to 115 of Appendix 1 model the same scenarios for municipal
taxes for the benefit of municipal analysis and discussion. Any of these options may be
considered individually or together or in part and are presented for discussion purpose.
The seven scenarios are as follows:

Commercial vacant land discount reduced to 0% from 30%

Commercial Excess land discount reduced to 0% from 30%

Industrial Vacant land discount reduced to 0% from 30%

Industrial Vacant land discount reduced to 0% from 30%

Commercial vacant and excess land discount reduced to 0%

Industrial vacant and excess land discount reduced to 0%

All commercial and industrial vacant and excess land discounts reduced to 0%

NoakoObd -~

The schedules providing the Regional redistribution of taxes are provided on pages 18
to 31. These schedules reflect the impacts based on the recalculation of tax rates
using the 2017 general levy.

The full elimination of these discounts is modeled on page 30 of the appendix and has
the obvious impact of increasing taxes to those who received the discounts but
decreases the property taxes to all others as follows:

e Decreases on the residential property class (83% of Regional assessment)
equivalent to 0.30% or $1 million in assessment growth from elimination of
commercial discounts. Adding in the elimination of Industrial discounts the
benefit to residential tax payers increases equivalent to 0.46% or $1.5 million in
assessment growth. For the median residential property assessed at 248,200
the benefit is a $6.63 reduction to the $1,433 in annual taxes.

o Every $1 million in commercial assessment would see a decrease of $47.00 due
to the elimination of commercial and industrial discounts.
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o Every $1 million in industrial assessment would see a decrease of $70.00 due to
the elimination of commercial and industrial discounts.

The municipal redistribution of eliminating all industrial and commercial subclass
discounts is on page 31 of Appendix 1. The $346,489 increase in distribution to
Niagara Falls is reflective of the greatest discounts provided in that municipality that if
eliminated reduce the distributed to the other eleven local area municipalities at

amounts ranging from $2,730 for Town of Lincoln to $204,621 for the City of St.
Catharines.

Vacancy Rebates — Currently the Region’s vacancy rebate program provides for a 30%
rebate to both Commercial and Industrial property classes. The Region and each
Municipality budget for the cost of providing these vacancy rebates. These impacts are
not included in the Appendix 1 as they impact budget and general levy directly. The
Region’s 2017 budget for these rebates is $921,000 and actual results for the last two
years are as per Table 1 below. The elimination of these rebates would reduce the
region’s general levy budget by 0.30%. The benefit to the residential taxation in of
eliminating rebates in addition to discounts is a total of 0.76% reduction or $10.88. For
the commercial and industrial properties assessed at $1 million the reduction of
eliminating discounts and rebates is $77.00 and $115.00 respectively.

Table 1 — Regional Vacancy Rebates by Municipality

2015 actual 2016 actual 2017 forecast

IT : CT IT : CT IT | CT
St. Catharines 127,731.20 ~ 433,957.52 | 83,416.68 ' 272,062.72 | 82,894.24" 280,973.10
Niagara Falls 27,742.00 , 244,397.00 | 21,963.00 | 292,918.00 | 18,306.00 , 104,253.00]
Welland 672437 | 117,301.30 | 2,103.32 . 100,482.85 | 10,963.35  88,439.21
Thorold 1 33,488.62 | 21,286.65 | 72,716.44 | 24,500.86 | 74,607.21 . 26,5692.21
Fort Erie 21,824.78  59,051.68 | 27,413.07 = 54,74318 | 27,649.03 . 30,726.59
Grimsby - 1,839.08  20,587.34 | 12,246.14 = 16,858.74 | 7,042.61  18,723.04
NOTL * 000 . 914228 | 000 | 2026636 | 000  19,402.08
Port Colborne 10,649.71 : 27,401.14 | 2,420.01 | 18,872.05 | 2,340.00 ' 19,100.00
Pelham 73468 - 14,000.39 10.00 © 11,275.27 0.00 . 13,172.62
West Lincoln * 000 - 622800 | 000 825466 | 000 . 1523644
Wainfieet 000 . 1,509.39 | 000 ' 1,839.71 | 000 . 1,685.77

Lincoln 344.67 19,441.84 0,00 ‘ 0.00 0.00 0.00
Totals $131,079 $974,305 $222 279 $830,773 | $223,892 | $618,303
Annual Total ~ |1.105,383.64 |1,053,0562.06] @ |842,195.50

Analysis

At the time of the 2017 tax policy change to the Industrial sub-class tax rate reduction
from 35% to 30% the following Municipal Act sections applied.

Section 313 of the Municipal Act provides that the commercial and industrial subclasses
for vacant and excess land may be 30% for commercial and 35% for industrial.
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However the upper tier may pass a by-law providing for a single percentage of not less
than 30% and not more than 35%. CSD 10-2016 recommended a single percentage of
30% for both subclasses therefore approval was required to reduce the industrial from
35% to 30%. \

Section 364 of the Municipal Act requires municipalities to provide vacancy rebates to
the Commercial and Industrial classes at 30% and 35% respectively. This would apply
to the primary property classes that do not have tax policy reductions. However
subsection 364(4) requires that if an upper tier municipality establishes a single
percentage for a year under subsection 313 (1.1) that percentage applies for the year to
vacancy rebates to Commercial and Industrial properties rather than the rates in section
364.

Commencing in 2017, new opportunities and process is available to consider further
reductions to the vacant unit and excess land subclasses.
¢ Discounts were previously limited to 30% to 35% for commercial and industrial
properties
Discounts can now be anywhere from 0% to 100%
Separate rates can be set for commercial and industrial classes
Public consultation and a regulation is required to approve the change
Discounts adopted no longer need apply to the vacant unit rebate program in
each lower tier municipality and municipalities may establish different rates for
commercial and industrial classes. Previously the lower-tier determine d the
specific details of program but the Region established the percentage
o Each lower tier municipality may have different vacant unit rebate percentages
than other lower tier municipalities in the Region. Region would establish the
rebate rate for the municipality and the municipality would continue to establish
the program rules.

Arguments for elimination the vacancy rebate and reduction program are as follows:

¢ Normal and chronic vacancy do get included in the income valuation of
commercial properties assessed by MPAC. Obsolescence is also a factor in the
cost valuation of properties. Vacancy rebates can be argued to duplicate
adjustment already included in MPAC valuations

e Vacant and excess land valuation by MPAC already reflect the fact that there are
no improvement on the land it can therefore argued that there is no need to also
adjust the tax rate to a lower level for these properties

¢ Vacancy rebated may be providing some financial incentive to property owner
who may be acquiring land for long term speculation rather than immediate
productive use

o The elimination of vacancy rebates may provide an incentive to more actively

pursue productive use of vacant property by commercial and industrial property
owners.
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Dollars directed at vacancy rebates may be repurposed to incent redevelopment

rather than retaining the property in a non-productive state.

Arguments for not eliminating vacancy rebate and reduction program are as follows:

Prior to 1998, business tenants paid Business Occupancy Tax taxes directly to
the municipality in respect of their tenancy as a percentage of the property tax
paid ranging from 25% to 75% depending on the nature of the business. The
percentages were legislated in the Assessment Act. The property owner was
liable for the property taxes on the building. With the tax reform that occurred in
1998 the business occupancy tax was added to the property tax and became a
liability of the property owner. The vacancy rebate was created for the landlord
so that taxes did not increase significantly on vacant areas that would not have
paid business occupancy tax prior to 1998. Property owners can therefore argue
that their share of the property tax should not be increased from what it was in
1998 because of the elimination of business occupancy tax.

The Director of Economic Development was consulted and he will be involved in the
public consultation process.

Public Consultation

Many municipalities are taking advantage of these options and examples of their
consultation and program changes are provided in Appendix 2.

In advance of the consideration of 2018 tax policy decisions staff would recommend that
the following public consultation tax place during the period January to February:;

One open house for the general public — Niagara Region Headquarter (location
to be determine), location is central and with good access to members of the
public. Details of meeting to be advertised using social media, Facebook, print
media and the Region’s website.

One open house for business class property owners - same as above with
distribution to Chamber of Commerce, Business Improvement Areas etc. where
business owners are also invited to make written submission or appear in person
at the open house.

Engagement meeting with the municipal stakeholders — invitations to all local
area municipal councils for their distribution to municipal stakeholders in Finance,
Planning, Economic Development etc.

An on-line survey/questionnaire - Finance will work with the Communication team
to develop a series of questions to capture feedback from the public on the
impacts of the program and feedback on options for changes.
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Alternatives Reviewed

No recommendations for policy changes are being made at this time and will only
come forward to Council following the consultation process.

Relationship to Council Strategic Priorities

CSD 79-2016, Regional Council, December 8, 2016
CSD 26-2017, Regional Council, March 30, 2017
CWCD 142-2017, Regional Council, April 7, 2017

Prepared by: Recommended by:

Helen Chamberlain, Director Jason Burgess, Acting Commissioner
Financial Management and Planning Enterprise Resource Management
Enterprise Resource Management Services

Services

Submitted by:
Carmelo D’Angelo, BSc, MPA
Chief Administrative Officer

This report was prepared by Helen Chamberlain, Director, Financial Management and
Planning/Deputy Treasurer.

Appendices

Appendix 1 2017 Tax Policy Study, Modelling of Changes to Subclass Discounts
Appendix 2 The Vacancy Rebate and Reduction Programs Update (June 2017)
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December 12, 2017

CL 17-2017, December 7, 2017
PEDC 10-2017, November 29, 2017
Report PDS 41-2017

LOCAL AREA MUNICIPAL CLERKS
SENT ELECTRONICALLY

High Level Official Plan Process Framework
PDS 41-2017

Regional Council, at its meeting of December 7, 2017, approved the following
recommendation of its Planning and Economic Development Committee:

That Report PDS 41-2017, dated N‘ovember 29, 2017, respecting High Level
Official Plan Process Framework, BE RECEIVED and the following
recommendations BE APPROVED:

1. That the New Official Plan Process Framework, as set out in this report, BE

ENDORSED for the purpose of initiating the New Regional Official Plan process;
and

2. That this report BE CIRCULATED to the Clerks of the Local Area
Municipalities.

A copy of report PDS 41-2017 is enclosed for your information.

Yours truly,

Frank Fabiano
Acting Regional Clerk

CJp
CLK-C 2017-136
cc: D. Heyworth, Official Plan-Consultant Planning and Development Services

R. Mostacci, Commissioner, Planning and Development Services
N. Oakes, Executive Assistant to the Commissioner, Planning and Development Services
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Subject: High Level Official Plan Process Framework
Report to: Planning and Economic Development Committee
Report date: Wednesday, November 29, 2017

Recommendations

1. Thét the New Official Plan Process Framework, as set out in this report, BE
ENDORSED for the purpose of initiating the New Regional Official Plan process.

2. That this report BE CIRCULATED to the Clerks of the Local Area Municipalities.

Key Facts

e  The purpose of this report is to seek Council's endorsement of the Official Plan
Process Framework.

e  The New Regional Official Plan (ROP) is a long range policy document that
provides comprehensive policy direction and inter-related policies.

e  The New ROP represents the opportunity to create a concise, “more user
friendly”, contemporary document that: provides guidance to local municipalities;
ensures the Regional mandate (interests) are comprehensively applied; and
achieves conformity with provincial plans in order to achieve great development.

e Assetoutin this report, the New ROP will be completed in sections in alignment
with the outlined engagement profile but will be formally adopted by By-law as
one integrated comprehensive document.

e  The development of the New ROP will require constant consultation with local
municipal partners, who will need to implement the Plan at the local level, as well
as the Province representing the ultimate approval authority of the Plan.

e  The New ROP will need to be informed by the completion of numerous
interrelated background studies.

e Area Planners received a power point presentation on the New ROP
development framework on October 27, 2017.

Financial Considerations

The completion of the necessary Background Studies will require the combination of
significant staff and consulting resources over the next two to three years. Council
approved the resources to complete the New Official Plan over the next 5 years as part
of the 2017 Budget Process.
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Analysis
Background

Ontario’s Planning Act (S. 26) requires municipalities to undertake regular reviews (five
or ten year reviews) of their Official Plans to align with Provincial requirements. The Act
requires alignments be achieved in the following areas:

o Conformity/Consistency with Provincial Plans (Places to Grow; Greenbelt, NEC,
Provincial Policy Statements)

e Alignment with the goals of the Planning Act

A New ROP will be an essential Council land use policy document for a planning

horizon to 2041. An updated ROP will align with new Provincial Policy and with

Regional objectives. It will also provide policy guidance on emerging matters such as a
comprehensive regional employment strategy and climate change. §

Approved in 1973, first as the Regional Policy Plan, the current ROP) has not been
comprehensively updated. The historical structure of the ROP never contemplated the
comprehensive long range planning guidance required by the contemporary Provincial
planning requirements. A New ROP that reflects Provincial Policy and up-to-date
current planning practice will reduce the risk to the development community and allow
the local Official Plans to be brought up to date.

By approval of Report PDS 40-2016, Council endorsed the approach of the preparation
of a New ROP from start to finish rather than a series of site specific topic amendments.
The New ROP will be processed under Section 26 of the Planning Act.

Key Official Plan Objectives

The key objectives of the New Official Plan in terms of structure and content are to:

J Promote and achieve great development outcomes.

e  Be more user friendly for the public, stakeholder groups, consultant, staff and
Council.

e« Be more concise and provide clearer policy guidance where necessary and
latitude - where appropriate.

e Address Provincial requirements, Regional interests and provide guidance to the
Local Area Municipalities.
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Assigning Resources and Work Program

At the end of July 2017, the Official Plan-Policy Consultant (staff) began working with
the Community and Long Range Planning Division.

Among the first steps examined was to ensure needed background studies would be
completed to properly inform the preparation/writing of the New ROP and address the
requirements of the 2017 Provincial Growth Plan.

The background studies/strategies identified as a priority to complete are the Regional
Land Needs Assessment, the Regional Employment Strategy, the Regional Urban
Structure and the Regional Housing Strategy. These studies were initiated as part of the
MCR (except for the Regional Housing Strategy), but were been put on hold pending
the Provincial Coordinated Provincial Plan Review which is now complete. The goal is
to substantially complete these studies by Q2 2018.

Background studies will be developed in consultation with municipal partners and
receive input from stakeholders. Key components associated with each of these
Background Studies are as follows:

Regional Land Need Assessment

The Regional Land Needs Assessment will determine the amount of developable urban
land required for residential and employment purposes. It will also identify any excess
lands — that being lands that will likely not be develop by 2041. Guidance from the
Province for this is expected by Q1 2018. :

Regional Employment Lands Strategy

The Regional Employment Lands Strategy will ensure there are sufficient population
based employment lands to serve the growing regional population as well as sufficient
marketable areas for traditional industrial employment. It is Important to identify
Regional Employment Areas - being areas of business and economic activity for long
term employment development which are to be protected from conversion. The
strategy will also ensure sufficient supply of lands for employment purposes and ensure
employment areas are marketable for their intended purpose.

Regional Urban Structure

The Regional Urban Structure will identify important strategic growth nodes within the
region to 2041 and assign population and density accordingly. For example, strategic
growth targets will be established for downtown St. Catharines which is identified in the
Growth Plan as an Urban Growth Centre.
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Regional Housing Strategy

The Regional Housing Strategy is intended to ensure a proper housing mix in terms of
housing forms over the planning horizon of the New ROP to provide choice, aging in
place opportunities and affordability. This will involve setting affordable housing targets
and establishing tools to support affordable housing.

Priority Background Studies/Strategies — Resource & Environment Related

Natural Heritage & Water Systems Planning

Natural Heritage and Water Systems planning will be a significant component of the
New ROP to meet Provincial policy direction. Protecting significant natural features
(woodlots and wetlands for example), and water courses, as defined by the Province
with appropriate clear policy application is a critical component of the Provincial
planning framework. Watershed Planning is another requirement of the Provincial
framework which will further ensure water resources and issues like storm water
management are properly addressed.

This work will be supported by consultant services and will include the assessment of
natural heritage and water systems options for policy and mapping and establish criteria
for provincial compliance.

Agriculture Study

Agriculture is a primary component of the region’s economy and the protection of the
regions unique land base is reflected in Provincial planning documents. An Agricultural
Study will with consultant support for specific policy areas, such as for agricultural-
related and on-farm diversified uses. The intent will be to ensure conformity with
Provincial planning documents and while supporting the interest of the local agricultural
industry.

Aggregate Resources

Many types of aggregates resources are located throughout the region - these
resources are essential to the economy. The extraction of the resource necessary while
at the same time addressing land use compatibility. An amendment to update
Aggregate Resource policies in the ROP was initiated through Imagine Niagara and will
now be carried forward as a section of the New ROP. -
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Climate Change

Much of the direction, whether indirectly or directly of the 2017 Growth Plan has a
foundation in responding to climate change. The Growth Plan’s focus on public transit
supportive densities, complete communities, multi-modal transportation, complete
streets, watershed planning and natural heritage protection are related to climate
change. Climate change guidance will be integrated throughout the New ROP, such as
watershed planning and low impact development standards as well assessing
obligations and options on the region’s role relative to greenhouse gas emission targets.

Important Planning Act Considerations

Bill 73, Smart Growth for Our Communities Act, came in to force and effect on July 1,
2017. When a New ROP is passed, no privately-initiated applications to amend it will be
permitted for 2 years, unless supported by the municipality. This means a Council
resolution is required to accept a privately initiated Amendment.

Bill 139, Building Better Communities and Conserving Watersheds Act, has obtained
Second Reading in the Ontario Legislature. Proposed new sections to the Planning Act
will eliminate the ability to appeal an Official Plan or Official Plan Amendment adopted in
accordance with Section 26 of the Planning Act, if the approval authority is the Minister.

Engagement Profile

Engagement will be important component in all aspects of the Official Plan including the
completion of Background Studies/Strategies. Appendix 1 lists Engagement Profile
Points and Considerations to be considered during the development of further
Background Studies/Strategies and Official Plan sections.

Alternatives Reviewed

There are various alternative approaches to completing the Official Plan in terms of
Background Studies and Official Plan sections. Staff's recommended approach is to
complete the New Official Plan in sections for endorsement and then integrate endorsed
Sections into a comprehensive document approval. This is much more efficient and
avoids numerous opportunities for appeal and confusion.

It is noted that the process for preparing an Official Plan is fluid and issues arise which
change priorities and possibly the framework. '

Relationship to Council Strategic Priorities

A New ROP will assist in implementing Council's Strategic Priority of Innovation,
Investment, & Entrepreneurship.
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Other Pertinent Reports

PDS 40-2016: Regional Official Plan Update

PDS 41-2016: Coordinated Policy Review Proposed Revisions

PDS 15-2017: Bill 73 Planning Act Changes

Prepared by:

Dave Heyworth, MCIP, RPP

Official Plan-Consultant

Planning and Development Services

Submitted by:
Carmelo D’Angelo, BSc, MPA
Chief Administrative Officer

Recommended by:

Rino Mostacci, MCIP, RPP
Commissioner

Planning and Development Services

This report was prepared in consultation with Brian Dick, MCIP, RPP, Acting Manager, Long
Range Planning and Danielle DeFields, MCIP, RPP, Manager, Community Planning, and
reviewed by Doug Giles, Director, Community and Long Range Planning, BUS, MEP

Appendices

Appendix 1 Engagement Profile

Page 7
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City of Port (”r"ﬁharg“ﬁ;
inistratio RECEIVED
Administration RECEL

/ Region‘ Office of the Regional Clerk DEC 15 200

Niagara*

1815 Sir Isaac Brock Way, PO Box 1042, Thor, %, NAVATHV ICES,
Telephone: 905-685-4225 Toll-free: 1-800-263-7 BebRaPRR:RE7-4977
www.hiagararegion.ca

December 12, 2017
CL 17-2017, December 7, 2017
PEDC 10-2017, November 29, 2017
Report PDS 47-2017

NIAGARA PENINSULA CONSERVATION AUTHORITY
LOCAL AREA MUNICIPALITIES

SENT ELECTRONICALLY
Niagara Peninsula Conservation Authority “The Living Landscape”

Draft Policy Document Review
PDS 47-2017

Regional Council, at its meeting of December 7, 2017, approved the following
recommendation of its Planning and Economic Development Committee:

That Report PDS 47-2017, dated November 29, 2017, respecting Niagara
Peninsula Conservation Authority “The Living Landscape” Draft Policy Document
Review, BE RECEIVED and the following recommendations BE APPROVED:

1. That this report BE RECEIVED for information;

2. That the staff comments within this report and appendices respecting the

Niagara Peninsula Conservation Authority’s draft “The Living Landscape” policy
document BE ENDORSED;

3. That a copy of this report BE FORWARDED to the Niagara Peninsula

Conservation Authority for consideration in finalizing the “The Living Landscape”;
and

4. That a copy of this report BE FORWARDED to Local Area Municipalities for
information.

A copy of report PDS 47-2017 is enclosed for your information.

Yours truly,

Frank Fabiano
Acting Regional Clerk

Cjp
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CLK-C 2017-137

cc: S. Norman, Senior Planner, Planning and Development Services
R. Mostaccl, Commissioner, Planning and Development Services
N. Oakes, Executive Assistant to the Commissioner, Planning and Development Services
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Subject: Niagara Peninsula Conservation Authority “The Living Landscape” Draft
Policy Document Review

Report to: Planning and Economic Development Committee
Report date: Wednesday, November 29, 2017

Recommendations

1. That this report BE RECEIVED for information.

2. That this report and appendices respecting the Niagara Peninsula Conservation
Authority’s draft “The Living Landscape” policy document BE ENDORSED.

3. That a copy of this report BE FORWARDED to the Niagara Peninsula Conservation
Authority for consideration in finalizing the “The Living Landscape”.

4. That a copy of this report BE FORWARDED to Local Area Municipalities for
information.

Key Facts
e The purpose of this report is to seek Council's endorsement for comments on the
draft “The Living Landscape” policy document.

¢ The Niagara Peninsula Conservation Authority (NPCA) is updating its policies,
procedures and guidelines for the administration of Ontario Regulation 155/06. They
have branded this document “The Living Landscape”.

e Comments on the April 2017 Draft “The Living Landscape” document are due
December 31, 2017

s Comments on the draft policy document are grouped into 4 main categories, these
include:

o consistency and alignment with Ontario Regulation 155/06;

o references to the Memorandum of Understanding between the NPCA and the
Region and local area municipalities;

o the integration of guidelines for policy administration and planning review in
the document; and

o the technical application of the policies and NPCAs Regulation (O. Reg.
155/06)
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Financial Considerations

There are no direct financial considerations associated with commenting on the draft
policy document.

Analysis

In September 2015, the NPCA initiated a process to review and update its main policy
document, previously titled Policies, Procedures and Guidelines for the Administration
of Ontario Regulation 1565/06 and Land Use Planning Policy Document, through a
project called “The Living Landscape”. Throughout the development of the draft
document, which is the subject of this report, staff from the Region maintained an open
dialogue with the NPCA, offering input, feedback and suggestions for changes. The
extent of the consultation with Region staff and other stakeholders during the process is
appreciated.

In April of 2017, a draft of the document was circulated for comment. Comments were
initially due earlier in the year, but the commenting deadline was extended until
December 31, 2017 to allow for greater feedback opportunities.

While Regional staff have participated in providing feedback to the NPCA during the
development of the draft document, this report and its appendix forms the formal
Regional submission with respect to the draft document circulated for comment.

The draft document as circulated is approximately 160 pages in length and is divided
into 14 sections, each speaking to a component of the NPCA’s authority. The
introduction section of the document is comprehensive and the preamble introducing
each of the regulated features are clear, concise, and written with the user in mind. The
inclusion of select graphics and illustrations is commended and greatly enhances
readability.

The following is an overview of the attached comments contained in Appendix | to this
report:

1. Consistency & Alignment

In general there appears.to be inconsistencies between “The Living Landscape”
document and NPCA’s Regulation (O. Reg. 155/06). While there may be rationale for
policies which don’t align with the Regulation, this is not made clear in the document.
Where there is an inconsistency between the Regulation and the policy document this
should be explained to ensure consistent application.
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2. References to the Memorandum of Understanding and Other Agencies

The document makes several references to the MOU between NPCA and Niagara
Region and the local area municipalities. It is recommended that references to the MOU
be removed including the associated direction on how NPCA staff will undertake these
MOU responsibilities and that the document should focus on the administration of
NPCA’s Regulation (O. Reg. 155/06).

3. The Integration of Policy and Planning Guidelines

In the previous version of the NPCA Policy and Land Use Planning document, policy
administration (Section 3) and plan review (Section 4) guidelines were outlined
separately. In the new document, in many cases, the policy administration and plan
review guidelines are integrated into a single section. This approach can lead to
confusion as to what is to be commented on through a permit application and what is to
be commented on through the review of a Planning Act application.

4. The Technical Application of the Policies and Regulation

In addition to the general themes above, there were several technical comments related
to the development of the policies and application of O.Reg. 155/06.

Additionally, Bill 139, “Building Better Communities and Conserving Watersheds Act,

2017", if approved, will have impacts on the operation, roles, and responsibilities of the
NPCA which may need to be reflected in “The Living Landscape” document.

Alternatives Reviewed
This report is recommended for endorsement as it represents the Region’s comments
on the NPCA’s draft “The Living Landscape” policy document. Alternatively, Council

could choose not to endorse this report and not to comment on the NPCA'’s draft policy
document. This option is not recommended.

Relationship to Council Strategic Priorities
This report offers a Niagara Region perspective on the proposed NPCA “The Living
Landscape” policy document. The NPCA plays a significant role in conservation and

shaping development in Niagara. This report is aligned with the Fostering Innovation,
Investment and Entrepreneurship priority.

. Other Pertinent Reports

None
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Prepared by:

Sean Norman, PMP, MCIP, RPP
Senior Planner

Planning and Development Services

Submitted by:
Carmelo D’Angelo, BSc, MPA
Chief Administrative Officer

Recommended by:

Rino Mostacci, MCIP, RPP
Commissioner

Planning and Development Services

This report was prepared in consultation with Erik Acs, MCIP, RPP, Senior Planner and
reviewed by, Lindsay Earl, MCIP, RPP, Senior. Development Planner, Danielle De Fields,
MCIP, RPP, Manager, Community Planning and Doug Giles, Director of Community and Long

Range Planning.

Appendices:

Appendix I: Niagara Region Comments on Draft Living Landscape Document Page 5
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PDS 47-2017 Appendix I: Niagara Region Comments — Niagara Peninsula
Conservation Authority Draft “The Living Landscape” Document

1. Consistency & Alignment

Draft
Document
Section

Niagara Region Comments

In general there appears o be inconsistencies between “The Living
Landscape” document and NPCA’s Regulation (O. Reg. 155/06). It may be
that there is a rationale for policies which don't align with the regulanon

but this is hot made clear in the document. Where there is an
inconsistency between the Regulation and the policy document this should
be explained to ensure consistent application. Specific examples include:

4.214.2

This section requires a permit for development in a “spill area”. It is
understood that spill areas are difficult to determine and map. It is unclear
from O.Reg. 155/06 what authority the NPCA has to regulate spill areas
and require permits for development. Regional staff have concern that
landowners and others may not be aware that a property is within a spill
area and that a permit for development is required from the NPCA.

[t is recommended that the policy document confirm that NPCA has the
mandate to regulate spill areas. If it is determined that NPCA has this
authority, please ensure that spill area locations can be determined
mapped.

6.1.4.4

This section deals with the setback regulation from the physical top of
bank.

Based on Section 2 (b) i) & ii) of O. Reg. 155/06, NPCA regulates 15m
from the greater of the physical top of bank and the long-term stable top of
bank. However, Section 6.1.4 .4 of the draft document describes the
regulated limit as 7.5m from the greatest hazard. This is contrasted by
Section 6.2.4.1 of the draft document which provides direction for
development within 15m of the top of bank hazard.

It is recommended that the policy document be consistent in the setback
from the top of bank, and if this differs from the text of the Regulation an
explanation should be provided.

Section 8

The classification of wetlands in Section 8 of the draft document differs
from the classification of wetlands in O. Reg. 155/06. For example the
regulation provides a different classification and regulation limit for non-
PSWs greater than 2 hectares and non-PSW's less than 2 hectares. The
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draft document does not address this difference.

Although Regional staff do not have an issue with the proposed setbacks
for non-PSW's, it is recommended that the inconsistency with Regulation
155/06 should be clarified in the document to ensure there is no confusion
with its application.

9.2.5.1 Watercourse buffers are an important and contentious issue in Niagara
Region. The development and interpretation of these policies could have
significant impacts on the agricultural community and others. Overall we
suggest that further background and explanation on these policies should
be provided in the document. For example:

Section 9.2.5.1 suggests that a 30m natural buffer is required on cold
water streams and a 15m natural buffer is required on warmwater streams.
It is unclear from O. Reg. 155/06 what the legislative basis is for the NPCA
to regulate and require these buffers.

It is recommended that the legislative basis for requiring these buffers
should be provided.

Further, Section 9.5.2 provides no direction on from what the natural buffer
is to be measured from and what would be permissible development within
the natural buffer.

It is recommended that additional direction should be provided on how this
buffer is to be determined and what would be permissible.

Further clarification should be provided as to what constitutes a natural
buffer to ensure consistent application and certainty with the agricultural
community.

It is recommended that a definition on what constitutes a natural buffer
should be provided that is consistent with provincial direction. For example
the Greenbelt Plan permits crops to be planted in buffers.

Given the importance, Niagara Region staff would welcome further
consultation on this issue prior to approval of “The Living Landscape”
document.
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2. References to the Memorandum of Understanding and Other Agencies

Draft
Document
Section

Niagara Region Comments

The document makes several references to the MOU between NPCA and
Niagara Region and the Area Municipalities.

It is recommended that references to the MOU be removed including the
associated direction on how NPCA staff are to undertake these MOU
responsibilities.

2323

This section provides direction related to the Niagara Escarpment Plan
(NEP). It is recommended that additional information be included in this
section regarding the relationship between the Niagara Escarpment
Commission and NPCA and the specific roles and responsibilities of the
NPCA regarding applications in the NEP.

It is recommended that additional details should be included on the role of
NPCA with respect to how NEP applications are circulated and processed.

2.5

The inclusion of the information in Section 2.5 “Other Relevant Legislation”
is greatly appreciated.

It is recommended that additional information be added to this section to
clearly outline how each piece of legislation guides the decision-making of
NPCA and what are the specific roles and responsibilities of NPCA under
each piece of legislation.

2.5

Section 2.5 includes information related to the Niagara River Remedial
Action Plan. This information may no longer be current.

It is recommended that NPCA update this information and consider if this
the appropriate place in the document to include this section.

3. The Integration of Policy and Planning Guidelines

Draft
Document
Section

Niagara Region Comments

In the previous version of the NPCA Policy and Land Use Planning
document policy administration (Section 3) and plan review (Section 4)
guidelines were outlined separately. In the new document, in many cases,
the policy administration and plan review guidelines are integrated into a
single section. This approach can lead to confusion as to what is to be
commented on through a permit application and what is to be commented
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on through the review of a Planning Act application. A few examples are as
follows:

3.3.5

This section is related to native plant species. It is unclear if this is a
requirement or a recommendation. It is unclear if this guidance is for
proposals in NPCAs regulated area, or the entire watershed.

Although Regional staff support this as a best practice, clarification should
be provided on how this section would be interpreted and applied.

6.2.8

This section is related to requiring fencing. Is this a requirement that would
be imposed on landowners who are applying for a permit from NPCA, or is
this a recommendation that would be made through the planning process
for example on site plan or subdivision applications.

It is recommended that this section be expanded to provide certainty to
municipalities, landowners and developers.

6.2.9

This section (Valleyland Policy Direction for Official Plans and Zoning By-
Laws) is a recommendation for municipalities to consider through the
planning process.

We agree that this is an appropriate direction; however, it is recommended
that it would be more appropriate to include this in a section with other
planning recommendations rather than in a section related to specific to
development and valleyland hazards.

4. The Technical Application of the Policies and Regulation

Draft
Document Niagara Region Comments
Section :
4.1.1 In this section the application of the 100 year flood vs. Regional Flood is
not clear.
It is recommended that the information in Section 4.1.2.3 be moved up to
an earlier section to assist the reader.
6.2.4.1 Based on Section 6.2.4.1 (a), for existing development that is within 15m to

7.5m of the erosion hazard, replacements or additions shall not encroach
any closer than existing.

In contrast Section 6.2.5.1 allows for new development to encroach up to
7.5m from the erosion hazard.

This policy would appear to permit new development to encroach closer to
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the hazard than a replacement or addition to an existing development.

It is recommended that this issue be reviewed to ensure that there is
consistency in the permissions from NPCA.

6.2.5.2

This section permits lots to be created 7.5m from the erosion hazard.

It is unclear if the rear 7.5m of the lot be regulated by NPCA pursuant to
Section 2 (b) i) of O. Reg. 155/06 which prescribes a regulation limit of
15m?

In the case of a) to c) where a lesser setback is permitted would the
property be regulated by NPCA after the creation of the new lot. This may

have implications on how the new owner would be permitted to develop on
the lot.

It is recommended that this section be expanded to make it clear that
newly created lots created in accordance with this policy would no longer
be regulated by the NPCA.

6.24.2 &
6.2.5.2

These sections both permit the erosion allowance to be reduced in some
circumstance to a minimum of 3m. '

Justification should be provided for the proposed 3m minimum given that
Section 3.4 of the MNR Technical Guide for Erosion Hazard Limits
recommends a minimum erosion access allowance of 6m.

Section 8

In Section 3.24.1 b) 5) of the previous NPCA Policy and Procedures
Document direction regarding the construction of private access roads
across wetlands was provided. The “Living Landscape” document no
longer provides any direction regarding the permissibility of private access
roads.

It is recommended that the explicit policies related to private access roads
from the current NPCA policy document be carried forward into the "Living
Landscape” document.
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. // [ Office of the Regional Clerk _
Niagara / / Region 1815 Sir Isaac Brock Way, PO Box 1042, Thorold, ON IICaTh 5 2017
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December 12, 2017

CL 17-2017, December 7, 2017
PEDC 10-2017, November 29, 2017
Report PDS 48-2017

DISTRIBUTION LIST
SENT ELECTRONICALLY

Niagara Region Mid-Year 2017 Growth Monitoring Report
PDS 48-2017

Regional Council, at its meeting of December 7, 2017, approved the following
recommendation of its Planning and Economic Development Committee:

That Report PDS 48-2017, dated November 29, 2017, respecting Niagara
Region Mid-Year 2017 Growth Monitoring Report, BE RECEIVED and BE
CIRCULATED to the local area municipalities, Niagara Peninsula Conservation
Authority, Niagara Home Builders' Association, Niagara Industrial Association,
local Chambers of Commerce and school boards with an offer to have Niagara
Region staff present the Mid-Year 2017 Growth Monitoring Report at local
municipal Councils.

A copy of report PDS 48-2017 is enclosed for your information.

Yours truly,

Frank Fabiano
Acting Regional Clerk
cjp
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CLK-C 2017-138
Distribution List:

Local Area Municipalities

M. Brickell, Niagara Peninsula Conservation Authority

C. McShane, Niagara Home Builders' Association

D. Ursini, Niagara Industrial Association

M. Balsom, President/CEQO, Greater Niagara Chamber of Commerce

K. Marcil, Acting Operation Manager, Greater Fort Erie Chamber of Commerce

D. Fabiano, Executive Director, Niagara Falls Chamber of Commerce, Port Colborne/Wainfleet Chamber
of Commerce, Welland/Pelham Chamber of Commerce

S. Mabee, Niagara District School Board

M. Ladouceur, Conseil scolaire Viamonde

S. Whitwell, Niagara Catholic District School Board

A. Aazouz, Conseil Scolaire de District Catholique Centre-Sud

G. Bowie, Planner, Planning and Development Services

R. Mostacci, Commissioner, Planning and Development Services

N. Oakes, Executive Assistant to the Commissioner, Planning and Development Services
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Subject: Niagara Region Mid-Year 2017 Growth Monitoring Report
Report to: Planning and Development Services Committee
Report date: Wednesday, November 29, 2017

Recommendations

1. That this report BE RECEIVED for information.

2. That a copy of this report BE CIRCULATED to the Local Area Municipalities,
Niagara Peninsula Conservation Authority, Niagara Home Builders Association,
Niagara Industrial Association, local Chambers of Commerce and School Boards.

Key Facts
e The purpose of this report is to inform Regional Council on Niagara’s current growth
and development trends through mid-year 2017.

 The mid-year growth report is a companion piece to the Niagara Region Annual
Growth Monitoring Report and Year End Development Planning Applications
Monitoring Report.

e Niagara continues to see an increase in development activity and housing
development, including a strong increase in average household sales price of 29%.

e Niagara has experienced more housing starts (+56) and completions (+233) to date
in 2017 compared to 2016, but overall residential building permits are down (-149).

e Non-Residential Building Permit values increased by over 52 Million dollars in the
first half of 2017 compared to 2016.

e Development Planning and Engineering applications have increased 11.6% (mid-
year 2017 compared to mid-year 2016).

¢ Pre-consultation meetings with area municipalities have jumped 50.8% in the first six
months of this year over the same period in 2016.

e Regional Development Services staff has satisfied review timeline targets for 94.1%
of all applications so far in 2017.

» Review fees collected at mid-year are $404,310 and the total 2017 fees are
anticipated to surpass 2016 levels based on the projected number of applications.

Financial Considerations

There are no direct financial implications associated with this report.
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Increased residential, commercial and industrial development in Niagara, combined with
increasing property assessments, result in increased revenue collected by Niagara
Region through Development Charges and the levy.

Analysis
Mid-Year Growth Report Overview

In March 2017, Planning and Development Services presented two reports focusing on
growth and development trends in Niagara. The first report, Niagara Region Annual
Growth Monitoring Report (PDS 9-2017), focused on population, property market and
building permit activity in Niagara for 2016. The second report, 2016 Year End
Development Planning Applications Monitoring Report (PDS 13-2017), focused on
trends in development applications and the associated impact on Niagara Region.

The purpose of the Mid-Year report is to provide an overview on how Niagara is
trending at the halfway mark of the current year compared to the previous year. The
Mid-Year report is a brief overview of some of the trends found in both reports
previously mentioned and final, more comprehensive, end of year reports will be
provided in 2018.

Growth Monitoring

Property Market Trends: Sales and Sales Price

The following section focuses on trends from the real estate sector, reporting on sales
and average household sale prices across Niagara. Information has been collected from
the Niagara Association of Realtors, Realtors Association of Hamilton-Burlington
(RAHB) and Canada Mortgage and Housing Corporation (CMHC).

The total number of home sales (all home types including single-detached, semi-
detached, townhouse and apartment) at the midpoint of 2017 (4,600) is slightly below
where they were mid-year 2016 (4,704), but average sale price has continued to climb,
increasing 29% over mid-year 2016. St. Catharines continues to have the most home
sales in the Region, accounting for nearly a third of all sales.

Thorold (42%) had the greatest increase in average sale price while Niagara-on-the-
Lake had the highest average sale price ($766,118) within the Region. Welland
continues to have the lowest average sale price in Niagara at $305,752 — however this
is still a 33% increase from a year prior. Table 1 below includes a breakdown for each
municipality.
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Table 1: Number of Home Sales and Average Sale Price (Q1+2)
Municipality Number of Sales Average Sale Price ($)

2016 2017 | Change% 2016 2017 | Change %
Fort Erie 387 405 | 5 260,065 342,525 i 32
 Pelham 192 170 | -11 448,989 559,286 ! 25
' Lincoln 203 238 | kg 395,695 480,358 ! 21
- Niagara Falls 1,013 890 i -12 309,458 387,183 | 25
' Niagara-on-the-Lake 214 209 | 2 558,762 766,118 | 37
' Port Colborne/Wainfleet 248 220 | 11 250,003 334,929 i 34
| St. Catharines 1,338 1,331 i -1 283,268 366,292 ' 29
Thorold 231 270 | 17 271,426 384047 | 42
Welland 512 527 | 3 229,364 305,752 ! 33
West Lincoln 88 98 | 11 420,790 555,779 | 32
Grimsby 278 242 ! 43 | 456,004 599,819 ! 32
Niagara Region 4,704 4,600 -2 $315,727  $408,423 29

Niagara Reality Association and Hamilton/Burlington Reality Association, 2017

The total number of sales (681 in 2017 and 512 in 2016) for new single-detached home
builds increased by 17% while the average price for new single-detached homes
increased 19% (Table 2). Fort Erie had the highest increase in new single-detached
homes growing from 27 to 76 compared to mid-year 2016. Niagara Falls continues to
drive the housing market with over 50% of Niagara’s new single-detached home sales.

Table 2: Number of Sales and Average Sale Price of New Single-Detached Homes Absorbed in

(Q1+2)

' Municipality Number of Sales Average Sale Price ($)

| 2016 2017 | Change% 2016 2017 | Change %

. Fort Erie 27 76 | 181 389,229 537,544 ! 38
Grimsby 22 10 | -55 N/A N/A A
Lincoln 19 19 | 0 340,017 340,073 ! 0
Niagara Falls 236 355 | 50 393,694 438,849 E 12
Niagara-on-the-Lake 75 70 | oF 519,585 822,889 58
Pelham 34 51 | 50 537,385 569,033 | 6
Port Colborne 3 10 | 233 N/A NA L NA

. St. Catharines 31 30 i -3 381,527 559,239 47
Thorold 15 30 ! 100 426,083 502500 | 18
Welland 50 30 H -40 371,143 435,567 ’ 17
Niagara Region™ 512 681 | 33 $424,582*  $504,583* . 19

Canadian Mortgage and Housing Corporation (Housing NO\A‘.' Tables: First Quarter 2017)
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The average cost for a new single detached home in Niagara' is now over $500,000
compared to around $425,000 a year ago. Niagara-on-the-Lake had the highest price
increase (58%) and has the highest average price ($822,889). Welland, Lincoln and
Niagara Falls are the only municipalities reported on that have an average sale price
below $500,000 for new single-detached homes.

Residential Building Permit Activity

The following section highlights trends in housing starts, housing completions and
building permits issued. Housing Starts and Completions are collected from Canada
Mortgage and Housing Corporation (CMHC) while building permit activity is collected by
the Region from the local area municipalities.

Housing Starts (homes that have begun construction) have increased in the first 6
months of 2017 (1,014 starts in 2017 compared to 958 in 2016) mainly due to an
increase in townhouse/row developments. While single detached homes have
decreased slightly and few apartments have begun construction in 2017, there was
more than a doubling in townhouse/row construction (353 in 2017 compared to 170 in
2016). Niagara Falls continues to have the most development activity with over a third
of all housing starts in Niagara. Port Colborne, while having more activity compared to
2016, continues to have the lowest housing starts within Niagara. Table 3 provides
additional information.

Table 3: Housing Starts by Dwelling Type and Municipality (Q1+Q2)

Municipality Single Semi-Detached Row Apartment All
2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017
Fort Erie 52 77 0 6 3 11 0 0 55 94
| Grimshby 4 10 0 0 0 59 0 0 4 69
Lincaln 16 44 2 2 8 66 0 0 26 112
Niagara Falls 308 238 4 8 82 101 0 0 394 347
Niagara-on-the-Lake 81 30 8 2 7 6 11 0 107 38
Pelham 43 55 0 0 13 0 0 0 56 55
Port Colborne 2 12 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 12
St. Catharines 33 33 18 16 32 102 29 4 112 155
Thorold 34 26 4 0 14 8 20 0 72 34
Wainfleet 5 14 0 0 0 0 0 5 14
Welland 45 58 2 4 8 0 3 0 58 62
West Lincoln 64 20 2 3 0 0 0 67 22
Niagara Region 687 617 38 40 170 353 63 4 958 1,014

Canadian Mortgage and Housing Corporaticn (Starts and Completions Survey)

' Excludes full datasets for Grimsby, Wainfleet, Port Colborne and West Lincoln.
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Housing Completions (homes that were completed in the first half of the year) have
increased in 2017 (1,014) compared to 2016 (781). Single-detached homes made up
over 70% of the completions (746 out of 1,014 were single-detached). Again, Niagara
Falls leads the way with nearly 50% of all completions (472) while Wainfleet had the
fewest (7). Table 4 provides additional information.

Table 4: Housing Completions by Dwelling Type and Municipality (Q1+Q2)

Municipality Single Semi-Detached Row Apartment All

2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017

Fort Erie 24 77 | 4 4 3 4 0 0 | 32 84

- Grimsby 18 18 0 0 0 0 0 0 18 13
Lincoln 24 19 0 0 40 4 0 0 64 23
Niagara Falls 238 354 6 4 22 105 0 9 266 472
Niagara-on-the-Lake ~ 74 67 14 34 37 3 0 11 | 125 115

' Pelham 37 52 0 0 4 9 | 0 0 41 61
' Port Colborne 4 14 0 0 8 0 0 0 12 14
| St. Catharines ' 31 34 12 8 30 24 2 0 75 66
' Thorold 9 31 4 6 0 3 4 20 17 60

Wainfleet 3 7 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 7
Welland 47 29 4 0 34 17 0 0 85 46
West Lincoln 27 49 0 0 16 0 0 43 53
Niagara Region 536 746 44 56 194 173 6 40 781 1,014

Canadian Mortgage and Housing Corporation (Starts and Completions Survey)

Building Permits (permits that have been issued during the first half of the year) are
down from 2016 and have shifted marginally away from single-detached towards higher
density housing types. Building permits issued in the first half of 2016 totalled 1,414
units, which decreased slightly in 2017 to 1,265 units. Building permits issued for
townhomes are notably up in 2017 while apartments are down. Lincoln and Thorold
have issued significantly more permits compared to 2016 while Niagara Falls, Grimsby
and St. Catharines are lower. Table 5 provides additional information.
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Table 5: Building Permits by Dwelling Type and Municipality (Q1+2)
Municipality Single Semi-Detached Row Apartment All

2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017

Fort Erie 66 55 5 8 3 8 0 1 74 72

Grimsby 7 b 0 12 4 25 120 0 131 42
Lincoln 34 46 1 2 0 87 0 0 35 135
Niag'ara Falls 352 164 4 12 55 136 2 0 413 312

' Niagara-on-the-Lake 95 32 25 2 3 31 11 0 134 65
| Pelham 96 147 2 0 37 44 0 0 135 191

Port Colborne 11 14 0 0 0 0 0 0 11 14
St. Catharines 40 29 23 17 26 90 147 14 236 150

; Thorald 36 69 9 3 7 29 0 0 52 101

Wainfleet 14 12 0 0 0 0 0 0 14 12

, Welland | 49 80 2 2 11 0 0 3 62 85

| West Lincoln 95 48 4 24 18 14 0 0 117 86
i Niagara Region 895 701 75 82 164 464 280 18 1,414 1,265

Niagara Region Planning and Development Services

Non-Residential Development Building Permit Values

The following section highlights trends in non-residential building permit 